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CORPORATE PROFILE
AR

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

CMIC Ocean En-Tech Holding Co., Ltd. (“"CMIC" or the “"Company”,
formerly known as TSC Group Holdings Limited) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company and its global
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are primarily engaged in asset investment
and operation management of offshore engineering platforms, design,
manufacturing and service of related equipment and packages in the
land and offshore oil and gas exploration and development, the offshore
wind power installation and other industries, and other clean energy and
technology investments.

The Group's core offshore engineering equipment and packages
businesses have reached world leading standard after many years of
development. Its principal businesses include the design, manufacture,
installation and commissioning of onshore and offshore drilling rig
equipment and packages etc.. Specific equipment products include
cranes, machine rack pipes, jacking systems, power control and
transmission systems, tension adjustment and compensation devices and
systems, etc., as well as drilling rigs maintenance, repair and operation
(MRO) products and services, including oilfield expendables, accessories
and parts manufacturing, sale and repair services. This year, the Group
successfully ventured into the high-power deep-water offshore wind
power installation market, providing high-end core equipment for
a new generation of 1,600 tonnes jack-up wind power installation
platform; at the same time, the Group has also actively deployed for
the hydrogen energy market, and thus a new segment company was
established for new energy. We gain insight into new opportunities for
dual-carbon development, explore the path for energy transformation,
and expand opportunities for new products and new business models in
the new energy industries such as offshore wind power operation and
maintenance, floating wind power and hydrogen energy.

In addition, the Company operates four jack-up drilling rigs, two of
which provide drilling rig service for Abu Dhabi National Oil Company
in the Middle East and two of which provide drilling rig service for the
national oil company of Mexico in Gulf of Mexico. The four figs operated
normally throughout the year and were well received by the owners, and
their contracts have been successfully renewed this year. The Company’s
offshore asset management business is gradually maturing and growing
steadily.
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The Group pays close attention to the development of clean energy
and intelligent technology related industries, proactively looks for
opportunities for investment in and consolidation of marine energy
science and technology related industries to achieve synergistic effects
of each of the Group’s business segments. Through investing in the
undervalued opportunities along the industrial supply chain, the Group is
committed to enhancing the overall performance of the Company and to
maximising the interest of the shareholders and investors.

In the medium to long term, we will continue to focus on the
development of the clean energy and marine energy-related technology
industries. The market share of fossil energy based on oil and gas is
gradually weakening amid the global upsurge of carbon neutrality and
carbon peak. Governments all over the world have clear carbon reduction
goals, reducing carbon emissions and developing green new energy
sources will become the general direction of the global energy industry in
the future. Global oil companies, oil service companies and engineering
companies are all actively deploying for the new energy industry. In the
medium term, leveraging on the extensive industry resources of the old
and new teams, in line with the momentum of green energy such as
hydrogen energy and offshore wind power development, and joining
forces with the substantial shareholders, we will take the layout of the
green energy technology equipment market as an opportunity to exploit
our traditional strengths in equipment manufacturing, asset management
and supply chain services, continue to build and enhance the quality and
efficiency of utilisation and brand influence of green energy equipment
manufacturing, services and management, and use capital operation
methods such as listing, funds and finance leases to obtain stable capital
support. In the long term, we will continue to develop our business in the
green energy sector in line with the global energy revolution, and will rely
on our technological expertise in conventional energy and our experience
in hydrogen energy and offshore wind power to achieve comprehensive
development, thus making new and greater contributions to the strategic
goals of carbon reduction and green energy.
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CORPORATE PROFILE | MILESTONES

1995

ARET | R

Emer International started
business in Houston, Texas,
U.S.A. and introduced a multiple
advanced equipment and
technologies to China’s oil and
gas industry
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2001

2002

Emer International’s 2nd
manufacturing facility,
a manufacturing plant
for hydraulic ends and
accessories of mud
pumps, was founded in
Qingdao, China

REFENRTESHE

Emer International obtained solid
control production line and lifting
system product line through
the acquisition of Zhengzhou
Highlight and Zhengzhou GEAR
and became the only company in
China that can provide research
and development, design and
manufacture of lifting device for
jack-up rigs
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TSC Offshore transferred
its listing to the Main
Board of the Stock

ST AEEM RN Exchange
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2007

2005

2009

2008

HHCT, Emer International’s
first manufacturing facility, was
founded in Xi'an, China and
manufactured power control
and driving systems for onshore
drilling

Emer International
was listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange
¥ E BB R B X P
GEM_ET

Emer International acquired GME (London AIM), and was
rebranded as TSC Offshore, expanded the product line of
offshore drilling equipment and acquired the full capability of
offshore drilling rigs. It became one of the few companies in
the world that could provide the whole package of offshore
drilling rigs in parallel with NOV and MH
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2011

The Company constructed high spec
R-550D jack-up drilling rigs with
Zentech and CSSC
HZentechR P& 1ERE S RIE
R-550DE AR F A

In the same year, the Company
established the Qingdao equipment
manufacturing base

RF - BB SRERERN

2018

TSC Offshore rebranded as TSC
Group

TSCEAERRTSCER

In the same year, China
International Marine Containers
became a strategic shareholder
of TSC Group

FF  REEEKBTSCERE
xR
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Minsheng Trust became a strategic
shareholder of the Company in February

2019
ZE-NEFZAREREEMR B A RIEE
R

In the same year, TSC Group Holdings
Limited was officially renamed as CMIC
Ocean En-Tech Holding Co., Ltd.

FFETSCREFRERARERERR
EE B REREHRIER B R AR

In May 2019, the sale of two units of
CJ46 rigs to Shelf was completed. The
overseas team won the contract for the
offshore rig service project of Pemex
in relation to provision of two units of
JU2000E rigs to the other party

BFERA - 2B HELShelffICI46F &
TR E - FINE B IEPemex)§ i
HIRBESR - BEFRHE2EEIU2000E#
Famoie)

2019

China Merchants & Great Wall Ocean
Strategy & Technology Fund (L.P.) became
the controlling shareholder of TSC Group in
February 2018

—T— \F=ARERRNSEHNRHERR
EFEESKATSCEBEMIZERRR

The Hong Kong Strategic Headquarters was
established in July 2018

2 \FAABRBBREEIR L

In December 2018, two CJ46 drilling rigs were
bareboat chartered to SMS to provide services
to Abu Dhabi National Oil Company, marking
a breakthrough in strategic transformation
R4+ = A MM & CJ46#EHF B 1aSMS » iR
ERPAEL Al AR - SRR Zeh
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In 2021, TSC China and CM Industry Group actively
promoted the development of strategic cooperation
in offshore wind power installation

Latest improvements gained in 2021:

— T ——

China Merchant Hydrogen Energy Segment
Company (¥ B & a2 R 22 A) was established,
and China Merchant Hydrogen Energy
Technology (Qingdao) Co., Ltd. (FE/ & s
(& B)BBR A A]) was established

China Merchant Hydrogen Energy Technology
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd. entered into an agreement
with Tan Kah Kee Laboratory of Xiamen
University to establish a joint venture “China
Merchant Xia Kah Green H_ydro%en Technology
Co., Ltd.CER ER QAL R (EF) AR A A"

In 2021, the Company participated in the CMHI-
27201 wind power installation vessels project of
CM Industry Group, the first deep-water high-
power wind power installation platform with
independent intellectual property rights in China,
to provide core complete sets of equipment and
technology integration
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In the first half of 2020, Zhengzhou
Company successfully secured orders for
two sets of lifting systems for offshore
wind power installation vessels, and has
accumulated orders for four sets of similar
products
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In August 2020, the Company signed a
global settlement deed with Huangpu
Shipbuilding for the H6001 and H6006
projects, through which Huangpu Shipyard
became a strategic shareholder of the
Company

RENA SHEMEEBELD TR
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In October 2020, the land sale contract
of Qingdao offshore base was officially
signed, effectively revitalizing the idle
assets of the Company
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GLOBAL SOLUTIONS
RERBRTT R
Deep distribution of global hotspots of oil and gas and

new energy, boosting the value integration of the

offshore industry and new energy business chain
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEHBEEE

The following is a summary of the consolidated results, assets and LA TN AAEBIRE T XM e EERHNEGAE
liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in the notes below. B BAERBEBRE -

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS P
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZBz-f C"TZZFE _"E-NFE C"E-N\F CE+F
(Restated)
(& E5)
Note
M 5E
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TER TET Txn TET TEn
Revenue WA 57,027 65,882 70,246 58,839 76,552
Cost of sales HEMA (36,363) (54,265) (46,210) (48,792) (67,331)
Gross profit =7 20,664 11,617 24,036 10,047 9,221
Other revenue and net income (including  E iz K FBA
reversal of impairment losses/ (BERERR
provisions) e/ BB 19,548 27,980 14,404 934 2,41
Selling and distribution expenses HERAHAZ (3,914) (4,818) (4,981) (5,635) (6,902)
General and administrative expenses —RRITBHAX (19,775) (21,705) (23,960) (27,693) (25,991)
Other operating expenses (including EhE ey (BIERE
impairment losses/provisions) BB/ k) (1,919) (3,767) (1,239) (6,609) (58,797)
Finance costs B AR (489) (660) (1,727) (2,450) (4,352)
Share of profit less losses of associates & A BLG FIR & 18 255 18 36 1 4
Share of profit of joint venture DA E AR A 1,370 1,216 3,728 = =
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB AEH, (E18) 15,740 9,881 10,297 (31,405) (84,406)
Income tax (expenses)/credit Fi5% (%) /8% (6,396) 949 (979) (10,381) 987
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to 7R AR AEARER1E 1
equity shareholders of the Company &7 /(1) 9,220 10,916 9,701 (41,358) (82,790)

Note: For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has recorded as “Revenue” Mzt : HE-Z-_—F+-A=Z+—HILFE A&£H

instead of “Other Revenue” for rental income arising from leases of capital EHEESEACEHENERAREEENES
equipment classified as operating leases as it is regarded as a principal activity WA SRS [ Weas i IE Hadias] - YRR ZEBR
due to its increasing importance to the Group. Accordingly, the comparative HEUAEENEZHTEENMERAE—BEEE
information of the rental income and related costs are restated to conform X5 o Bt - e U KA A S 8 E B
with the current year’s presentation. BEY - WHERFENERFA -

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. «+ Annual Report 2021



FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

LT EHRBEBE
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZE--F ZZE-FF  —ET-HNF T )\& —E—+F
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TERT TEn TET TEn TEn
Non-current assets ERBEE 76,680 72,634 97,587 52,774 73,355
Current assets MEEE 153,217 157,296 258,591 228,008 241,252
Current liabilities mEARE (79,159) (93,422) (228,789) (245,183) (286,619)
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEERE/ (AR 74,058 63,874 29,802 (17,175) (45,367)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (2,160) (1,224) (6,975) (7,201) (14,321)
Total assets BEE 229,897 229,930 356,178 280,782 314,607
Total liabilities BeRE (81,319) (94,646) (235,764) (252,384) (300,940)
Net assets AEFAE 148,578 135,284 120,414 28,398 13,667
Notes: M5t -

1. The summary of consolidated results of the Group includes the results of the 1. HAEBEMNLGEAEEMELRARTLEWBATMNE

Company and its subsidiaries as if the current Group structure had been in BB AN EERERRBARXEZE AR
existence throughout the financial periods, or from the respective dates of BRI EBRRAREEARE) —EFE - A5H
the incorporation where this is a shorter period. The consolidated results of HEZZ -S4+ -A=+—HIFENGEEEH
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are as set out on pages RSB ISHREAME122EE 1238 ©

122 to 123 of the audited financial statements.

2. The consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 2. AEER-Z-_—F+-A=+—HOGEHHEKR
December 2021 are as set out on pages 124 to 125 of the audited financial REREEZITEMRNE1245E 1258
statements.
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CHAIRMEN'S STATEMENT
ERE®E

The year 2021 is the start of the 14th Five-Year Plan and the “double carbon” strategic objective of our country,
as well as a year of choice of transformation for energy and power development. In the past year, although the
global economy was still affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, the recovery of the oil market was moving in a
positive direction with the universal availability of vaccines and the lifting of blockade for the pandemic in some
countries, and there was still uncertainty. The year 2021 saw an overall growth trend in global crude oil demand
and a significant rebound in the average crude oil price compared to 2020, with favorable situation on both
supply and demand being a major supporting factor for the rise in oil prices. As the global energy transition
advances, the use of low-carbon energy has become a major concern for countries around the world. Hydrogen
energy has become an important tool for countries worldwide to achieve carbon neutrality due to its unique
advantages in terms of storage and energy density.

Against such backdrop, CMIC is actively adapting to the new normal, seizing the opportunities and facing
up to the challenges for transformation. 2021 also marked a year for CMIC to carry out comprehensive
transformation, in order to keep up with the pace of global energy development. In terms of business structure,
CMIC has formed a “two-wheel drive” layout with the development of traditional energy business in parallel
with new energy business:

—  The traditional energy business continued to leverage on its traditional advantages in high-end equipment
manufacturing, supply chain services and asset management of the Company, and integrated new
elements such as “green, digital and intelligent” in high-end manufacturing. Through the shareholdings
in relevant enterprises, CMIC continued to build the Made in China 2025 reform with intelligent repair
and shipbuilding and intelligent shipyard, focusing on the digitization and intelligence of the shipbuilding
industry; taking high-end equipment manufacturing as a core, CMIC extended its equipment advantages
in the field of oil and gas and offshore engineering industry to the field of offshore wind power, so as to
realise integrated construction, operation and maintenance and services of high-end marine green facilities.

—  The new energy business will take “hydrogen energy” as the main direction, and has a new business
segment, with a focus on upstream and downstream businesses of the industrial chain such as the research
and development and production of high-tech products, industrial investments, and the development
of hydrogen energy application scenarios. CMIC, through joint ventures with universities and national
laboratories, jointly promoted the implementation of industrialisation results of the hydrogen energy
technology and, leveraged on its own international businesses and networks to realize the expansion of
hydrogen energy industry to overseas markets. Leveraged on the advantages of “Made in China” and
complete domestic industrial chain resources, CMIC realized the global development of this business.

MIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2021



CHAIRMEN'S STATEMENT
ERFRE

At the same time of business transformation and development, CMIC has been paying attention to global
climate change, focusing on the coordinated development of corporate environment and social environment.
At the end of last year, the CMIC team successfully signed supply contracts for all core equipment of a new
generation of large-scale jack-up wind power installation platform. Under the innovative business model of
"industry + finance”, the project has stronger market competitiveness, which contributed to the promotion of
the low-cost commercial development of large-scale offshore wind power equipment and the “30¢60" national
strategy. In addition to conducting more business cooperation and capital investment in green, energy-saving
and renewable energy and other technological fields, CMIC also strengthened the management of energy-
saving emissions for its subordinate manufacturing enterprises, formulated a strict performance system, and
was committed to reducing greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption; in addition, it started from
the source of product design, optimised product structure, improved product performance, rationally used
materials, improved inventory turnover, strengthened refined management, and made the entire enterprise more
sustainable.

The efforts and achievements of CMIC made in the past year are compelling for all of us. Although the
transformation and layout of the market is promising, it will have a long way to go for future development. In
the forthcoming year, CMIC will seize opportunities, think about changes and make breakthroughs, and pursue
new and far-reaching goals. | am confident that CMIC will bring more changes and surprises in the new year.
The Company will also continue to maintain close connections with its strategic shareholders to strengthen
business synergy and strategic cooperation. | also look forward to witnessing the growth of CMIC and setting
the benchmark in emerging areas with all the Board members.

.éw @0@@

Lou Dongyang
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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CHAIRMEN'S STATEMENT
EFEHRE
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CHAIRMEN'S STATEMENT
ERFRE
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CEO’S STATEMENT
HREHITERS

Entering the year of 2021, COVID-19 continued to ravage the world. However, with the continuous increase in
COVID-19 vaccination rates and major economies around the world reopening and launching growth stimulus
packages, there was a slow economic recovery, an accelerated inflation, and a decline in the growth rate of
unemployment globally. In the second half of 2021, due to the emergence of mutant strains such as Delta and
Omicron and their strong infectivity, the process of global economic recovery was hindered. Facing such tough
social and economic situations, the Company maintained the steady development of traditional businesses
through reducing costs and increasing efficiency against the backdrop of bumpy recovery of oil and gas and
offshore engineering industries in 2021. In the meantime, the Company has also deployed in new energy
sectors such as offshore wind power and hydrogen energy, with certain achievements made. In 2021, the
Group recorded revenue of approximately US$57.0 million, and a net profit of approximately US$9.3 million.
The Group has maintained profitable for the third consecutive year, which was not easy to maintain amidst the
sluggish market conditions.

In 2021, the Company newly established hydrogen energy as the third largest business segment and established
the company “GHT”, marking the official start of CMIC’s comprehensive transformation from traditional energy
to new energy. GHT and Tan Kah Kee Innovation Laboratory at Xiamen University formally established a joint
venture for hydrogen energy technology, focusing on the research and development and mass production of
large-capacity, high-current-density hydrogen production equipment. GHT has also actively promoted and made
progress with potential partners on projects such as core equipment for hydrogen refueling stations, including
hydrogen compressors and high-pressure storage tanks and overall EPC solutions, an operating platform
for hydrogen heavy trucks and the Hydrogen Energy Industry Technology Institute of Henan Province. In the
meantime, CMIC was exploring cooperation opportunities with industry-leading companies in the Netherlands
and other European countries in the sectors of hydrogen and other new energy technologies.

After more than a year of hard work, as at the end of 2021, the Company achieved a major market and order
breakthrough in the core equipment for a new generation of large wind power installation platforms, and has
implemented the contracts of 1,600 tonnes jack-up wind power installation platform project and secured a large
order for core equipment totaling RMB263 million, including 1.600 tonnes heavy duty pile winding crane, 350
tonnes deck crane, jacking systems, pile leg rack cutting and ship-wide electrical control systems. As a typical
case of offshore large wind power installation vessel project, this project is the beginning of the Company’s
expansion into the promising offshore wind power installation and operation and maintenance market, and
has indeed driven the Company’s transformation into new energy business and related results. In addition, the
Company was actively participating in the European offshore floating wind power demonstration project and
is expected to achieve a breakthrough in orders for floating wind turbine infrastructure-related equipment in
2022.

In the past year, CMIC and its major shareholder CMI have cooperated and collaborated on major projects in
traditional business, offshore wind power and hydrogen energy, etc. to achieve complementary advantages
in resources. In the PRC region, ZZOE established a pile leg processing base at CMI’'s Haimen Shipyard and
commenced production. In addition, the Company has taken a stake in Jiangsu Modern Shipbuilding Technology
Co., Ltd., which will provide a boost for CMIC to further expand offshore wind power platforms and new
energy vessels in the future. The Company has signed a strategic cooperation agreement with CM Taiping Bay
on hydrogen energy industry, pursuant to which both parties planned to jointly develop, cultivate and expand
new energy industry and hydrogen energy industry in the Taiping Bay Cooperation Innovation Zone in Dalian,
Liaoning Province, and would bring in quality resources and enterprises in the areas of technology, research
and development, integrated manufacturing and application promotion for the hydrogen energy industry. At
the same time, the hydrogen project team of CMIC has been actively approaching enterprises such as China
Merchants Port, China Merchants Commerce Leasing and CM Steam Navigation to pave the way for joint
development of hydrogen energy application scenarios.
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In respect of offshore management business, the two units of rigs operated for Abu Dhabi National Oil
Company continued with high operational efficiency. Contracts for the two units of rigs operated for PEMEX
were also successfully renewed by the customers and the delivery of spare parts for the rigs was in the end.
In response to the strong demand for operation and maintenance from the Mexican market, the Company
has set up a new operation and maintenance service center in Mexico, with orders keeping pouring in. After
thorough preparations, the Company is pressing ahead with the PEMEX land drilling rig upgrade project, which
is expected to commence tenders in April 2022 with a potential order amount of approximately US$100 million.

In new energy sector, as estimated by the Hydrogen Council, the size of global hydrogen energy market is
expected to grow continuously and gradually reach US$2.5 trillion from now to 2050. Since February 2021,
cumulative global investment in hydrogen energy has jumped from US$300 billion to US$500 billion (equivalent
to approximately RMB3.2 trillion). The hydrogen energy industry is facing a rare opportunity for development,
and the Chinese hydrogen energy industry is about to enter a window period of rapid development.

The Company had many achievements in 2021, and realized closer cooperation with its shareholders. The
Company opened up of new opportunities in the wind power sector, and a positive momentum in the expansion
of hydrogen energy sector. Looking forward, the Company will insist on a two-wheel drive to expand its business
advantages in the traditional energy sector, while grasping the opportunities in green energy development
and focusing on the deep-water wind power and hydrogen energy sectors. On the one hand, the Company
will focus on hotspot market opportunities, increase investment in hotspot markets, and adhere to the original
business model for innovation and development. On the other hand, the Company is exploring opportunities in
the deep-water wind power market, accelerating the transformation of hydrogen energy technological results,
and strengthening the expansion of application scenarios in the downstream of the hydrogen energy industry
chain, so as to achieve an overall layout in the upstream and downstream of the industry chain.

Lastly, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders and friends from all walks of life for

your unremitting and long-standing support, as well as to our directors, management team and staff for your
dedication, trust and commitment on us, and you are assured to witness our robust growth and development.

Mang Bing Tta

Jiang Bing Hua
Executive Director & CEO

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWmR DN

CMIC IS AN INDUSTRIAL CHAIN VALUE
INTEGRATION OPERATOR IN MARINE ENERGY
TECHNOLOGY SECTOR

OVERVIEW

In 2021, COVID-19 continued to ravage the world, even with the
emergence of mutant strains such as Delta and Omicron to exacerbate
travel restrictions and instability in social life in the second half of the
year. However, with major economies around the world reopening
and launching growth stimulus packages, there was a slow economic
recovery, an accelerated inflation, and a decline in the growth rate of
unemployment globally. The global crude oil market, with “de-stocking”
as the main logic, pushed the mean price of international oil significantly
upwards.

In the face of the inconvenience and restrictions caused by force majeure
such as the severe pandemic and floods, the Company took precautions
proactively and responded quickly. In terms of traditional energy business,
all units held onto the business objectives of the Company, actively
seized market opportunities, executed orders and maintained stable
development. In addition, the Company officially established new energy
as the third largest business segment this year, laying out offshore deep-
water wind power and hydrogen energy, with certain results achieved.

In terms of traditional energy business, the Company acquired Jiangsu
Modern Shipbuilding Technology Co., Ltd. (T &R EMFZIT AR A )
and became its second largest shareholder, focusing on the digitisation
and intellectualisation of shipyards and the shipbuilding industry, and
continued to build a whole chain of technical services for “design +
manufacturing”. On the offshore core equipment manufacturing, the
Company took high-end equipment manufacturing as the entry point,
and applied the traditional advantages of cranes, lifting piles and electrical
control system in the offshore engineering industry to the next generation
of large offshore wind power installation vessels, which achieved a major
market breakthrough. The Company also created a new benchmark
business model, and established a new industrial ecology of offshore
wind power installation vessel investment.
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In terms of hydrogen energy business, the Company set up China
Merchant Green Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd. ((ERE SR EIiI(E
B)ABR A7), marking the official start of CMIC’s comprehensive
transformation from traditional energy to new energy. GHT and Tan
Kah Kee Innovation Laboratory at Xiamen University formally established
a joint venture for hydrogen energy technology, focusing on the
research and development and mass production of large-capacity, high-
current-density hydrogen production equipment. GHT has also actively
promoted and made progress with potential partners on projects such
as core equipment for hydrogen refueling stations, including hydrogen
compressors and high-pressure storage tanks and overall EPC solutions,
an operating platform for hydrogen heavy trucks, the Hydrogen Energy
Industry Institute of Henan Province, and technical cooperation with
industry-leading companies in the Netherlands and other European
countries.

In 2021, despite the slow recovery of the market environment, the
Company’s operating results still maintained a profitable trend with
a number of important order contracts achieving breakthroughs or
expecting to continue to grow. The four units of rigs operated for PEMEX,
the national oil company of Mexico, and Abu Dhabi National Oil Company
have been well received by the customers. Contracts for the two units of
rigs operated for PEMEX were successfully renewed by the customers and
the delivery of spare parts for the rigs drew to a close. In response to the
strong demand from the Mexican market, the international region team
set up a new operation and maintenance service center and put it into
operation, with orders keeping pouring in. After more than a year of hard
work, the Company has implemented a new generation of 1,600 tonnes
jack-up wind power installation platform project and secured a large
order for core equipment totalling RMB263 million.

Synergies between the Company and its strategic shareholders are
beginning to emerge. In the past year, CMIC and its major shareholder
CM Industry Group (“CMI") have cooperated and collaborated on major
projects in traditional business, offshore wind power and hydrogen
energy, etc. The cooperation on the new generation of 1,600 tonnes
offshore wind power installation vessel project has achieved the
integration of quality resources within China Merchants Group Limited
("CM Group”). The Company signed a strategic cooperation agreement
with CM Taiping Bay on hydrogen energy industry, planning to jointly
develop, cultivate and expand new energy industry and hydrogen energy
industry in the Taiping Bay Cooperation Innovation Zone in Dalian,
Liaoning Province.
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In 2021, the Company’s business structure was restructured and its
positioning in the new era was clarified — a technology-based international
company involved in both oil and gas energy and green energy industries.
In parallel with its business transformation, the Company has actively
restructured its management team and personnel structure to achieve
a rejuvenated management team and a specialised technical team.
The Company is solidly building up a younger management team that
matches the age structure and ability structure to adapt to development
needs under the new market environment and new businesses.

In 2021, under the leadership of the Company’s core management team,
the annual sales revenue and the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company amounted to approximately US$57.0 million and US$9.2
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 13.4% and 15.5%,
respectively.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
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2021 2020 Change
—EBZ—fF —EEF 2
(Restated)
(& E51))
US$000 US$'000 US$'000 %
FEnr FET FET %
Revenue KA 57,027 65,882 (8,855) (13.4)
Gross profit E A 20,664 11,617 9,047 77.9
Gross profit margin FEH = 36.2% 17.6%
Profit from operations bl 14,604 9,307 5,297 56.9
Net profit attributable to AR AE AR 3R e 1 2 %k A
equity shareholders 9,220 10,916 (1,696) (15.5)
Profit for the year F N A 9,344 10,830 (1,486)
Net profit margin T g ) 16.4% 16.4%
Earnings per share FRABF(EARREE) US0.29 cent  US0.36 cent  US(0.07) cent
(Basic and diluted) 0.293 1l 0.363 1l (0.07)311l (19.4)
Revenue N

The Group's revenue decreased from US$65.9 million (restated) in 2020
to US$57.0 million in 2021. The decrease of revenue was mainly due to
the failure to complete the delivery within the year in accordance with
original schedule as a result of the impact from COVID-19 pandemic and
disruption in supply chain on certain orders; the completed and delivered
orders in 2021 was fewer than the previous year as certain orders for
product were affected by production cycle.
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Segment Information by Business Segments

EEENWE DN

BEBDBE D 20 HER

2021 2020 Increase/(decrease)
—E=-—fF —TTF i,/ Cld)
(Restated)
(B=75))
US$’000 %  US$'000 %  US$'000 %
FEx % F=r % F=r %
Capital equipment and BARZEREE
packages 27,622 48.4 41,830 63.5 (14,208) (34.0)
Oilfield expendables and 8 I FEM K R
supplies 21,034 36.9 17,413 26.4 3,621 20.8
Management and EIE R TIRRE
engineering services 8,371 14.7 6,639 10.1 1,732 26.1
Total revenue W AEET 57,027 100.0 65,882 100.0 (8,855) (13.4)
Capital Equipment and Packages BEXZERES

Revenue recognised in capital equipment and packages projects
decreased by 34.0% from US$41.8 million (restated) in 2020 to US$27.6
million in 2021 due to fewer completed and delivered orders in 2021 than
the previous year as a result of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
on the delivery time as well as the impact of production cycle on certain
orders for product.

Oilfield Expendables and Supplies

The increase of 20.8% from US$17.4 million in 2020 to US$21.0 million
in 2021 for oilfield expendables and supplies was due to continuous rise
in oil prices and a year-on-year increase in orders of oilfield expendables
and supplies in Mainland China and Mexico markets.

Management and Engineering Services

Management and engineering services revenue increased from US$6.6
million in 2020 to US$8.4 million in 2021 mainly due to the upgrade for
offshore rigs and the increase in ancillary services in Mexico market.
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Segment Information by Geographical Regions

RuBEE D 22 HEHR

2021 2020 Increase/(decrease)
—E-—fF —TTF o, Cr )

(Restated)

(& E5))
US$’000 %  US$'000 %  US$'000 %
FEx % FET % FET %

Hong Kong Special AERFRITHE
Administrative Region 26 - 21 - 5 23.8
Mainland China A A i 31,049 54.4 34,334 52.1 (3,285) (9.6)
North America SIS 3,422 6.0 5,240 7.9 (1,818) (34.7)
South America [FEIES 18,287 32.1 19,036 289 (749) (3.9)
Europe BN 178 0.3 842 1.3 (664) (78.9)
Singapore N 736 1.3 2,609 4.0 (1,873) (71.8)
Indonesia EEefd 47 0.1 629 1.0 (582) (92.5)
Middle East R 1,469 2.6 1,206 1.8 263 21.8
Others EHth 1,813 3.2 1,965 3.0 (152) (7.7)
Total revenue CON-H 57,027 100.0 65,882 1000  (8,855) (13.4)
Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin EMNRERER

The gross profit of US$20.7 million for the year of 2021 increased by
77.9% from US$11.6 million (restated) in the previous year. Gross profit
margin increased from 17.6% (restated) in 2020 to 36.2% in 2021.
The increase was mainly due to higher income arising from provision of
management and engineering services and rental income arising from
leases of capital equipment with higher margin and decrease in provision
for inventories made by the Company as compared with last year.

Other Revenue and Net Income

Other revenue and net income decreased from US$5.9 million (restated)
in 2020 to US$4.7 million in 2021. This amount includes rental income,
finance income from lease receivables and various government grants.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by US$0.9 million from
US$4.8 million in 2020 to US$3.9 million in 2021. Selling and distribution
expenses mainly comprised sales staff salaries, commissions, marketing
expenses including travel costs and other sales and promotional
expenditure. The decrease of selling and distribution expenses was mainly
due to persistent cost control.
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General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses decreased from US$21.7 million in
2020 to US$19.8 million in 2021. The decrease was mainly due to staff
streamlining and decrease in business activities.

Other Operating Expenses

The decrease in other operating expenses from US$3.8 million (restated)
in 2020 to US$1.9 million in 2021 due to the absence of provision
for impairment of property, plant and equipment amounting to
US$1,723,000 made in 2020.

Finance Costs
Finance costs, being interest on bank loans and interest on lease liabilities,
decreased from US$0.7 million in 2020 to US$0.5 million in 2021.

Share of Profit of Joint Venture
Share of profit of joint venture increased by US$0.2 million from US$1.2
million in 2020 to US$1.4 million in 2021.

Group’s Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group carried tangible assets of
approximately US$26.0 million (2020: US$45.8 million) being property,
plant and equipment, investment properties and non-current assets
classified as held for sale.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s intangible assets was
approximately US$0.2 million (2020: US$0.2 million). As at 31 December
2021, the Group's interest in associates was approximately US$1.2
million (2020: US$0.3 million), interest in joint venture was approximately
US$43.1 million (2020: US$40.7 million) and deferred tax assets was
approximately US$1.0 million (2020: US$2.5 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current assets amounted to
approximately US$153.2 million (2020: US$157.3 million). Current assets
mainly comprised inventories of approximately US$33.4 million (2020:
US$23.0 million), trade and other receivables of approximately US$64.7
million (2020: US$57.6 million), contract assets of approximately US$Nil
(2020: US$0.3 million) and lease receivables (current) of approximately
US$19.6 million (2020: US$25.6 million).

As at 31 December 2021, amount due from a related company
amounted to US$Nil (2020: US$0.1 million), pledged bank deposits and
time deposits amounted to approximately US$1.9 million (2020: US$4.2
million) and cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
US$33.5 million (2020: US$22.4 million).
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As at 31 December 2021, current liabilities amounted to approximately
US$79.2 million (2020: US$93.4 million), mainly comprised trade and
other payables of approximately US$42.3 million (2020: US$58.0 million),
and tax payable of approximately US$3.3 million (2020: US$3.4 million).
Contract liabilities amounted to US$15.0 million (2020: US$8.7 million)
and current lease liabilities amounted to approximately US$18.5 million
(2020: US$23.4 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had non-current liabilities of
approximately US$2.2 million (2020: US$1.2 million), representing non-
current portion of lease liabilities. The Group monitors capital with
reference to its debt position. The Group's strategy is to maintain the
gearing ratio, being the Group’s total liabilities to total assets, under
100%. The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2021 was 35.4% (2020:
41.2%).

Significant Investment and Disposals

On 29 October 2020, amongst others, Qingdao TSC Oil & Gas
Technology Services Co., Ltd. (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) as vendor, and Qingdao Anshun Jiahe Assets Operations
Co., Ltd. as purchaser, entered into a land disposal agreement for the
land parcel situated at No.10, Hedong Road, Liuting Street, Chengyang
District, Qingdao for the aggregate consideration of RMB157.2 million;
and Qingdao TSC Jindi Technology Assets Co., Ltd. (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) as vendor, and Qingdao Chuang’an
Assets Operations Co., Ltd. as purchaser, entered into a land disposal
agreement for the land parcel situated at No.10—1, Hedong Road, Liuting
Street, Chengyang District, Qingdao for the aggregate consideration of
RMB87.8 million. At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 15 December 2020, the land disposal agreements and the land
disposals were approved by the shareholders. Details of the transactions
are contained in the circular of the Company dated 24 November 2020.
The above disposal transactions were completed in February 2021 and
contributed a gain of US$11,407,000 to the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other significant
investment, material acquisition and disposal during the year.

Future Plans For Material Investments or Capital Assets
Except as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any future plans
for material investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital Structure
At 31 December 2021, there were 3,243,433,914 shares issued and the
Company carried a share capital of approximately US$41,418,000.

Foreign Currency Exchange Exposures

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales and
purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The Group has foreign
exchange exposure resulting from most of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC carrying out production locally using Renminbi while approximately
50% of the Group's revenue was denominated in United States dollars.
As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, no related hedges
were made by the Group.

In order to mitigate foreign exchange exposure, the Company may utilise
foreign currency forward contracts to better match the currency of our
revenues and associated costs in the future. However, we do not use
foreign currency forward contracts for trading or speculative purposes.
The Group will actively explore ways to hedge or reduce currency
exchange risk in future.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 390 full-time staff
in the United States, the United Kingdom, Brazil, Mexico, Singapore,
Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group's remuneration policy
is determined by the salary levels in different regions, employee rank
and performance and the market conditions. The Group also provides
other benefits to its employees, including medical schemes, pension
contributions scheme, share award incentive scheme etc.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

USE OF PROCEEDS AND SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION ON THE ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The Company had received net proceeds of approximately HK$657.3

million raised from Rights Issue. As at 31 December 2021, the use of the
net proceeds from the Rights Issue is set out as follows:

BE-ZE-_—F+-HA=1+—HLEE
CEERENMEBREARREEER
AATEWBIHREE > 1S RIEFELN657 35 5
BT e M—E-—F+-A=+—0  HRHFER
EFEORENT

Actual use of

Unutilised proceeds  Actual use of Unutilised
net proceeds during the  net proceeds  net proceeds
Proposed as at year ended up to as at
use of net 1January 31 December 31 December 31 December
proceeds 2021 2021 2021 2021
i RBE S i
—E-—F —E-_—F —E-—F —E-—F
—-A—-B t=ZA=+t-B +t=ZA=+—-H t=A=+-—H
FERERE ADAFRS LEEMBNE FERERE ZXDARS
BRERR RIERE BERAR BERAR RIEEE
(Note)
(B =)
(HKS$ million) (HK$ million) (HKS$ million) (HK$ million) (HKS$ million)
(BE#R) (BE#R) (BE#ER) (BE#RT) (EE#T)
Subscription of shares REBEERARMDK
of joint venture or other ~ HABIZE
investments 460.1 37.8 37.8 460.1 -
Repayment of debts of the [EiE A& E &
Group 131.5 - - 131.5 -
General working capital of ANEEZ —REBES
the Group 65.7 - - 65.7 -
Total #3 657.3 37.8 37.8 657.3 -
Note: P -

In addition to the information contained in the annual report of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors would like to provide the
following supplementary information to the shareholders and potential investors
of the Company. As at 1 January 2021, net proceeds of approximately HK$37.8
million remained unutilised, all of which were allocated to subscription of shares
of joint venture or other investments. Such net proceeds were expected to be fully
utilised by 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, all the net proceeds from the Rights Issue have been fully
utilised.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. «+ Annual Report 2021

BRARBME-_Z_TFF+_A=+—HILFEZFER
EMHEMN  EFRBRAARRRRRBEREERM
NTHIAEH -R-_ZF-—F—A—R  PFAEREFED
37.8ABETHABA - 2HNEERBEALRAMM K
HthiRE - ZMEREEFEENR T —F+ A=+
—HATRHEA -

RIZZ—F+-A=+—H MEHBAERHEFED
BHHA -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

STRATEGY AND PROSPECTS

Market Review

In 2021, as the global epidemic has been gradually brought under
control, social activities resumed at an accelerated pace and economic
recovery led to a rapid expansion of global energy demand. However,
in terms of oil supply, the reduction in production capacity due to the
epidemic has not been able to be replenished quickly, resulting in the
oil market as a whole being in the undersupply condition in 2021 and
a sharp increase in the international oil prices, far exceeding the pre-
epidemic levels. Recently, the price of U.S. crude oil (WTI) rose from
USD48.52 to USD123.7 per barrel, representing an increase of 155%,
and the price of Brent crude (Brent) rose from USD51.8 to USD127.98
per barrel, representing an increase of 147%.

Looking back on the past year, the sharp rise in the oil prices was mainly
attributable to the following reasons: Firstly, the United States and
other major economies initiated unlimited quantitative easing policies
in response to the epidemic, which led to liquidity spillover in financial
markets, pushing up the prices of oil and other bulk commodities and
making the U.S. stock market reach greater highs. Secondly, the strong
economic recovery in various countries under the loose monetary
environment coupled with the rollout of mass vaccinations have led
to a gradual recovery in social activities and a surge in energy demand
thereupon. Thirdly, the impact of the epidemic and the pressure of
energy transformation have resulted in a continued reduction in upstream
exploration and development investments by oil and gas companies,
limiting the rapid recovery of production capacity. Fourthly, due to the
war between Russia and Ukraine and the influence of geopolitics, the
international market was worried about the supply of crude oil, which has
prompted the rapid rise of oil price. The surging demand and constrained
production capacity growth have jointly contributed to oil inventory
destocking and rising oil prices in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

The offshore drilling market has ushered in a recovery in 2021 with
the rapid rise in oil prices. While current demand for drilling rigs is still
7% lower than the pre-epidemic level and the recovery in demand is
relatively modest, the shrinking drilling rig supply continues to support
higher utilisation rates. In addition, the outlook for the drilling rig market
appears to be cautiously optimistic as owners’ confidence has been
restored by the firming oil prices this year and the demand side of the
drilling rigs is expected to see greater gains in 2022.

Clarkson’s latest drilling market report shows that global demand for
drilling rigs was 474 by the end of 2021, representing an increase of
5% compared to that of 2020, with utilisation rate reaching 79%,
representing a modest year-on-year increase of 4%. Demand for drilling
rigs last year was limited by weak activities from national oil companies in
the Middle East, with the number of active jack-up drilling rigs growing by
4% globally; however, activities in the floating drilling rig market picked
up significantly, representing a growth rate of 6%. And the rebalancing
pace of the supply side remains firm, with the supply of active drilling
rigs falling to 603 at the end of 2021, 9% lower than the figure in early
2020. In addition, Clarkson expects market demand for drilling rigs to
grow by 10% in 2022, reaching 520 by the end of 2022, which would be
2% higher than the pre-epidemic levels.

Global Rig Demand
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

However, whether the viability of oil prices could be remained at the
current high levels in the long run is still uncertain and is subject to a
number of risks. As a fundamental material, the energy’s price increase
will inevitably be transferred to the industrial products and the consumer
goods. The rapid rise in oil prices since 2021 has led to severe and
sustained inflation in major economies around the world. As of December
2021, the U.S. consumer price index (CPI) has maintained a year-on-
year growth rate of more than 5% for eight months, with a year-on-year
increase of 7.12% in CPI in December, hitting a new height in 40 years.
Although the Federal Reserve insisted at the beginning that “inflation
is a temporary phenomenon”, it had to change its attitude in the face
of the rising prices, announcing that it would taper its bond purchases,
and even indicating that interest rate hikes and contraction of balance
sheets would be launched earlier. In response to the stubbornly high
inflation, the Bank of England announced in November that it would raise
interest rates by 5 basis points. In 2022, the major economies worldwide
are expected to enter a tightening cycle. Once the liquidity in financial
markets tightens, bulk commodities represented by oil are expected to
bear the brunt and be challenged by downside risks. Additionally, the
disruption to economic activities caused by the epidemic will be another
major risk. The availability of vaccines in major countries has indeed
effectively prevented and controlled the epidemic, but the epidemic is
still continuing in some areas due to the difficulty in obtaining sufficient
vaccines in less developed regions such as Africa, and therefore the
emergence of variants successively in the second half of the year poses
a challenge to the effectiveness of the vaccines. As social distancing,
community lockdown and other measures remain the most effective
means of stopping the spread of the virus, there is still a risk of a global
economic shutdown in the event of the outbreak of a new epidemic in
the future.

Monthly data on U.S. CPI year-on-year growth in 2021
2021 XEICPIELL 1B A B8

EEENWE DN

AT MEBRESTRPEFEEINSAIDTBERE
FRHZREKR - e RIEAERYE - HEK LES
REEETEFEHEER ° 2021F AR A hE R &
FREKER KT EEEREEEARENRER
ff - HZE20215F128 - ZEEBEEBRIER(CP)AE
LR BRI ES% A ERESER ZA - 12 ACPI
B RT7.12% » BlA0F RS » SR LB A —
FREFAERSTRER]  EEYFELENOY
B EBMETSTERERE  SHEREGEHRE
EERERBRANEHER MATEHESTTH
IR HERTEEMI B SMINESEES - 385t
2022 » RIRFELERE S ARERE - —
BEamiansMtKRE  WAHEARKRNATER
TEH S EEES M NRER o tid - BIBEHK
EEHNTEBER —ARR - REEETZERY
EREEFERBEITERIE  BERRENSER
BEEHNESEHNER  BENE—LibE
BE AR THEFHENREESG  UEEN
BRI T kB - AR RIREE RIS

BIMAREERSERNREUFE  RROBH
HZRIEBERE  B2EEE TSRS RER
B o

8%

7.12%

6.88%

7%

6%

5%

4%

3%

2%

1%

%
202101 2021-02
WNER 2001528

Source: The Federal Reserve

ANIOR : X

2021-03
202143A

2021-04
20214A

2021-05
2021454

2021-06
2021567

2021-07
2021477

2021-08
2021487

2021-09
2021494

2021410 202111 202112
215108 20215E11A 2021512R

TR FFH c EEHEREBFERENRERERAA




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

In terms of the domestic oil and gas market, PetroChina, Sinopec and
CNOOC focused on their major responsibilities of securing national energy
safety, implemented key projects of enhanced reserve and productivity
of oil and gas, and strived to “re-enhance” their abilities of ensuring
oil and gas supply in 2021. The domestic exploration results show two
major characteristics, namely being (1) inclined to marine resources, and
(2) inclined to unconventional resources. On 21 October 2021, General
Secretary Xi Jinping pointed out during his inspection and investigation
of Shengli Qilfield that the construction of petroleum energy is of great
significance to our country, and China, as a major manufacturing country,
must develop the real economy and have the control of energy in its own
hands. The strategic positioning at the national level has strengthened
the belief in the long-term development of domestic oil and gas industry,
and guided its development direction. Intensifying the exploration and
development of oil and gas will become the key task of PetroChina,
Sinopec and CNOOC in the future.

In 2021, while the prosperity of oil and gas industry was on the rebound,
the pace of global energy transformation has accelerated noticeably, with
renewable energy becoming the focus of the market. In recent years, a
number of international oil giants have reinvented themselves, launching
new brand names and logos, and marched towards the journey of
developing into “energy giants” with a brand-new image. Following the
name changes of national oil companies in Denmark and Norway, two
more oil companies have announced their name changes in 2021. On
28 May, Total, a French petroleum giant, announced that its company
name was changed to Total Energies. On 11 October, Qatar Petroleum
officially changed its name to Qatar Energy. Against the backdrop of
transformation of the energy industry, it has become a trend for oil
companies to restructure their traditional business segments and move
towards becoming energy companies.

Offshore wind power, as an important renewable energy source, saw
great development in 2021. In October 2021, China’s offshore wind
power installed capacity surpassed that of the United Kingdom (being
10.5GW) for the first time, making it the world’s largest offshore wind
power market. As 2021 is the last year of the national subsidy for wind
power in China, the country has seen a “rush of installation tide” in
offshore wind power installations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

According to Clarkson'’s latest report, as at early November 2021, a total
of 199 offshore wind farms in the globe have been connected to the
grid and commenced operation at full capacity, with installed capacity
reaching 37.2GW. The global offshore wind power installed capacity will
continue to grow significantly in the next few years, estimated to reach
102GW by the end of 2025. It is expected that by the end of 2021, the
global cumulative installed capacity of offshore wind farms in operation
will reach 43.9GW, of which 11.9GW will be connected to the grid at full
capacity this year. Such growth in installed capacity is mainly driven by
the large number of projects coming on stream in China, where 14 wind
farms with a total of 3.1GW have been operated and what's more, 25
wind farms with a total of 8.3GW have been connected to the grid for
the first time in the first 11 months of 2021.

With the massive construction of offshore wind farms around the world,
wind power installation vessels are hard to find. Clarkson predicts that
by the end of 2025, there will be a demand for more than 9,000 wind
turbines to be hoisted worldwide, of which more than 2,000 will be
placed in waters 40 kilometers away from the shore, as thus the demand
for wind power installation vessels and operation and maintenance
motherships will increase in the next few years. In the first 11 months of
2021, new-building or modification orders for a total of 15 wind power
installation vessels and 13 operation and maintenance motherships
have been signed, with the number of orders signed annually reaching
a record high. Demand for wind power installation vessels and other
construction vessels in the Chinese market remained strong in October
due to the “rush of installation tide”. At the end of October 2021, the
utilisation rate of wind power installation vessels in the Chinese market
reached 98%, while the number of vessels operating in Chinese wind
farms was a monthly average of 69 vessels, an increase of 183% year-on-
year. However, with the withdrawal of central government’s subsidies,
installation operations is likely to slow down in 2022, when demand for
offshore wind power vessels in the Chinese market will decline.

To further reduce development costs, the trend that offshore wind
turbines becoming larger will continue. Through research, Clarkson
predicts that by 2025, the average hoisted single-machine capacity of the
global offshore wind turbines will reach 8.9MW, representing an increase
of 40% as compared to 2020. In August 2021, Mingyang Smart Energy,
a domestic wind power turbine manufacturer, announced the launch
of a 16MW offshore wind turbine, which is the world’s highest single-
machine capacity wind turbine so far.

EEENWE DN

BN RRAMNENHRERET  BHE2021F 1M A9 2
HEZF199EE FRSEE2REHERE  HEK
BEFZ7.2GW - 238 R EREIRIEIE R RKLL
FENHiF KRG R - FEHE2025F RKEH102GW © 78
20215 K - 2RRFIRESG LRSGEESKES
43.9GW - EF119GWRESF 2R =0 - K=
BENFEHHRETENASEERE - 20214
AIER - REBEE14ERSEE31GWTRIRE -
LMD A 25 @RS 4 8.3GWE BIR & INHH48 -

MEERHBEERNE LRSERARERM  BE
THEM—ME K - RN R ARTERTF2025F K - 2k
1A EE9,0008 B REEFHE - HF2,000% &
AW IR E B R40R EUIMNE T - RE L E M
BHESMEOTE KT RREFHERMIER - 202155
THER » 2FEEISHRELTEMEEESH
R E RN T EWER] FEBHEEIELH
2o ARMBREBINET  PEMHI0AMHRAE
2 HE M AN EL M T RS A A SRR EERE RS 20214104
K- PEMERELEMMAEERCY - MIEE
FERERSHMASEED AFH69E - AIER
183% o AMPEEPRBTAARL + REIEEAT4E
20220 BATREE - ERNFEMESE EREMME
kB ATE% o

BTE—SHREMEKR B EREAI B
TEHE - mh m AT FETERT - 520256 © 208
RS mE BRI R EEISOMW - #20204F
IKFHERA0% ° 2021F8 A » BN A E B # 5 3 87
GRS 16MWE LR - ZA 22 EkiE
5B IEERNEHEREE R o

A

T FFH - EHERBFHERNRERERAF




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

The trend that offshore wind turbines becoming larger has placed greater
demands on WTIV and cranes, with newly-built vessels adopting larger
tonnage cranes and a strong demand for crane upgrade on existing
vessels. As predicted by Clarkson’s research, a new cycle of orders for
offshore wind power installation vessels has begun. Since early 2020, a
total of 24 WTIV new-building or modification orders have been signed
worldwide, 10 of which will adopt cranes of no less than 1,200 tonnes
SWL to have the capability of lifting 12MW and above wind turbines. In
addition, there are still 12 letters of investment intent or standby orders
to be effected in the market, where 11 vessels will be fitted with cranes
of not less than 1,200 tonnes SWL. In order to meet the future market
demand for large-scale WTIV, some ship-owners will start upgrading
their existing fleets. From early 2020, the cranes for six WTIV have been
confirmed to be upgraded to 1,600 tonnes SWL, with the upgrade for
one more vessel yet to be effected.

In terms of the hydrogen energy market, the International Energy Agency
forecasted in the “Net Zero by 2050 — A Roadmap for the Global Energy
Sector” that in order to achieve carbon neutrality in 2050, the global
demand for hydrogen will increase from 87 million tonnes in 2020 to
530 million tonnes, with an average annual growth rate of 6.2%. The
Hydrogen Council also mentioned in its “Hydrogen for Net Zero” Report
of November 2021 that in order to achieve the goal of carbon neutrality
and a global cooling of 1.5 degrees, the global demand for hydrogen will
be 660 million tonnes by 2050, accounting for 22% of the final global
energy demand, with an average annual growth rate of 7.0%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

According to the estimate of National Alliance of Hydrogen and Fuel Cell,
the proportion of hydrogen energy in China’s end-use energy system
will increase from 2.7% in 2019 to 6% by 2030 under a peak carbon
emissions scenario, and to 20% by 2060 under a carbon neutrality
scenario, which corresponds to an increase in China’s annual demand for
hydrogen from 33.42 million tonnes in 2020 to 37.15 million tonnes and
130 million tonnes in 2030 and 2060, with an average annual growth
rate of approximately 3.5%. The number of hydrogen refueling stations
and fuel cell electric vehicles will also increase rapidly. By the end of 2020,
a total of approximately 544 hydrogen refueling stations have been built
worldwide, of which 128 were in China, accounting for approximately
23.5%. According to the forecast of the “White Paper on the Hydrogen
Energy and Fuel Cell Electric Vehicle Industry of China (2019)", the
number of hydrogen refueling stations in China will reach 1,500 by 2035
and more than 10,000 by 2050, with an average annual growth rate of
15.6% to achieve this goal.

Forecast of hydrogen consumption in China (10,000 tonnes)
TEESREEERAR (BH)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

At the Central level, hydrogen energy has become a key industry during
the “14th Five-Year Plan” period. The “Outline of the 14th Five-Year
Plan” identifies hydrogen energy and energy storage as a future industry
and will implement incubation and acceleration plans for the future
industry. At the local level, all regions are scrambling for the layout of
the hydrogen energy industry. Recently, more than 30 provincial and
municipal hydrogen energy development plans have been released in
succession, including those for Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, Yangtze River
Delta, Pearl River Delta, Sichuan and Shandong.

At present, China’s energy structure is still dominated by fossil energy,
and non-fossil energy accounts for only 15.9%, which is still a certain
distance from the target of 20% in 2025, and far from the target of
80% in 2060. China has abundant resources to produce hydrogen, and
abandoned electricity resources can be an important source of hydrogen
energy supply. China is the world’s largest renewable energy power
generation country. By the end of 2020, China’s installed capacity of
renewable energy power generation has reached 930 million kilowatts,
accounting for more than 80% of the world. Approximately 100 billion
kWh of electricity discarded each year from renewable energy sources
such as wind power, photovoltaic and hydropower can be used to
produce 2 million tonnes of hydrogen from electrolytic water. Renewable
energy is expected to be the main source of green hydrogen supply in
China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Strategy and Prospects

In 2022, the Company will be positioned as a “technology-based
international company engaged in oil and gas energy and green energy
industries”, aiming to realise the dual-driven development of fossil energy
business and new energy business.

By virtue of the steady development of its traditional oil and gas and
offshore core equipment business, the Company will take full advantages
on the offshore technology, market and talents by integrating upstream
and downstream resources, actively participate in the investment in new
energy, such as global wind power, wave power, LNG, hydrogen energy,
smart electrical automation control, etc. and manufacturing technology
industries, focus on new energy businesses such as offshore wind power
and hydrogen energy, and proactively explore and deploy new businesses.
The Company will implement its development strategies in the following
aspects:

In respect of the offshore management business, the Company developed
smoothly in 2021. The leases of the 2 drilling rigs under the management
of the Company were successfully fulfilled, and the services were highly
praised by customers. In 2022, the Company will continue to seek
opportunities to integrate the performing assets of offshore engineering
and further expand and develop the offshore light management business.
For global hot markets, the Company will continue to adapt to the
market situation by integrating internal resources and market-oriented
means, create more updated cooperation models, and strengthen asset
management business.

In terms of high-end oil and gas and offshore engineering equipment
manufacturing, while continuing to strengthen the sales of drilling rigs
in China, the Company will also expand the application and model
innovation of high-end equipment in the offshore deep-water wind
power field. The Company will keep a close eye on opportunities from
hot market, especially the Mexican market, as well as the domestic
onshore oil and gas market, and seize project opportunities such as rig
reconstruction, sales of drilling equipment and spare parts. The Company
will continue to conduct surveys on market and product demand, increase
investment in research and development, and seek actively to cooperate
with large state-owned enterprises with good credit by adopting flexible
business models such as “lease and sale” or “financial leasing”, so as
to improve profits and generate continuous cash inflows. In the field of
wind power, the Company will start form the 1,600 tonnes wind power
installation vessels project, closely seize market opportunities, build
leading crane, lifting equipment and ship-wide power control products
in China as well as the world, and cooperate with CM Industry to build
branded marine products of CM Group with independent intellectual
property right, so as to enhance the core competitiveness of the overall
market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Currently, more than 30 countries have formulated national hydrogen
energy strategies. The Company encounters a precious growth
opportunity in the hydrogen energy industry. Based on CMIC’s high-
end equipment manufacturing capabilities and experience, the Company
will give priority to the upstream green hydrogen production, identify
all issues under the overall layout of the industrial chain, leverage on its
own advantages and resources, integrate external technologies with the
Company’s existing production capacity and management experience,
and shine a brighter spotlight on the strategic cooperation with social
capital. Meanwhile, by leveraging the advantages of major shareholders
and related resources in respect of application scenarios, the Company
will able to explore the core parts of the industry and solve industry pain
points. Subsequently, the Company will also strengthen the expansion of
downstream application scenarios, and form an internal resource synergy
with numerous ports, industrial parks, logistics parks and highways of CM
Group. At the same time, by serving the hydrogen refueling station as
a hub, the upstream hydrogen production and downstream application
scenarios are closely connected to realize the overall layout of the
upstream and downstream industrial chain.

In 2022, the Company will continue to strengthen coordination with
strategic shareholders and business partners including CM Group, CIMC
Group, Minsheng Trust, CSSC, Shelf Drilling, etc., and seek collaborative
development opportunities in terms of rig asset disposal, rig asset leasing
lease and sales, business development in wind power market, equipment
sales, project financing, expansion in the application scenarios of
hydrogen energy etc.

In 2022, the Company will continue to strengthen works in terms of
brand building and investor relations, improve the Company’s Internet
external window channels, update and strengthen the brand positioning
of “oil and gas energy + green energy”. The Company will enhance
the maintenance of investor relations and market value management,
strengthen the connection between the Company and investors through
regular strategy presentations, video conferences, roadshows, etc., and
strive to achieve positive interaction and development.

PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ASSETS AND
CAPITAL INTEGRATION

In terms of investment direction, the Company will focus on opportunities
of investment in high-tech and digital applications including design,
manufacturing, and research and development of high-end offshore
equipment. Based on the existing offshore management business, the
Company will also seek potential opportunities to expand offshore
management business projects and proactively seek opportunities for
investment and integration in relation to equipment, operation and
maintenance services in the offshore wind power industry, especially
deep-water floating wind power. The Company will continue to expand
its investment in the whole industry chain of hydrogen energy industry,
seeking opportunities for investment and integration in high-value key
segments such as green hydrogen production, fuel cells, hydrogen
compressors and offshore hydrogen production.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In assessing the potential investment or acquisition targets, the
Company will consider a combination of factors such as alignment
with the Company’s strategic plans, synergies, market position and
strengths, management team capability, valuation, track record, financial
performance and potential growth. The Company will gradually improve
its financial performance by expanding its business direction and creating
a new profit model, so as to provide a firm basis for future growth
expansion.

CHANGE IN SHAREHOLDING

The Company was informed by China Merchants Industry Holdings
Company Limited (“CM Industry”) that on 9 July 2021, (i) Great Wall
International Investment V Limited (“GW!I Investment V"), China
Merchants Union (BVI) Limited (“CMU (BVI)”) and an independent
minority limited partner transferred all of their limited partnership
interests in China Merchants & Great Wall Ocean Strategy & Technology
Fund (L.P.) (“Fund LP") to CM Industry; and (ii) China Great Bay Area
Fund Management Company Limited, CMU (BVI) and China Great
Wall AMC (International) Holdings Company Limited (“China Great
Wall AMC") transferred all of their equity interests in China Merchants
GreatWall GP Limited (“Fund GP") (the general partner of Fund LP) to CM
Industry (the “Change in Shareholding”). As at the date of this report,
Fund LP holds 1,530,372,000 shares (representing approximately 47.18%
of the issued share capital of the Company) through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Prime Force Investment Corporation. Following the Change
in Shareholding, CM Industry holds approximately 99.96% of the limited
partnership interest in Fund LP and 100% of the equity interest in Fund
GP. As China Great Wall AMC, GWI Investment V and their controlling
shareholders ceased to have interests in Fund LP and Fund GP, they have
ceased to have any interest in the shares within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong). As at the date of this report, China Merchants Group Limited (1§
B %EE AR 2 A]) indirectly controls approximately 99.96% of the
limited partnership interest in Fund LP and the entirety of the equity
interest in Fund GP, it is therefore a controlling shareholder and the
ultimate beneficial owner of the Company. The Company was advised by
CM Industry that the Executive Director of the Corporate Finance Division
of the Securities and Futures Commission has, pursuant to Note 8 to
Rule 26.1 of the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Shares Buy-backs,
confirmed that no general offer obligation will be triggered on the part of
CM Industry as a result of the Change in Shareholding.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENRE DN

SHARE AWARD PLANS

The Company adopted a share award plan (“Share Award Plan 1”) on 16
January 2015 (the “Adoption Date”). The Share Award Plan 1 does not
constitute a share option scheme pursuant to Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules and is operated at the discretion of the Company. The purpose of
the Share Award Plan 1 is to recognise the contributions of officers and
employees of the Group (the “Eligible Persons”), excluding any director
of the Company (“Directors”) and any other connected persons of the
Group, towards the development of the Group in the past or as incentives
to selected grantees to achieve higher-than-target profits for the Group
and to align the interests of the selected grantees with sustainable
growth and development of the Group.

The total number of shares that may be purchased under the Share
Award Plan 1 shall not exceed 3% of the issued shares (i.e. 21,147,456
shares) at the Adoption Date. A trust has been set up and Treasure Maker
Investments Limited has been appointed as the trustee. Pursuant to the
Share Award Plan 1, the trustee may purchase shares from the public
market out of cash contributed by the Company from time to time.
shares purchased under the Share Award Plan 1 will be held in trust for
the Eligible Persons until such shares are vested in accordance with the
provisions of the rules relating to the Share Award Plan 1. The Share
Award Plan 1 will be effective for a period until 15 January 2025 unless
terminated at the discretion of the Board at an earlier date.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and as of the date of this
report, the trustee did not purchase any shares on the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Share Award Plan 1. In 2021, the Company granted
12,701,000 shares (representing approximately 0.4% of the issued share
capital of the Company) held by the trustee. As at the date of this report,
8,446,456 shares are held by the trustee under the Share Award Plan 1.

The Company adopted a new share award plan (“Share Award Plan 2")
on 31 October 2019 (the “Adoption Date”). The Share Award Plan 2
does not constitute a share option scheme pursuant to Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules and is at the discretion of the Company. The purpose
of the Share Award Plan 2 is to recognise the contributions of officers,
Directors and any other connected persons or consultants of the Group
(the "Eligible Persons”) towards the development of the Group in the
past or as incentives to selected grantees to achieve higher than target
profits for the Group and to align the interests of the selected grantees
with sustainable growth and development of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The total number of shares that may be purchased under the Share
Award Plan 2 shall not exceed 3% of the issued shares (i.e. 92,071,174
shares) at the Adoption Date. A trust has been set up and Treasure Maker
Investments Limited has been appointed as the trustee. Pursuant to the
Share Award Plan 2, the trustee may purchase shares from the public
market out of cash contributed by the Company from time to time. The
shares purchased under the Share Award Plan 2 will be held in trust for
the Eligible Persons until such shares are vested in accordance with the
provisions of the rules relating to the Share Award Plan 2. The Share
Award Plan 2 will be effective for a period until 30 October 2029 unless
terminated at the discretion of the Board at an earlier date.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the trustee purchased
3,040,000 shares in aggregate on the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Share Award Plan 2 at a total consideration of approximately
HK$1,150,000. 2,600,000 shares were granted by the Company to
Eligible Persons in 2021, of which 1,300,000 shares and 1,300,000
shares were respectively granted to Mr. JIJANG Bing Hua and Mr. ZHANG
Menggui, Morgan, each an executive Director, representing 0.08% of the
shares in issue. As at the date of this report, 62,052,544 shares are held
by the trustee under the Share Award Plan 2.

SHARE AWARD INCENTIVE SCHEME

The Company adopted a share award incentive scheme (“Share Award
Incentive Scheme”) on 27 May 2016 (the “Adoption Date of Share Award
Incentive Scheme”). The purposes of the Share Award Incentive Scheme
are (i) to align the interests of Eligible Persons with those of the Group
through ownership of shares, dividends and other distributions paid on
shares and/or the increase in value of the shares; and (ii) to encourage
and retain Eligible Persons to make contributions to the long-term
growth and profits of the Group. The Share Award Incentive Scheme is a
separate scheme from Share Award Plan 1 and Share Award Plan 2 which
are specifically for granting Share awards sourced from existing shares
purchased from the stock market. The Share award Incentive Scheme will
give the Company flexibility in granting awards of new shares. The Share
Award Incentive Scheme will be effective for a period until 26 May 2026
unless terminated at the discretion of the Board at an earlier date.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE DN

The Company has approved the adoption of the Share Award Incentive
Scheme on 27 May 2016 by the shareholders by poll at the AGM,
pursuant to which new shares of not more than 3% of the total number
of issued shares as at the Adoption Date of Share Award Incentive
Scheme (i.e. 21,213,606 new shares) will be allotted and issued to the
Trustee by the Company, and will be held on trust by the Trustee for
the Selected Participants before vesting. For details, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated 7 April 2016 and the Company’s
circular dated 8 April 2016.

No grant was made for the year ended 31 December 2021. As at 31
December 2021, the total number of shares that may be granted under
the Share Award Incentive Scheme is 21,213,606 shares, representing
0.7% of the issued share capital of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

HITES

EEREREERE

Mr. JIANG Bing Hua, aged 71, has been appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 26 January 2022. He is
a co-founder of the Company. He was the Co-Chairman of the Company.
He has been appointed as an executive Director of the Company since
18 March 2005 and is responsible for the Company’s overall strategy
planning and business development. He obtained his bachelor’s degree in
offshore structure engineering from Tianjin University (K& X&) in the
PRC in 1980 and acquired his master’s degree in business administration
from University of Dallas in the U.S.A. in 1993. He has 44 years of
experience in the oil and gas industry. Prior to founding the Company, he
worked for the Sinopec Group, the China National Petroleum Corporation
and China National Offshore Oil Corporation in various positions such as
driller, drilling superintendent, drilling manager, operation manager and
company representative.
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Mr. ZHANG Menggui, Morgan, aged 63, is a co-founder of the
Company and has been appointed as an executive Director since 18
March 2005. He obtained his bachelor’s degree majoring in drilling
engineering from China University of Petroleum in 1982 and acquired
his master’s degree in petroleum engineering from University of Alaska-
Fairbanks in the U.S.A. in 1989 and he received an executive master’s
degree in business administration (“EMBA") from China Europe
International Business School in 2012. He has 35 years of experience in
the oil and gas industry. Prior to founding the Company, he worked for
a subsidiary of China National Petroleum Corporation in China and for
Cook Inlet Region Inc. in Alaska. He is currently a member of several oil
industry associations and professional organizations including the Society
of Petroleum Engineers and the American Drilling Engineers.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEE

Non-executive Directors

EHITES

Mr. WANG Jianzhong, aged 48, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 4 July 2016. He graduated from
Beijing Normal University in China with a master’s degree in Management
and Business Administration in 1998. He started working in 1998 and
he is currently the president of CIMC Raffles Offshore (Singapore)
Limited (“CIMC Raffles”). From 1998 to 2006, he was a senior manager
of capital operation department of China Ocean Shipping (Group)
Corporation (“COSCO"). From 2006 to 2007, he was a deputy general
manager of Taicang CIMC Container Co., Ltd. From 2007 to 2014, he
was the general manager of the enterprise management department of
CIMC, where he notably created and promoted the CIMC “LEAN ONE”
management model based on the LEAN concept which significantly
improved the group’s annual revenue. The LEAN ONE Concept attracted
favourable reviews from the “Harvard Business Review” and “Tsinghua
Business Review"”. From 2010 to 2014, he acted as the secretary general
of group leadership council of CIMC (FEEEBEFARBEEZEE) to
promote upgraded changes for CIMC. From June 2014 to December
2015, he was the vice president of CIMC Raffles. From December 2015
to date, he has been the president of CIMC Raffles. From January 2019
to date, he has been the president of CIMC Offshore Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Mr. LOU Dongyang, aged 46, has been appointed as the chairman
of the Board of the Company with effect from 19 February 2020 and
as a non-executive Director with effect from April 2018. He is also the
chief financial officer of China Merchants Industry Holdings Co., Ltd.
Mr. Lou has served as an engineer in the Chemical Engineering Office
of the Institute of Standardization of Nuclear Industry and as secretary-
general for the National Technical Committee for Standardization of
Radioisotopes (£ BIMET IR =2 E(LFITE EE) from July 1997
to October 2001, as an engineer in the Planning Department in China
Isotope Company from October 2001 to August 2003, as a specialist of
the board of supervisors for Key Large State-Owned Enterprises under the
State Council from August 2003 to August 2004, as deputy director of
the board of supervisors for Key Large State-Owned Enterprises under the
State Council from September 2008 to September 2012, as the assistant
to the department director of the intellectual property administrative
department of China Merchants Group Limited (“CM Group”) from
September 2012 to May 2015, as the assistant to the department director
of the finance department (intellectual property department) of CM
Group from May 2015 to October 2015, and as the deputy director of
the finance department (intellectual property department) of CM Group
from October 2015 to November 2017. Mr. Lou obtained a bachelor’s
degree in applied chemistry from Peking University in 1997 and a master’s
degree in business administration also from Peking University in 2002.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. *+ Annual Report 2021
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRGREEE

Ms. FU Rui, aged 40, is an intermediate economist. She was appointed
as a non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 1 June
2019. Since June 2016, she has been the deputy general manager of the
asset operations department of the shipping investment management
headquarters of China Minsheng Trust Co., Ltd. From April 2007 to June
2016, She worked in the president office of China Classification Society.
Ms. Fu obtained a bachelor’s and master’s degree in Maritime Law from
Dalian Maritime University, in 2004 and 2007, respectively.
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Mr. LIU Jiancheng, aged 46, a senior engineer. He has been appointed
as a non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 23
September 2021. He is currently serves as the general manager of the
science and technology development department of China Merchants
Industry Holdings Limited. He served as a technician of Guangzhou
Shipyard International Co., Ltd. from 2000 to 2001 and an engineer of
Singapore Keppel FELS from 2001 to 2006. He successively served as the
technical supervisor, design manager and deputy chief engineer of China
Merchants Heavy Industry (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. from 2006 to 2013, and
the deputy chief engineer and chief engineer of China Merchants Heavy
Industry (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. from 2013 to 2017. Mr. LIU served as the
deputy general manager of China Merchants Heavy Industry (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. and Yiu Lian Dockyards (Shekou) Limited from 2018 to 2019
and the general manager of China Merchants Offshore Technology
Research Center from 2019 to 2021. Mr. LIU obtained a master’s degree
in ships and offshore engineering from Jiangsu University of Science and
Technology in 2018 and a bachelor’s degree in shipbuilding engineering
from East China Shipbuilding Institute in 2000.
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Mr. HUANG lJin, aged 46, is an engineer. He has been appointed as a
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 23 September
2021. He is the marketing director of China Merchants Industry Holdings
Company Limited. Mr. HUANG served as the assistant to the manager of
the commercial department of COSCO (GUANGZHOU) SHIP REPAIR YARD
CO., LTD from 1997 to 2002, the manager of the planning department
of COSCO SHIPYARD (GUANGZHOU) CO., LTD from 2002 to 2005, and
the deputy general manager and manager of the commercial department
of Yiu Lian Dockyards (Shekou) Limited from 2006 to 2013. He has been
the deputy general manager of the commercial headquarters, the general
manager of the strategic development department and the marketing
director of China Merchants Industry Holdings Company Limited since
2013. Mr. HUANG obtained a bachelor’s degree in mechanical design
and manufacturing from the Marine Machinery Department of Wuhan
Transportation Science and Technology University in 1997.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEE

Independent Non-executive Directors

BAUFHITES

Mr. CHAN Ngai Sang, Kenny, aged 57, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since October 2005. He is a partner
and founder of Kenny Chan & Co., a firm of certified public accountants.
He has over 30 years' experience in accounting, taxation, auditing and
corporate finance and has been involved in several mergers, acquisitions
and initial public offering projects. He holds a bachelor of commerce
degree from the University of New South Wales and is a member of
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand, the Association of
International Accountants, CPA Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
He is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
He served as president of the Hong Kong Branch of the Association of
International Accountants in the years 2012-2015. He is an independent
non-executive director of Zhongyuan Bank Co., Ltd., Minsheng Education
Group Company Limited, Pak Tak International Limited, and Hebei
Construction Group Corporation Limited, all listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. ZOU Zhendong, aged 52, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since May 2018. He also serves as an independent
director of Bestsun Energy Co. Ltd., an A share company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, a senior partner of Sinowing Law LLP, a
senior consultant of Sinowing (Beijing) AMC Co., Ltd., and further and
concurrently as a member of the High-tech and E-Commerce Committee
& International Business Committee of All China Lawyers Association.
Mr. Zou served as a staff member of the Chinese People’s Association
for Friendship with Foreign Countries, as a staff member of China Native
Produce & Animal By-Products Import & Export Corp., as the director of
the 4th Department for China Commercial Foreign Trade Corporation,
and as the partner in charge of international business department and
intellectual property department for Beijing Dacheng Law Firm (also
known as Dentons). Mr. Zou was awarded a bachelor’s degree by the
Renmin University of China in 1992, with major in international politics
and minor in international economics. Mr. Zou was jointly elected by the
Ministry of Justice of the People’s Republic of China and Lord Chancellor’s
Office of the United Kingdom to work and train in London.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. *+ Annual Report 2021
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRGREEE

Mr. CHEN Weidong, aged 66, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from June 2018. Mr. Chen has over
30 years of experience in the offshore oil and gas industry. He supervised
and organised the publication of four books on petroleum economics
and geopolitics. Mr. Chen is now serving as guest professor at Renmin
University of China, invited researcher at Energy Security Center of
Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences, dean of Minde
Institute and chair of DFS Energy Consultant (Beijing) Ltd. Mr. Chen used
to work as chief energy researcher of CNOOC Energy Economics Institute,
executive vice president, secretary of board of directors, and chief
strategy officer of China Qilfield Services Limited (a H-share company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from 2002, stock code:
2883). Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in geophysical exploration
studies from Ocean University of China (formerly as Shandong College of
Oceanology) in the People’s Republic of China in 1982 and an MBA from
Peking University in July 2001. He graduated from China University of
Political Science and Law with a master diploma in July 2005.
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Mr. SUN Dongchang, aged 68, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since 12 November 2019.
He is currently a professor-level senior engineer of Shengli Petroleum
Administration Bureau (B 54 M E /D), oil field senior expert, expert
on government special allowance of the State Council, senior expert
of the Drilling Technology Institute, Shengli Petroleum Administration
Bureau (BsH) A M &I @B I T EHTEFT), and consultant of State Oil
Drilling and Exploitation Equipment and Tool Standardization Committee
(EEARERZENT AEZELZEE). He was the deputy secretary
general of Chinese Society of Naval Architects and Marine Engineers
during the period from 2003 to 2013. During the period from 2001 to
2013, he served as a professor-level senior engineer, the chief engineer,
the vice president and an oil field senior expert at the Drilling Technology
Institute, Shengli Petroleum Administration Bureau (/i & 12 /= #
T Ef55F%). During the period from 1996 to 2001, he served as a senior
engineer and the chief engineer at the Drilling Technology Institute,
Shengli Petroleum Administration Bureau (B Fff & 12 /3 & 3 T 2147
7£B). During the period from 1987 to 1996, he worked as an engineer,
senior engineer and the director at the Marine Research Branch of Drilling
Technology Institute, Shengli Petroleum Administration Bureau (B 775
B B TEM TS FFT). During the period from 1975 to 1987,
he worked as a technician, assistant engineer and the deputy director at
the Shallow Sea Office of Drilling Technology Institute, Shengli Petroleum
Administration Bureau (57 HE 12 B ¥ H TEMFTFZEE). Mr.
Sun holds a degree majoring in oil field equipment from Department of
Mechanics, China University of Petroleum and a master’s degree in naval
architecture and ocean engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEE

Senior Management
SREEE

Mr. JIANG Bing Hua, aged 71, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company from 26 January 2022. He is a co-founder of the Company.
He was the Co-Chairman of the Company. He has been appointed
as an executive Director of the Company since 18 March 2005 and is
responsible for the Company’s overall strategy planning and business
development. He obtained his bachelor’s degree in offshore structure
engineering from Tianjin University (X2 AX2) in the PRC in 1980 and
acquired his master’s degree in business administration from University of
Dallas in the U.S.A. in 1993. He has 44 years of experience in the oil and
gas industry. Prior to founding the Company, he worked for the Sinopec
Group, the China National Petroleum Corporation and China National
Offshore Oil Corporation in various positions such as driller, drilling
superintendent, drilling manager, operation manager and company
representative.
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Mr. ZHANG Menggui, Morgan, aged 63, is a co-founder of the
Company and has been appointed as an executive Director since 18
March 2005. He obtained his bachelor’'s degree majoring in drilling
engineering from China University of Petroleum in 1982 and acquired
his master’s degree in petroleum engineering from University of Alaska-
Fairbanks in the U.S.A. in 1989 and he received an EMBA from China
Europe International Business School in 2012. He has 35 years of
experience in the oil and gas industry. Prior to founding the Company, he
worked for a subsidiary of China National Petroleum Corporation in China
and for Cook Inlet Region Inc. in Alaska. He is currently a member of
several oil industry associations and professional organizations including
the Society of Petroleum Engineers and the American Drilling Engineers.
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Mr. WANG Yong, aged 58, has been the President of the Company
with effect from 28 April 2016. He is responsible for the daily operations
and business activities of the Company. He is also the director and
chief executive officer of a subsidiary, OIM Pte. Ltd. He joined the
Company in April 2012 as the senior Company Vice President and
Company Chief Operation Officer. Prior to joining the Company, he
was the general manager for Weatherford International China. In his 17
years with Weatherford International, he held several managerial roles
including global business alignment manager and business development
manager. He started his career in the oil industry as a drilling engineer
for China National Petroleum Corporation after graduating from the
China Petroleum University in 1982. He also spent five years in the
China Petroleum University teaching drilling engineering courses before
completing his first master’s degree in petroleum engineering from the
Louisiana State University in 1993. He also holds an EMBA from the China
Europe International Business School.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. *+ Annual Report 2021

EBERE 58 BE-E—AFWNA-t+ /B
BAARBE HABEAARBEEEREKE
1€ - IR AK B A RIOIM Pte. Ltd. 2 =3 B R HIT
B BR-ZE——FMNANALXRR  EESHA
AEIBEEAFEFEER c MARQTZA - #
AWeatherford International ChinaZ #4818 - %1
Weatherford Internationali@ & 174 85/ © BH#EZ
EEERE  RREREFREALCEREBBEL
B BR—NANZFRIPBEARREBEEEEETR
BEAHAAREERR CERIRM  ARELEA
HITEZBEERE FIARPEABEAREHRASF
ERIERE ZBR-AN=ZFREHEIASHHL
ML AKBESHE —FAMIRBELTSEAM - KT
F AR B AR R B R T 7 22 B ERAS EMIBA ©



PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRGREEE

Mr. XIE Shaohua, aged 50, has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer
of the Company with effect from 1 July 2018. Mr. Xie graduated from
Central University of Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree
in Economics and received a bachelor’s degree in Economics at the
University of International Business and Economics and a master’s degree
in Business and Administration at the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Xie is a Chinese senior accountant and a member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. From November 2002 to May 2007,
he served as the deputy general manager of the finance department of
Sinotrans Limited (H shares stock code: 00598). From September 2007
to June 2018, he was appointed as deputy general manager and chief
financial officer of Sinotrans Shipping limited (stock code: 00368).
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Mr. CHEN Yungiang, aged 55, has served as the chief executive officer
of TSC (China) since 2005 and has been appointed as the Vice President
of the Company with effect from 15 February 2020. Mr. Chen is also
fully in charge of the Group’s operations in the PRC and is responsible
for the sales and promotion of the Group’s products in the PRC market.
Mr. Chen studied industrial enterprise management at the Hangzhou
University of Electronic Science and Technology (1 & FRHEAZ2). Mr.
Chen joined the Group in August 2001 as a general manager of HHCT,
a subsidiary of the Group, in Xi'an, China till 2005. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Chen worked at Xi‘an Petroleum Exploration Instrument
Complex (FA% A M &R &34 ) for 14 years in various positions,
including assistant factory head, supervisor of electric driven production
lines and manager of its sales branch for drilling rigs.
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Mr. HUAI Zengmin, aged 49, has been appointed as the Vice President
of the Company with effect from 26 January 2022. He is also the Chief
Executive Officer of a subsidiary of the Company, China Merchant Green
Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd, and is in full charge of hydrogen business
of the Company. Mr. HUAI graduated from Tiangong University with
a master’s degree in management in 2000. Mr. HUAI is a fellowship
member (FCCA) of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. HUAI joined the Company in December 2009 and has successively
served as CEO Assistant of the Group, Deputy General Manager of China
Region, and General Manager of Operation Management Department
of the Group. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. HUAI served in the oil
& gas and offshore engineering industry for 24 years, and successively
held various positions in technology and sales in CSSC Tianjin Xingang
Shipbuilding Industry Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Tecway and Converteam.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRES

The Board hereby presents its report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the Year. It will expand to the
offshore management and operation business continuously.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Company'’s results for the Year is set out in the financial statements
on pages 122 to 226.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends for the
Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

A dividend policy is adopted by the Company which sets out the
principles to be followed for paying dividends to the shareholders of the
Company. When considering to make dividend payments, the Board shall
take into account factors including but not limited to the Company’s
financial results, general business conditions and strategies, and statutory
and regulatory restrictions. There is no assurance that dividends will be
declared or distributed in any particular amount or in any form for each
year or in any year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the five financial years ended 31 December 2021, are extracted from
the audited financial statements of the relevant annual reports of the
Company, and are set out on pages 8 to 9. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements of the Group for the Year.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
POLICIES

CMIC considers a high degree of social responsibility, environmental
protection, safety and sustainable economy as key factors in ensuring
business continuity and success. The Company has introduced effective
tools to ensure full implementation of social, safety and environmental
policies within the Company to ensure compliance with the relevant legal
and regulatory requirements as described in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Details of the Company’s ESG performance for the Year can be found in

"Environmental, Social and Governance Report” as set out on pages 81
to 111 of this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company during the Year are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE AWARDS

The movements in the Company’s authorised and issued share capital
during the Year are set out in note 28(b) to the financial statements.
Details of the Company’s Share Award Schemes are set out in note 27 to
the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities,
except that the trustee of the Share Award Plan, pursuant to the terms
of the rules and trust deed of the Share Award Plan 2, purchased on
the Stock Exchange a total number of 3,040,000 Shares at a total
consideration of about HK$1,150,000.

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, pursuant to the terms of the rules
and trust deed of the Share Award Plan 1 and 2, the trustee of the Share
Award Plan 1 and 2 did not purchase any Shares on the Stock Exchange.
As at the date of this report, the trustee held a total 70,499,000 shares
(representing approximately 2.17% of the issued share capital of the
Company) under the Share Award Plan 1 and 2.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the Year are
set out in note 28(a) to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 126, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company as at 31 December 2021, as computed in accordance
with the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
US$86,719,000 (2020: US$92,073,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the Year, sales to the Company’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 45% of the Company'’s total sales for the Year and sales to
the largest customer included therein accounted for approximately 17%
of the Company’s total sales.

Purchases from the Company’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 37% of the Company’s total purchases for the Year
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein accounted for
approximately 14% of the Company’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company'’s issued share capital), had any beneficial interest in the
Company’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Company did not make any donations.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. JIANG Bing Hua (ceased to act as Co-Chairman and appointed as
Chief Executive Officer on 26 January 2022)

Mr. ZHANG Menggui, Morgan

Mr. CONG Yongjian (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 19 July 2021)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. WANG Jianzhong
Mr. LOU Dongyang (Chairman)
Ms. FU Rui
Mr. LIU Jiancheng (appointed on 23 September 2021)
Mr. HUANG lJin (appointed on 23 September 2021)
Mr. QIAN Zewei (resigned on 15 April 2021)
Mr. REN Zhigiang
(appointed on 15 April 2021 and resigned on 19 July 2021)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. CHAN Ngai Sang, Kenny
Mr. ZOU Zhendong

Mr. CHEN Weidong

Mr. SUN Dongchang

Mr. Cong Yongjian resigned as an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company; and Mr. Ren Zhigiang resigned as a
non-executive Director of the Company due to re-designation of duties
following the change in shareholding in the Company. Besides, Mr. Qian
Zewei resigned as a non-executive Director of the Company due to his
other work commitments.

In accordance with Article 86 and Article 87 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Jiang Bin Hua, Ms. Fu Rui, Mr. Liu Jiancheng, Mr.
Huang Jin and Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny will retire by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Jiang Bing Hua has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 28 November
2005 and expiring on 27 November 2008, renewable automatically for
successive terms of three years from 28 November 2008, 28 November
2011, 28 November 2014, 28 November 2017 and 28 November 2020
respectively, unless terminated by either party giving to the other not less
than three months’ prior written notice. Mr. Jiang is entitled to an annual
remuneration of US$313,000 for the position of executive Director,
and will not receive additional remuneration for the position of Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. Jiang is entitled to variable remuneration comprising
of ex-gratia annual bonus, which is subject to his performance and the
performance of the Company and the approval of the Remuneration
Committee.

Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan has entered into an appointment contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing on 22 June
2020, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association, unless and until terminated by not less
than three months’ prior notice in writing served by either party to the
other. Mr. Zhang is entitled to an annual remuneration of US$313,000.
Mr. Zhang is entitled to variable remuneration comprising of ex-gratia
annual bonus, which is subject to his performance and the performance
of the Company and the approval of the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Wang Jianzhong has entered into an appointment contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 4 July 2016
and expiring on 3 July 2019, renewable automatically for successive
terms of three years from 4 July 2019, subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association, unless
terminated by giving either party to the other not less than three months’
prior written notice. Mr. Wang is entitled to receive emoluments of
HK$120,000 per annum.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

Mr. Lou Dongyang has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 1 April 2018 and
expiring on 31 March 2021, renewable automatically for successive terms
of three years from 1 April 2021, subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Articles of Association, unless terminated by giving either party
to the other not less than three months’ prior written notice. Mr. Lou has
waived entitlement to annual remuneration.

Ms. Fu Rui has entered into an appointment contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 1 June 2019 and expiring
on 31 May 2022, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association, unless terminated by giving
either party to the other not less than three months’ prior written notice.
Ms. Fu Rui has waived entitlement to annual remuneration.

Mr. Liu Jiancheng has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 23 September
2021 and expiring on 22 September 2024 subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association,
unless terminated by giving either party to the other not less than three
months’ prior written notice. Mr. Liu Jiancheng has waived entitlement to
annual remuneration.

Mr. Huang Jin has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 23 September
2021 and expiring on 22 September 2024 subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association,
unless terminated by giving either party to the other not less than three
months’ prior written notice. Mr. Huang Jin has waived entitlement to
annual remuneration.

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny has entered into an appointment
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 20 October 2005 and expiring on 19 October 2008, renewable
automatically for successive terms of three years from 20 October 2008,
20 October 2011, 20 October 2014, 20 October 2017 and 20 October
2020 respectively, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association, unless terminated by giving
either party to the other not less than one month’s prior written notice.
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny is entitled to receive annual emoluments of
HK$120,000.

Mr. Zou Zhendong has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 18 May 2018 and
expiring on 17 May 2021, renewable automatically for successive terms of
three years from 18 May 2021, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the Articles of Association, unless terminated
by giving either party to the other not less than three months’ prior
written notice. Mr. Zou Zhendong is entitled to an annual remuneration
of HK$120,000.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

Mr. Chen Weidong has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 5 June 2018 and
expiring on 4 June 2021, renewable automatically for successive terms of
three years from 5 June 2021, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the Articles of Association, unless terminated
by either party giving to the other not less than three months’ prior
written notice. Mr. Chen Weidong is entitled to an annual remuneration
of HK$120,000.

Mr. Sun Dongchang has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 12 November
2019 and expiring on 11 November 2022, subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association,
unless terminated by either party giving to the other not less than three
months’ prior written notice. Mr. Sun Dongchang is entitled to an annual
remuneration of HK$120,000.

Except for Mr. Jiang Bing Hua and Mr. Zhang Menggui, no other
Directors are entitled to any variable remuneration.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory obligations.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company’s subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent companies was a party or were parties and in
which a Director or his/her connected entities had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year under
review or at any time during the Year.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEREE

EENREEN @
BRERLAECEHARRNVYRTAR BTN
FRARHBE-_ZE-_—FXAmBER ' A=
£ AT FXNARNBETVESHER=F ¥
BRBEGERMARESRREREMT  BRIEHE
F—FRE—AREETPR=ZEANELEEBA
FLAKLLE - BRITE S £ B U F E B £ 120,000
=5

FREEECHARATLEZAER BN
E+—-—A+-BRE-_FE-_—_F+—-—F+—8BE
W AT WAREBESEREIGESER
BRET BRIFEF—FES—HFEETLR=A
AMELEERANTIURIL - KRB LEHFEWER
FEEEN4£120,0008 7T °

BRERELERKRSELELEN BEEMEREE
R EMFBFMH -

ARRERSFEUFATESERELTRAUE
33MGHER A H 2B - ARBIMRA/BILIEH
TEEZFDBBIL

EEHMERARRAREEFAMBRRATBEARAT
R —FARABAXNHEECEEEERINMRLEZ
MRIEEH

BEEAYN
BEREMEEREEADA 2 BREMERLH E
BOAORAFEIT LKA -

EENRE  RERENHZERER

MEBEFERKFEANEEERE - KA RSk E
BRA - ARMBARKESARMELENES
FEAEERERNAERFERNE RS - NEAR
RAIXBABZEERS  wHRAH -

TR FFH c EEHEREFREENRERERAA




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEREE

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Under the Company’s articles of association, every Director or other
officer of the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses or liabilities which
he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his
office or otherwise in relation thereto. A directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance is in place to protect the directors and officers of the Company
against any potential liability arising from the Company’s activities which
such directors and officers may be held liable.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Performance and Key Financial Indicators
Details of business performance and key financial indicators are set out in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report.

The key financial and business performance indicators comprise
profitability growth, return on equity and gearing ratio. Details of the
profitability analysis are shown in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section of this annual report. The Company’s return on equity,
based on profit attributable to equity shareholders to total equity
attributable to equity shareholders, decreased from 8.1% in previous year
t0 6.2% in the Year, which was mainly due to a year-on-year decrease in
the amount of revenue and the tax related to sale of land. The Company’s
gearing ratio, calculated based on total liabilities to total assets, decreased
from 41.2% in 2020 to 35.4% in the Year. The Company will continue
to safeguard its capital adequacy position, whilst maintaining a balance
between business growth and risk management.

A review of the business of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
Year is set out in the sections “Chairmen’s Statement” and “CEQ’s
Statement”, “Market Review” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

Sustainability Initiatives

The Company is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social
governance essential for creating a positive framework for motivating
staff and promoting sustainable relationships with customers, suppliers,
service vendors, regulators and shareholders, as well as contributing
to the community in which we conduct our businesses for creating a
sustainable return to the Company. The Company has implemented
energy saving practices in offices and branch premises where applicable.

The Company has compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated with
the continuing responsibility to monitor adherence to and compliance
with applicable legal and regulatory requirements. These policies and
procedures are reviewed regularly. As far as the Company is aware, it had
complied in material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group for
the Year and up to the date of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Sustainability Initiatives (Continued)

Further discussion and analysis of the Company’s principal activities as
required by Schedule 5 the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”) can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out in pages 18 to 40 of this
annual report. This discussion forms part of this Report of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by the Directors as referred to in Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long Position in Ordinary Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEREE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long Position in Ordinary Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company: (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had registered an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors as referred
to in Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” above, the paragraphs headed “Share Award Plans”
and “Share Award Incentive Scheme” contained in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report and note 27 to the
financial statements, at no time during the Year, any rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company was granted to any Director or their respective spouse or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which is
required to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and has been recorded in the register of interests required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEREE

FERREEMATRKRG RAEERS
PHEERAE

RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—8 ' WTALTRARHA
RO RBERDT - BEREBE(ERRBAEEG)E
XVEPEE2 K35 SBAM AR A1 5B I B AR K 35 5 & 4
BIEFI 3361 AR ARA R B MERTAE

Approximate

percentage
Capacity and Number of of the
Name of Shareholders nature of interest shares shareholding
(Note 4)
BRELD
BRgE/ 8 SR RERNEE RIPEE BOl
(GED)]
China Merchants Group Limited (Note 1) (“CM Group”) Corporate 1,530,372,000 47.18
BEREEARAR M) (BEREE) NG|
China Merchants Steam Navigation Company Limited (Note 1) (“CM Steam Navigation”) Corporate 1,530,372,000 47.18
BERaHRN AR R ME) (BBt NG
China Merchants Industry Holdings Co., Ltd (Note 1) (“CM Industry”) Corporate 1,530,372,000 47.18
BRRIXEEARAR M) (HERI%) NG
China Merchants Great Wall GP Limited (Note 1) (“Fund GP") Corporate 1,530,372,000 47.18
BERREEABRAR M) (ELLBEEAL AH]
China Merchants & Great Wall Ocean Strategy & Technology Fund (L.P.) (Note 1) (“Fund LP”)  Corporate 1,530,372,000 47.18
BERRIESFHBERERELES (1) (ESEAREBAD NG|
Prime Force Investment Corporation (Note 1) (“Prime Force"”) Beneficial Owner 1,530,372,000 47.18
Prime Force Investment Corporation (F{z£1) ([ Prime Force]) ExBAA
Minyun Limited Beneficial Owner 284,751,000 8.78
Minyun Limited ExAA
China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd. (Note 2) ("CMIC Group”) Corporate 185,600,000 5.72
REEREEREAGRROERRAMZ) (HEKE]) NG
China International Marine Containers (Hong Kong) Ltd. (Note 2) (“CMIC HK") Beneficial Owner 185,600,000 5.72
hEBRSEEEREB)ERAAMED (HEFA]) ERBEEA
China State Shipbuilding Corporation Limited (Note 3) (“CSSC") Corporate 174,394,797 5.38
FEMHREARAR (H53) (FE) A7
(CSSC Huangpu Wenchong Shipbuilding Company Limited (Note 3) Corporate 174,394,797 5.38
("Huangpu Shipbuilding”)
R EE ORI B R A R (i E3) (B mE ) NG
Wah Shun International Marine Limited (Note 3) (“Wah Shun") Beneficial Owner 174,394,797 5.38
E BB MM A R 2 7 (FaE3) ([Z)E]) ERAA
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

1.

Prime Force is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is
wholly-owned by Fund LP and Fund LP is therefore deemed to be interested
in the 1,530,372,000 shares that Prime Force is interested in under Part XV
of the SFO.

Fund GP is the general partner of Fund LP and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the 1,530,372,000 shares that Fund LP are interested in under
Part XV of the SFO.

CM Industry holds 99.96% of the equity interest in Fund LP, and is a
wholly owned subsidiary of CM Steam Navigation which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of China Merchants Group Limited (B BE£B AR 2 7)) (“CM
Group”). CM Steam Navigation and CM Group are deemed to be interested
in the 1,530,372,000 shares that Fund GP is interested in under Part XV of
the SFO.

CIMC Group holds the entire issued share capital of CIMC HK. Therefore,
CIMC Group is deemed to be interested in the 185,600,000 shares held by
CIMC HK under Part XV of the SFO.

CSSC holds 35.5% of equity interest of CSSC Offshore & Marine Engineering
(Group) Company Limited (7R #4/8% B[ % 2 AR AR A 7), which in
turn holds 54.54% of equity interest of Huangpu Shipbuilding. CSSC also
holds directly 14.48% of equity interest of Huangpu Shipbuilding, which
directly holds 99% of issued shares of Wah Shun. Therefore, CSSC and
Huangpu Shipbuilding are deemed to be interested in the 174,394,797
shares held by Wah Shun under Part XV of the SFO.

The percentage is calculated on the basis of 3,243,433,914 shares in issue as
at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, there was no person
(other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company whose
interests are set out under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above) had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules. Particulars of these transactions are also set out in
note 30(c) to the financial statements, with respect to which the Directors
confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of those
transactions which are subject to the reporting requirements under Rule
14A.71 of the Listing Rules are summarised as follows:

Master Supply and Purchase Agreement

On 5 November 2020, the Company entered into a master supply and
purchase agreement (the “Master S&P Agreement”) with CM Industry,
pursuant to which the Group will purchase structural parts and other
components (“Structural Parts Procurement”) from and sell equipment
used on offshore platforms etc. (together with installation and ancillary
services) (“Products Sales”) to the CM Industry and its subsidiaries, other
than the Group, effective from the commencement date to 31 December
2022.

As Fund LP is interested in 1,530,372,000 shares of the Company
(representing approximately 47.18% of the issued share capital of the
Company), it is therefore a controlling shareholder of the Company.
CM Industry is ultimately wholly-owned by CM Group and Fund LP is
indirectly controlled by CM Group. Therefore, CM Industry is an associate
of CM Group and Fund LP and a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. As a result, the transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The annual caps under the Master S&P Agreement for each of the period/
year ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are US$40 million,
US$100 million and US$100 million, respectively, for the Products Sales
and US$5 million, US$16 million and US$16 million, respectively, for the
Structural Parts Procurement. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
the aggregate amount of the Products Sales and the Structural Parts
Procurement under the Master S&P Agreement were approximately
US$1,157,000 and US$NIl, respectively.

The Directors expect that the transactions will promote cooperation
between both parties in the future and will expand the operational
revenue, increase liquidity, reduce transaction costs effectively and
increase net profit of the Group, thereby improving the performance of
the Company during the countercyclical period of oil and gas industry,
which is in line with the Company’s long-term strategy to become a
cost-competitive provider of integrated solutions for oil and gas drilling
industry.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Master Supply and Purchase Agreement (Continued)

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules) in respect of each of the Products Sales
(including the annual caps) and the Structural Parts Procurement (including
the annual caps) exceed 5% and HK$10 million, each of the Products
Sales (including the annual caps) and the Structural Parts Procurement
(including the annual caps), constitute a continuing connected transaction
for the Company and is subject to the reporting, announcement,
independent shareholders’ approval and annual review requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. At the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 31 December 2020, the above
transactions were approved by the independent shareholders.

Details of the above transactions are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 15 December 2020.

Master Lease Framework Agreement

On 18 May 2021, the Company entered into a master lease framework
agreement (the “Master Lease Framework Agreement”) with CM
Industry, pursuant to which the CM Industry and its subsidiaries (“CM
Industry Group”) have agreed to lease certain premises to the Group for
a term commencing on 18 May 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023.

As Fund LP is interested in 1,530,372,000 shares of the Company
(representing approximately 47.18% of the issued share capital of the
Company), it is therefore a controlling shareholder of the Company.
CM Industry is ultimately wholly-owned by CM Group and Fund LP is
indirectly controlled by CM Group. Therefore, CM Industry is an associate
of CM Group and Fund LP and a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. As a result, the transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The annual caps, which represent the total value of right-of-use assets
relating to leases to be entered into by the Group in each year under
the Master Lease Framework Agreement for each of the period/year
ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023 are HK$10 million. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the actual transaction amounts were
approximately HK$2,625,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Master Lease Framework Agreement (Continued)

The Company is of the view that the leases under the Master Lease
Framework Agreement will benefit the Group by (i) saving rental payment
by the Company, such that both the Group and the CM Industry Group
can enjoy economies of scale and maximise cost efficiency; and (ii)
providing the Group with stable and successive premises based on fair
and reasonable terms for its operations and business.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios of the annual caps
under the Master Lease Framework Agreement for the coming period/
years ending 31 December 2023, exceed 0.1% but less than 5%, the
transactions contemplated under the Master Lease Framework Agreement
are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements
but exempt from the circular and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the above transactions are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 18 May 2021.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued their unmodified letter containing the auditor’s findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in note 30(c) of the Annual Report in accordance with
Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEREE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Share Award Plans”
and “Share Award Incentive Scheme” contained in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report and note 27 to
the financial statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the Year are set out in note
30 to the financial statements. Save as disclosed therein, there were
no other transactions to be disclosed as related party transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates was
interested in any business that competes or may compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Company, or had any other conflict
of interests with the Company during the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
number of issued Shares (being the prescribed minimum percentage of
public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the
Listing Rules was held by the public as at the date of this annual report.

AUDITORS

KPMG will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 63 to 80 of this annual report.

On Behalf of the Board
CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.

LOU Dongyang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the “Corporate Governance Report” for
the Year.

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
to the Group's healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to
identifying and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate
to the needs of its business. Therefore, the Company has continued to
incorporate the essence of corporate governance into its management
structure and internal control procedures, with the aim to maintaining
the highest standard in integrity and ethics in all aspects of our business
activities, and to ensure the full compliance of our operations with
applicable laws and regulations. By achieving high standards of corporate
governance, the Directors believe that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the rapid growth of the Company
and for safeguarding and maximising the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company had complied with
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standards of dealings as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by the Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
forth in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, the Directors had complied with such code of conduct
and the required standards of dealings as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on behalf
of shareholders. The Board is of the view that it is the Directors’
responsibilities to create value for shareholders and safeguard the best
interests of the Company and the shareholders by discharging its duties
in a dedicated, diligent and prudent manner on the principle of good
faith. The Board is also responsible for decisions in relation to the overall
strategic development of the Company’s business. Responsibilities
in relation to daily and execution of the strategic business plans are
delegated to each of the executive Directors and the management.

Details of the backgrounds and qualifications of the executive chairman of
the Company, other Directors and senior management are set out under
the “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company. The executive Directors have sufficient experience to hold their
positions so as to carry out their duties effectively and efficiently.

The Board comprises eleven Directors up to the date of this annual
report, including two executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Bing Hua
and Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan; five non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Lou Dongyang (Chairman), Mr. Wang Jianzhong, Ms. Fu Rui, Mr.
Liu Jiancheng and Mr. Huang Jin; and four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny, Mr. Zou Zhendong,
Mr. Chen Weidong and Mr. Sun Dongchang. As over half of the
members of the Board are non-executive Directors and they have not
participated in the management of the Company, the Board is able to
exercise independent judgement on corporate affairs and provide the
management with a diverse and objective perspective on issues. The
Board believes that the current board size is appropriate based on the
Company’s present circumstances and will periodically evaluate the need
for increasing or decreasing its size.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board had at all times
complied with the requirement of the Listing Rules of having at least
three independent non-executive Directors (more than one third of the
Board members) and at least one of them having appropriate professional
accounting or related financial management expertise. To the knowledge
of the Directors, there are no financial, business, family or other material
relationships among the Board members.

The Articles clearly state the procedures for the appointment of new
directors, re-election and removal of directors. Under the Articles, the
Board may from time to time appoint a director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any such new director shall hold
office until the next following general meeting of the Company (in the
case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next annual general meeting
of the Company (in the case of an addition to the Board) and shall then
be eligible for re-election at the same general meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

All Directors (including non-executive Directors) have entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years. They are
subject to retirement by rotation once every three years, and re-election
in accordance with the Articles, unless and until terminated by not less
than three months’ prior notice in writing served by either party on the
other. Pursuant to Article 86 and Article 87, Mr. Jiang Bing Hua, Ms. Fu
Rui, Mr. Liu Jiancheng, Mr. Huang Jin and Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny
will retire, and being eligible for election, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 20 May 2022.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent persons.

The primary functions of the Board include:

e deciding on the overall strategies, overseeing operational and
financial performance and formulating appropriate policies to
manage risk exposure associated with realising the strategies and
goals of the Company;

e  being held accountable for the internal control system of the
Company and responsible for reviewing its effectiveness;

o being ultimately responsible for preparing financial statements and
discussing the performance, financial conditions and prospects of
the Company in a balanced, clear and comprehensible manner.
These responsibilities are applicable to interim and annual reports
of the Company, other price sensitive announcements published
according to the Listing Rules and disclosure of other financial
information, reports submitted to regulatory bodies and information
discloseable under statutory requirements;

o executive Directors oversee the overall business of the Company
and are responsible for the daily operations of the Company and
the Board is responsible for affairs involving the overall policies,
finances and shareholders of the Company, including, among
others, financial statements, dividend policy, significant changes to
accounting policies, annual operating budgets, material contracts,
major financing arrangements, principal investment and risk
management strategies. Implementation and execution of such
decisions are delegated to the management; and
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SRERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

o regularly reviewing its own functions and the powers conferred
upon executive Directors to ensure appropriate arrangements
are in place. The management is well informed of its power and
duties with clear guidelines and instructions, in particular regarding
situations under which reporting to the Board is necessary and
matters that require the approval of the Board before any decisions
or commitments can be made on behalf of the Company.

Members of the Board held a total of six meetings during the Year.
The Directors were given sufficient time and information relating to the
matters to be discussed in the Board meetings in advance, or except
in special circumstances, consent to short notice is sought at times of
urgency. In addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for
the Directors to seek independent professional advice, in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense in discharging their duties to
the Company. Moreover, the Company Secretary prepares minutes and
keeps records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board
meetings. The Company Secretary also keeps the minutes, which are
open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

Matters considered and approved by the Board during the Year mainly
related to (i) review of the Company'’s business; (ii) approval of the 2020
annual results; (iii) approval of the 2021 interim results; (iv) appointment
of non-executive directors of the Company; (v) continuing connected
transactions.

The Directors have complied with the code provision of the CG Code
for the convening of Board meetings which requires Board meetings to
be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals
and held Board meetings for the purpose of reviewing the financial
performance, results of each relevant period, material investments and
other matters of the Company that require resolutions of the Board.
Simultaneous conference calls are used to improve attendance when
individual Directors cannot attend the meeting in person.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the executive chairman of the
Company held a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of the other Directors.

Mr. Lou Dongyang is the chairman of the Board and Mr. Cong Yongjian
was the chief executive officer of the Company until his resignation on
19 July 2021. The division of responsibilities between the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company are clearly
divided to ensure a balance of power and authority and to reinforce their
independence and accountability. After the resignation of Mr. Cong
Yongjian, the other members of the Board (except the Chairman) then
discharge the duties of the chief executive officer until a suitable person is
found by the Company to fill the vacancy. Thereafter, Mr. Jiang Bin Hua
has been appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company with
effect from 26 January 2022.

Mr. Lou Dongyang, being the chairman of the Board, is responsible for
leading the Board and ensuring that the Board functions effectively and
performs its responsibilities, that Directors receive, in a timely manner,
adequate information which is accurate, clear, complete and reliable and
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings.
The chairman also encourages Directors to actively participate in, and to
make full contribution to, the Board’s affairs so that the Board can act in
the best interest of the Company.

Mr. Cong Yongjian, being the then chief executive officer of the
Company, was responsible for the daily operations of the Company,
execution of business policies, strategies, objectives and plans as
formulated and adopted by the Board and leading the management of
the Company.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development
Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company
continuously updates the Directors on the latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance with and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. The Company issue circulars or guidance notes to
Directors and senior management where appropriate to ensure awareness
of best corporate governance practices.

During the Year, the Directors were committed to complying with the
code provision A.6.5 on Directors’ training. Some Directors attended
seminars and conferences, which covered topics including the new
Companies Ordinance, taxation, quality control, and corporate
governance issues, and provided a record of training they received for the
Year to the Company.
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EEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development
(Continued)

A summary of training received by the Directors during the Year set out
as follows:

EEg®m
BEECBESIIRRR®E)

EENAFENEIBZEIMT

RRELLE

Type of
Name of Director Training
EEpNE $E R
Executive Directors:
HITES
Mr. JJANG Bing Hua A, B
BRELLE
Mr. ZHANG Menggui, Morgan A B
REERE
Non-executive Directors:
FHITES :
Mr. WANG Jianzhong B
TEFELE
Mr. LOU Dongyang B
ERGEE
Ms. FU Rui B
Bt
Mr. LIU Jiancheng (appointed on 23 September 2021) B
K EER S —FNAZT=BEEZE)
Mr. HUANG Jin (appointed on 23 September 2021) B
BEAERZZE—FNAZ+=HEZD)
Independent non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES :
Mr. CHAN Ngai Sang, Kenny B
PRER A S
Mr. ZOU Zhendong B
IR =
Mr. CHEN Weidong B
PRETR L&
Mr. SUN Dongchang B

Notes:

A attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums relating to directors’
duties or other relevant topics

B: reading seminar materials, newspapers, journals and updates relating to

economy, the latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements
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EEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) EEgwm

Directors’ Attendance of Meetings ESHEERNER

Details of attendance of meetings of the Board, audit committee, RAFE  EEHEAQFMRITHE
remuneration committee, nomination committee and compliance ZEB8& - HHELES ERZE8ENE
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held  EANMBEEASHE AT :

during the Year by the Directors are set out as follows:

FE EX
RZEgg

=
=8

Number of meeting(s) attended/held
HEBAEERY
Audit Remuneration Nomination Compliance General
Name of Director Board  Committee Committee = Committee = Committee Meeting
B M R’RE ER &S
EEns Esg Z£ZE8 ZEB% Z£ZE8 ZE® &

Executive Directors:

HITES

Mr. JIANG Bing Hua 6/6 2/2 il

BRERE

Mr. ZHANG Menggui, Morgan 6/6 2/2 171

REETE

Mr. CONG Yongjian (resigned on 3/3 11
19 July 2021)

BXKBREERZZ=—FtA+NH
BHE)

Non-executive Directors:

FHTES

Mr. WANG Jianzhong 2/6 1/1

FEPEE

Mr. LOU Dongyang 6/6 2/2 2/2 1Al 1”71

ERBRE

Ms. FU Rui 3/6 11

Lk

Mr. LIU Jiancheng (appointed on 11 N/A
23 September 2021)

2l aE(R=2=—FNA TEA
Z+=REZ{E)

Mr. HUANG Jin (appointed on il N/A
23 September 2021)

BEREM-_TE-_—FNA=-1+=H TEA
EZE)

Mr. QIAN Zewei (resigned on 2/3 N/A
15 April 2021)

BEEAEM-_T-_—FMA+HA TEA
BHE)

Independent non-executive
Directors:

BYFHITESE:

Mr. CHAN Ngai Sang, Kenny 6/6 2/2 2/2 2/2 171 171

PRERE o

Mr. ZOU Zhendong 6/6 2/2 2/2 2/2 171

BIRR L&

Mr. CHEN Weidong 6/6 2/2 2/2 2/2 1Al 1Al

PBRETR &

Mr. SUN Dongchang 6/6

RRETE
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SRERRE

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal actions against the Directors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ching Fan KOO has been engaged by the Company as its Company
Secretary. The primary contact person of the Company with Ms. Koo
is Mr. ZHAQ Yinan, the Secretary to the Board. Ms. Koo attended no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year in
accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established on 20 October 2005 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. It comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zou Zhendong
(chairman), Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny and Mr. Chen Weidong, and one
non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Lou Dongyang, and one executive
Director, namely Mr. Jiang Bing Hua.

The role and function of the remuneration committee include the
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits-in-kind, pension
rights and remuneration payments (including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment), or making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of Directors. The
remuneration committee will consider and give due regard to both the
performance levels of, and a fair reward for, the chairman, executive
Directors and the senior management and to the interest of all the
shareholders of the Company in light of the financial and commercial
circumstances of the Company from time to time. No Director shall be
involved in deciding his own remuneration. The remuneration committee
also made recommendations to the Board on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.

During the Year, the remuneration committee held two meetings and
proposed to consider the remuneration packages of the non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors. The chairman
of the remuneration committee reported the findings and provided
recommendations to the Board after the meetings.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to code provision
B.1.5, the annual remuneration of members of the senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

EEERRE

FWEES =
BEEMEFBHINNEE T BHHRKRMEET - wtoh -
BEFAGXEBASK  BE_T_—F+A=
T—HALFE SREZABFEME S REI WM
T~

Number of
Remuneration band (US$) individuals
B < 5 & (= 5T) A8
Less than 100,000 2
4> $2100,000
100,000 to 200,000 2
100,000% 200,000
200,001 to 300,000 1
200,001%300,000
300,001 to 400,000 2

300,001%400,000
400,001 to 500,000
400,001%500,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established on 5 June 2009 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code and comprises a
majority of independent non-executive Directors. Currently, the members
of the committee are Mr. Lou Dongyang (chairman), a non-executive
Director, Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan, an executive Director and, Mr.
Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny, Mr. Zou Zhendong and Mr. Chen Weidong,
each an independent non-executive Directors.

Prior to the establishment of the nomination committee, the executive
chairman and chief executive officer were mainly responsible for
identifying suitable candidates for members of the Board when there
was a vacancy or an additional director was considered necessary.
The executive chairman or chief executive officer would propose the
appointment of such candidates to the Board for consideration and the
members of the Board would review the qualifications of the relevant
candidates for determining the suitability of such candidates for the
Company based on his/her skills, qualifications, experience, background,
leadership and personal integrity. The decision to appoint a director may
be approved by a majority of the members of the Board.

The nomination committee has adopted a diversity policy concerning
the diversity of Board members. In determining the Board composition
and selecting candidates for the Board, the Company considers a range
of elements, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
All appointments of the Board are made based on merit and objective
standards while fully taking account of the benefits of a diverse Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEEcontinued) REZES#Z
‘&\f The selection of candidate will be based on a range of diversity elements.  FUER NIEBEER —ZINZ TR E » FERGRME
N\ The final decision will be made according to the strengths of the AZHEHLEBAEESHRNE R M ELR
h candidate and his/her contribution that would bring to the Board. JE e
As at the date of this report, the Board comprises eleven Directors, of RAMREHH  EFERE+—RLEE EPMNZ
which four are independent non-executive Directors and five are non-  ABIIFNITEE AR AFNTES » HMee
executive Directors, which enables critical review and control of the — Z9{F L BE ¥kt RESIRE12AT2 - BIER] - B4 -
A\ management process. The Board is also characterised by significant ZHEXSERFEIEME  EESHBEMREZ T
: diversity whether in terms of gender, nationality, professional background 1t °
N or skills.
\N\Y
\ ‘ During the Year, the nomination committee held two meetings to ~ RAFE ' RREEGRITT2REZ @ Wil ilH
A\ V review and discuss the appointment of the non-executive Directors, and FFHITEENEZTL MEESEHES - IERZE
7 made recommendations to the Board. The chairman of the nomination GF*FEAERANESSERE R IWIFLHEZE -
/ committee reported the findings and provided recommendations to the
Board after the meetings.
: A{f The roles and functions of the nomination committee, include assessing ERZE MBS MBS HBIIERNTES
Y the independence of independent non-executive Directors, identifying  RIEIM » BB A BN A EREERAMEETS LT
N\ suitably qualified candidates for appointment to the Board and selecting WL BMIEEAN SHEENEZTHEFHZTIER
\\ or making recommendations to the Board in respect of such candidates ERAEZSELEE BRI ES S 22HE - BE
\NQ and/or the appointment or re-appointment of Directors, reviewing &K UREREBES L (LB ERERABEDN
A\ Y the structure, size and composition of the Board and monitoring the — #17 - PMEHZ T AT @ IRRZ B ST {HRIE AR
implementation of the Board diversity policy and the nomination policy. HBHEZEHEE G  HHLLEHB IO E R
'/ Before an appointment is made, the nomination committee evaluates the ~ WERZ T HHIFI X —BZITHMTEOBE R HH
candidates or existing Director’s skills, knowledge and experience on the it - FEEEIER T » A e @ EFIINTERYE A
. Board and prepares a description of the role and capabilities required for — EIRE A - WEISEFERE AL  ELZE MR
) '-_:\5_\_;‘ a particular appointment based on its evaluation. If deemed appropriate,  EFEIEX FEE & IMMETF(E -
; \t‘{,: external consultants may be engaged to identify suitable candidates. After

identifying a suitable candidate, the recommendations of the nomination
committee will then be submitted to the Board for assessment.

\
V

L\

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE EREEY

The compliance committee was established on 20 October 2005 with ERZEE@N _TTHFEF+A_+HMKY @ TIAE
written terms of reference. The constitution of the committee shall E#|FTHBEHE - TE S 2 HAKBET LHHE
comply with the requirements of the Listing Rules from time to time. It BN Z#HTFE - HH=ZF2FF WERBLE(E
comprises three Directors, namely, Mr. Lou Dongyang (chairman), Mr. &)  BRERERE BRERLEUR—ZHMKE -
Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny, Mr. Chen Weidong and one other member, BB S £HEK ©

namely, Mr. Ma Yaohui.

The general responsibilities of the committee are to ensure compliance ZE& 2 —METABRARQFETHAEMRED
of the Company with all relevant laws and regulations and the Listing K &R M EWREI((HEEIERE]) - ZE S IM/ARITHE
Rules (“Relevant Regulations”). It shall also fulfill other responsibilities as ~ BE R N R E 2 EMET »

required by the Relevant Regulations from time to time.

During the Year, the compliance committee held one meeting and to WAEE @ EREZ8SAMINEE  BELERA
review and monitor the compliance of the disclosures in the Company’s R RIFEERE NP HREPDRIBEMBERIEL 2
annual report and interim report with the Relevant Regulations. The ¥%E - EREZE @I FENCRAEESSREWE
chairman of the compliance committee then reported the findings and ~ R H#:% -

provided recommendations to the Board after the meeting.
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company. The Directors must ensure that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 112 to 121 of this annual
report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditor and reviewing non-audit functions
(if any) performed by the external auditor, including whether such non-
audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect on
the Company. During the Year, the Company paid an aggregate of
approximately US$460,000 (2020: US$460,000) and US$Nil (2020:
US$81,000) to the external auditor for its audit services and non-audit
services, respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. To ensure on going
compliance with the CG Code, the audit committee’s terms of reference
takes into account the Board'’s responsibility to review the adequacy of
financial reporting staff and oversee the audit committee. According to
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the audit committee comprises a minimum
of three members with a majority of independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny (chairman), Mr. Zou Zhendong
and Mr. Chen Weidong, all of whom are independent non-executive
Directors, with at least one member having the appropriate professional
qualifications of accounting or related financial management expertise
pursuant to Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The main duties of the audit committee include the following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for accounting and financial reporting, compliance
officer or external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to
the work performed, fees and terms of engagement, and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor; and

() To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

During the Year, the audit committee held two meetings to consider
and review the interim and annual results of the Company, discuss the
risk management and internal control system with the management,
discuss the audit plan and strategy, discuss compliance with applicable
accounting standards and requirements and ensure adequate disclosure.
The audit committee also met the external auditor twice without the
presence of the executive Directors to discuss the audit plan and scope
and identified significant risks and other areas of focus to be addressed
by the external auditor.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the audit committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external

auditor.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2021 has
been reviewed by the audit committee.
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INDEPENDENCE OF THE COMPANY FROM ITS
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS IN RESPECT OF
BUSINESS, PERSONNEL, ASSET, ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE AND FINANCE

Before the change in shareholding of the Company on 9 July 2021, the
direct substantial shareholders of the Company were China Great Bay
Area Fund Management Company Limited and China Merchants Industry
Holdings Co., Ltd. (their controlling shareholder are China Merchants
Group) and Great Wall International Investment V Limited (it is wholly-
owned by GW Asset Management). After the aforesaid change in
shareholding of the Company, China Great Bay Area Fund Management
Company Limited and Great Wall International Investment V Limited were
no longer substantial shareholders of the Company. The Company has
an independent and complete business system and has the capacity for
independent operation in the market. The Company is independent from
its substantial shareholders in respect of its business, personnel, asset,
organisational structure and finance, and they independently proceed
with audit and assume the responsibilities and risks.

(1) Business: The production system, purchase system, auxiliary
production system and sale system of the Company are independent.
The Company owns the intangible assets such as industrial property,
trademark, non-patent technology independently.

(2) Personnel: The labour, personnel and salary management
institutions of the Company are independent and the system is
complete. The Company and the substantial shareholders do not
share staff or senior management. All of the Company’s staff and
senior management are paid by the Company.

(3) Assets: The property rights between the Company and the
substantial shareholders are clearly delineated, with complete
procedures. The property rights are managed by the Company
independently. The substantial shareholders do not occupy or
govern the assets of the Company nor interfere in its operation
management of the assets.

(4) Organisational structure: The Board, the Compliance Committee and
other internal institutions of the Company are complete and operate
independently. The substantial shareholders perform their rights
according to the law and assume the corresponding obligations
without directly or indirectly interfering with the business activities
of the Company by overstepping the general meeting.

(5) Finance: The finance department, financial accounting system,
financial management system and bank account of the Company
are independent and the Company pays taxes independently.

During the reporting period and as at date of this annual report, the
Company has not provided undisclosed information to the substantial
shareholders and the de facto controllers, and there were no other non-
compliance governance issues.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for risk management and internal control of the
Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and ensuring
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Board, through the established internal audit function, conducts
annual reviews on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system, including risk management and internal control, as well as
the resources of the Company’s financial and accounting reporting
departments, in accordance with the applicable legal requirements and
other internal control regulatory requirements. The reviews include
evaluation methods of the Company’s qualifications and experience, as
well as staff training and management budget.

During the Year, the Company has implemented a series of internal
control system procedures and measures to strengthen internal control.
The Board believes that there are no material internal control deficiencies
that may affect the shareholders and an effective and adequate risk
management and internal control system is in place to safeguard the
assets of the Company. The Company will continue to enhance the
system to adapt to changes in the business environment.
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With respect to internal control for the handling and dissemination of
inside information, the Company shall assess the circumstances under
which inside information may arise from time to time and disclose inside
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information as soon as reasonably practicable in accordance with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The Company
conducts its business affairs with close regard to the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission and imposes a strict prohibition on the unauthorised use
of confidential or inside information by Directors, employees and other
relevant persons (such as external service providers and project working
team members).

It is the Company’s development strategy to establish a risk management
system covering all the business segments to monitor, assess and manage
various risks in the Company’s activities. The management has identified
the following major risks and conducted regular review of industry,
policy, operational and currency risks.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Maijor Risk Identified

Industry risk: In a market environment with over supply, oil and gas
companies have been facing increasingly fierce competition, and lower
demand will have certain impact on the operating results of the Company.
In light of this, the Company will enhance operational efficiency, enrich
its product portfolio, improve its product quality, put emphasis on value
maximisation and increase its competitiveness. In addition, the Company
has diversified its business from oil and gas exploration and development
to plugging and abandonment and decommissioning.

Government policy risk: The oil and gas industry is one of the industries
that the PRC Government supports in its 5-year development plan. The
development of the Company will be affected by the direction of such
policies which will have certain impact on the level of support from the
PRC Government.

Operational risk: As stated in this annual report, the Company is
dependent on a few customers. If the Company fails to secure new
contracts from such customers, the Company’s operating results will be
affected significantly. In light of the above, the Company has established
certain level of alliance with these customers to maintain long term
relationships and to enhance the Company’s future development.

Currency risk: The value of Renminbi is affected by the global economic
and political environment which has led to a recent significant
depreciation. As an international company, the Company usually signs
its sales contracts in US dollar while production costs are denominated
in Renminbi as its major production center is located in Mainland China.
Given the nature of our business, the Company will use more domestic
bank borrowings in order to mitigate its currency risk.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted by show of hands. As
such, all the resolutions set out in the notices of the general meeting will
be voted by poll. Representatives of the share registrar of the Company
are appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast at
each general meeting. The results of poll are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company, respectively.
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"N COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND HERRZBBERBREERE®
% INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)
"\{ The Board recognises the importance of good communication with ZEZE€RALEMEBRRETRIFERTHEE - K
\ all shareholders. The general meetings of the Company provide an 2RQARAZBREARECABRENEEZSREEBRE - P
Y opportunity for communication between the shareholders and the Board. R A® L BHESEAFEH(BIEEETERES)
Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial  IREBURZE - EESIFENFHEZESHER
issue, including the election of individual Directors. The chairman of the ZE &€ FFH(EREHER)ZZTES(MER)Z
Board as well as the chairmen of the remuneration committee and audit ~ E 5k BERIIMNFAZEAD - BERE A S LEIZIR
committee or, in their absence and where applicable other members of [ ©
the respective committees together with the external auditor are available
to answer questions at the general meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationships AR R TEMBEEGEE 2 BEBLBER - FrE=
with its investors. Designated Directors or senior management maintain SR EIE A EHKEREE LD E FHHYE -
regular dialogues with institutional investors and analysts to keep them BBV R EFEBEARRZERE - AARSHKEEZ
abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are & s{E H 5525 N i B 2 [BI fE -

dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains A # B X B8 - AR 7R KX A8
a website www.cmicholding.com, where extensive information and  www.cmicholding.com » A& FREEREFH AR
updates on the Company’s business development and operations, AlZ¥BKERENEL « PHEEUEAREMBEE -
financial information and other information are posted.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS IR ERAER

Annual reports and interim reports offer comprehensive information £ & ¥ &5 Fl A1 HA 3R 25 mt 4248 K B 78 X IR (I AR B R 4t
to the shareholders on operational and financial performance whereas & HEWEEL @ MERBEASARREHEES
annual general meetings provide a forum for the shareholders to MEEXRELRE—ERE - ARBZRERZ
exchange views directly with the Board. The general meetings of the ABRENEESIREBBEEE - KRR ZHITIE
Company provide an opportunity for communication between the HEZEXKEHFE TR _TE-_—FRARA-_+—AE
shareholders and the Board. The executive Chairman and board members ~ {TZREAE » W EIZRIE o

of the Company attended the general meeting held on 21 May 2021 to

answer questions.

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions ~ A{RFER R FEMERN - SEEAMEREER
are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the RIEZEFHERBRRAE LIREBIIRZEE -
re-election of the retiring Directors.

PROCEDURE FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE BRERBERREINAREZEF
AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of the Company, any one or more  RIEARRRMBIFESSIE - FHHEARQAFE HE KA R
W\ shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the ~HRARQAFME FRER) T DN +5 2 —RE (A
N Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company  THAI2FE AL @ UM R EEEEBERES
‘A (hereinafter referred to as “the requisitionist(s)”) shall at all times have the AR RZEESHWE  EXEZTSEHARTMNR
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, HRA&FFIAENEEEHBEBEENETWEE  MZ
to require an extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be called by EZFERBERXZEFEMQ)EAREIT - MES R
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition and ~ EERIER 2 BRI -+ —QNARNBHEZ% © 8
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such  ZFARIUERAFARNETEHEE  MAZEEE X
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit, the Board fails RS HEREBAELEZ —AERY - Af
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) AN ARIAIZEAMIE -

may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the

requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to

the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS AND
PUTTING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Save for the following, shareholders do not generally have a right
to propose new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who
wish to propose a resolution may request the Company to convene
an extraordinary general meeting following the procedures set out
in the paragraph headed “Procedure for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting” above.

Where notice of a general meeting includes the election of Directors of
the Company, any shareholder of the Company may propose the election
of any person as a Director of the Company at the general meeting.
Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of the Company, if a shareholder
wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director for election as a
Director at any general meeting (including the annual general meeting),
the shareholder should lodge a written notice (the “Nomination Notice")
at the Hong Kong share registrar or the head office of the Company
and the minimum length of the period during which such notice is given
shall be at least seven (7) days. If the Nomination Notice is submitted
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election, the period for lodgment of the Nomination Notice shall
commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7) days
prior to the date of such general meeting. The Nomination Notice must
be accompanied by a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/
her willingness to be elected as a Director and such notice must also state
the proposed person’s biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules.

Shareholders who put forward proposals at general meetings or wish
to make inquiries to the Board about the Company may contact the
head office in Hong Kong and/or the Hong Kong share registrar of the
Company:

Room A, 31/F, Tower 2
Kowloon Commerce Centre
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road
Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong

Head office in Hong Kong:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Hong Kong share registrar:
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established various communication channels with
investors to provide updates on the latest business development and
financial performance to maintain a high degree of transparency and to
ensure equal dissemination of information.

The Company has always adopted a positive attitude in communicating
with investors, the media and potential investors to increase the
Company’s brand recognition, strengthen investors’ understanding
and recognition of the Company, and ultimately realise the increase in
shareholders’ value.

The communication methods adopted by the Company include, but are
not limited to:

Annual and interim reports

Online annual report

Annual general meeting and extraordinary general meeting
Investors’ Roadshow

Announcements, press releases and circulars
Voluntary announcements

Media Press Conference

Investors’ Conference

Industry analyst communication: The Company encourages analysts
to publish their analysis reports actively to help investors evaluate the
Company and its development opportunities and challenges.

Investor Relations Email: ir@cmicholding.com

The Company's website: www.cmicholding.com, which is the Company’s
main medium of marketing promotion media, displays comprehensively
the information about the business and activities of CMIC.

Social Media: The Company also has a WeChat official account, on which
it publishes company news, industry news, short films, photos and major
events.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the Year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STANDARDS OF THE REPORT

This Environmental, Social, and Governance report (the “Report”)
provides an annual update on the various aspects of environmental,
social, and governance performance by CMIC Ocean En-Tech
Holding Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) in the year ended 31 December
2021 (the "Year").

The content of this Report was compiled in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” as set
out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, as well as the actual
conditions of the Group. This Report is published annually in each
financial year together with the annual report of the Company for
the year.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON
THE COMPANY

The Company and its global subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in asset investment and operations management
of offshore engineering platforms, clean energy and technology
investments, and the design, manufacture, installation and operation
of the products and services of onshore and offshore drilling
industries, including rigs, oilfield expendables and engineering
services.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
VISION, ASPIRATIONS, POLICIES AND
STRATEGIES

The Group is dedicated to becoming an outstanding corporate
citizen in each of the communities it operates in around the world.

The Group recognises a high degree of social responsibility and
awareness in environmental sustainability as key factors to the
enterprise’s persistent growth and success.

The Group pursues the values of tolerance, openness, reliability and
cooperation in both business development and social activities, and
has introduced effective measures to ensure fulfilment of its social
responsibility and implementation of its environmental policies in
full. These areas of work involve the Group’s employees, business
associates, supply chain partners, and community groups related to
the Group’s business.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BiR - HEREREKSE

lll. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
VISION, ASPIRATIONS, POLICIES AND
STRATEGIES (continued)

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed to
adhering to ethical standards and fulfils its corporate social
responsibility through the implementation of policies in 5 key
CSR areas, which requires all of the Group’s employees to actively
participate and support. In particular, in terms of sustainable
development of the environment, the Group focused on
developing products and technologies for green energy services
such as offshore wind power and hydrogen energy, and gradually
expanded the business scale of the green energy sector through
strategic transformation, so as to facilitate the early realisation of
global climate action of net-zero emissions. Part VIII of this Report
describes the Group’s performance in the environmental, social and
governance aspects for the Year.
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IV. STATEMENT OF THE BOARD

To manage various ESG aspects effectively and efficiently, we have
built a solid governance structure for the Group’s ESG management
which involves a ESG governance structure for which the Board
assumes the ultimate responsibility and the professional ESG
working group (the “Working Group”) implements comprehensive
supervision.

The Board and the Working Group are fully responsible for the
Group's ESG strategy and reporting, including the formulation of
the Company'’s overall ESG strategy, identification and evaluation
of ESG risks, review of ESG management policies, review of ESG
plans and goals, and consideration of ESG performance assessment.
The Working Group is responsible for execution of daily operations
and reporting major ESG issues to the Board. With this ESG
management framework and clear governance procedures, the
Board can effectively monitor ESG-related opportunities and risks
within the Group.

From time to time, we obtain regularly updated information on
environmental, social and governance trends and regulations and
industry practices. Based on the external social and economic
macro-environment and the Company’s development strategy,
we have always given priority to stakeholders’ views, opinions and
suggestions on environmental, social and governance management,
and will conduct a materiality assessment and discussion on the
formulation of environmental, social and governance strategies,
determine the Company’s risks and opportunities in respect of
environment, society and corporate governance, and take the
management and improvement of key issues as sustainable
development strategy. Through the abovementioned efforts,
we have been able to better understand and manage our
environmental, social and governance risks, and achieve our goal of
creating higher value for all stakeholders.
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V.

VL.

SCOPE OF THE REPORT

The content of this Report summarizes the Group’s performance
in terms of corporate social responsibility based on the reporting
principles of “materiality”, “quantification”, “balance” and
“consistency”. Materiality: Stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment were conducted regularly to identify material ESG
issues, and to ensure that these issues are addressed in the report;
Quantification: The data presented in this Report has been carefully
collected for standards and methodologies used for calculation of
key performance indicators; Balance: Both positive and negative
sides of the performance have been presented in a transparent
manner; Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the disclosures,
data collection and calculation methods have remained consistent
throughout the years to facilitate comparability over time. In order to
optimize the reporting process and expand the scope of disclosure
of the report, the Group has been proactively formulating effective
ESG related policies, recording relevant data and implementing
and monitoring various measures. This Report illustrates the ESG
performance of the Group in achieving sustainable development in
the future.

This Report covers the main production and operating activities
that the Group deems significant (i.e. the environmental, social and
governance conditions in Qingdao, the principal place of operation).
The Group's operating sites in Qingdao are as follows:

(1) Qingdao TSC Offshore Equipment Co., Ltd. (TSC-OE); and

(2) TSC Oil and Gas Services Group Holdings Ltd (TSC-QD).

Unless otherwise specified, this Report covers the environmental,
social and governance progress and performance in the Year.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The sustainable operation of the Group requires the joint efforts
and support of all stakeholders. The interests, expectations and
concerns of all parties are inseparable from the performance of the
Group. Therefore, the Group’s goal is to create an environment for
sustainable development that is beneficial to enterprise development
and the well being for stakeholders.
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B -HERERERE

VI. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued) N BFHENSHEHE
The Group has always strived to promote communication with AEE-—BERNEDEBHERBR - AEEHB
its stakeholders. The Group maintains open and continuous TFEBRLZHTHRBHEAMAREOE  BERRER
communication with relevant stakeholders including stakeholders wEE EE TP - ttRAK - SERET
and investors, employees, customers, community organisations, HEASRIBARFENER  LERAHE
media and government bodies through various means to B WERTHRASCENEEANEHE - &
achieve transparency and develop mutual understanding of each BEFNHEBEER  AKBEROHER - TS
other’s aspirations for corporate social responsibility. Through REBRIE e RkEREHERR - RFRER
communication with stakeholders, the Group is committed to FIE BB N EREEIE S E AR IR FT 23R &Y &
identifying, assessing and managing environmental, social and b R B ENCENREZERNE
governance-related risks, while ensuring that there is an effective 1=
internal monitoring system in place to deal with the risks identified,
so that the Group can achieve sustainable development.
Key stakeholders Main communication channels
FERFHE FTEBERE
Customers Visits and meetings
®P wRaem|
Telephone conferences
BHEEE

Customer questionnaires

BEFPRBHRAE

E-mails

BFEM4
Employees Employee newsletters
8T 8 T

Group intranet

SENEPBLE
Community organisations Volunteer activities
Pzt HELEH

Charitable activities

RELH

Unscheduled meetings with each organisation

EEXABTEREE

Shareholders and investors Press release/business newsletter

BRERZEEE T EBm
Annual reports
FREME
Company website
NGIEER
Circulars

Conference and communications
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VI. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG
reporting by understanding the key ESG issues that are important
to the business of the Group. All the key ESG issues and key
performance indicators (“KPIs") are reported in the Report according
to recommendations of the ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules) and the Global Reporting Initiative Guidelines.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG
aspects through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification - Industry Benchmarking

° Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of
relevant ESG reports of the local and international industry
peers.

e The materiality of each ESG area was determined based on the
importance of each ESG area to the Group through internal
discussion of the management and the recommendation of
the ESG Reporting Guide.

Step 2: Prioritisation - Stakeholder Engagement
e The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG areas
identified above to ensure all the key aspects to be covered.

Step 3: Validation - Determining Material Issues

e Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal
discussion among the management, the Group’s management
ensured all the key and material ESG areas, which were
important to the business development, were reported and in
compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out during the reporting period,
those important ESG areas to the Group were discussed in this
Report.
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VI. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In 2021, the Group conducted a comprehensive materiality
assessment. This involved conducting interviews and/or surveys
with internal and external stakeholders to identify which areas have
the most significant operating, environmental and social impacts
towards their business. With reference to the scopes as required
under the ESG Reporting Guide and taking into consideration of
the corporate business characteristics, the Group has identified
and confirmed 21 issues, which cover environmental, training and
development, occupational health and safety, labour standards
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—EC-FE ARBERREEMNEEMNT
- PP REAMRFOELETIHAEL X
HE - ABHELE RERMETEHHEE
BHRAXEZR - K2ERE  HSRELR
SHESIFMRENSE  UREBELEEBRTE
% AKECDBRRER21VESEE - BER
BBIIRER BEREEETE - HEES
TiRE - bEER  FPALR  RESRURE
K& -

in supply chain, corporate governance, customer privacy, anti-

corruption and community investments.

Environmental issues

Social issues

Operating issues

RREEH HEEHE EEEH

1. Greenhouse gas emissions 8. Local community engagement 16. Economic value generated
= RS HERT =Pk g EENKEEE

2. Energy consumption 9. Community investment 17. Corporate governance
BEIREFE HRIZE BERER

3. Water consumption 10. Occupational health and safely 18. Anti-Corruption
FEK BEREETE RES

4. Waste 11. Labour standards in supply chain 19. Supply chain management
REZEY) HpEyEss TIRAE HEEER

5. Saving energy measures 12. Training and development 20. Customer satisfaction
HigEHE I el KB R BEEmEE

6. Use of raw materials and packaging 13. Employee welfare 21. Customer privacy
materials EEREF BEFLE
R % R BEM R A2 A 14. Inclusion and equal opportunities

7. Compliance with laws and HEkTEHe

regulations relating to environmental 15.
protection

T A IR R R ERED K AR P

Talent attraction and retention
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VL.

VII.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued)

ESG issues materiality matrix
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Importance to the Company

The materiality assessment results will provide the Group with
guidance on formulating strategic objectives and plans to resolve
the ESG issues for the coming year, as well as on continuing to push
forward its sustainability development.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of the Group recognise that good corporate governance
is an indicator of company modernisation, as well as a prerequisite
to the sustainability of a business. Since inception, the Group has
invested large amounts of resources and manpower into developing
appropriate business management practices according to the needs
of the business, enhancing the elements of corporate governance
and incorporating them into its management structures and internal
control procedures. The Group strives to maintain the highest level
of ethics, so as to achieve the highest standards or best practices
in all aspects of business activities, and to ensure that the Group's
operations are fully compliant with relevant laws and regulations.
Each Director believes that implementation of comprehensive and
high standard corporate governance allows the Group to achieve
greater efficiencies in all aspects of sustainable development, and to
safeguard and maximise the interests of stakeholders.
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Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND N RIREHSREBNEN

SOCIAL ASPECTS

(1) Human Resource Management () AHERER

Employment Policies

The Group has always strived to maintain equal employment
opportunities. Every vacancy in the Group is publicly advertised
online or via other appropriate channels. A fair selection
process is conducted based on each applicant’s competence,
skills, etc. The Group will not refuse job applications because
of attributes such as race, skin colour, gender, language,
religion and/or political views, etc.

In order to attract more talents in various positions, the
Group’s remuneration system is based on job grade and
performance. The wages paid by the Group and its other
subsidiaries have reached the minimum wage standards of
the regions in which the Group is operating. In addition to
ensuring employees’ stable income from the basic salary,
the Group also provides bonuses in association with the
employee’s performance for recognition and retention of
outstanding employees.

Furthermore, the Group purchases additional commercial
insurance (covering critical illness, traffic accident, etc.) for
those employees of certain seniority to offer them additional
coverage. In addition, each mainland Chinese employee
is entitled to sick leave benefit better than the statutory
requirement. While the statutory requirement allows for
a 30% deduction in employees’ wages during a sick leave
period, the Group provides employees with 6 days of paid sick
leave in a year during which no wage deduction is required.
Other employee benefits include free shuttle bus for pick-up
and drop off, transport allowances, and phone allowances,
etc.

The Group has always promoted the principle of work life
balance and does not encourage overtime work. The Group
strictly controls the number of overtime hours by requiring
a review and approval process when overtime work is
required, under which all overtime work must be approved by
department managers and abide by the local labour laws.

The Group strictly complies with legal requirements relating
to bilateral termination of employment contracts in each of its
operating locations.
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RE  #HERERTRSE

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(1) Human Resource Management (Continued)
Employment Policies (Continued)
During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
legal violation or complaint relating to discrimination or other
employment practices.

As of 31 December 2021, the Qingdao operation sites covered
by this Report had 141 employees, all of whom were full-time
employees. There were no part-time employees and 68.1% of
them ranged in the age group of 31 to 45.

No. of employees per gender
BRUBIBSHNET AR

REEYERERNER®

(1) AHEREE®)

BB (&)
HEREMA - NEELEHEITEREZR
g E b R BRI DR AR IREF o

BHE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—8  ARBE
FIERmssdEmiERAIRE8T
FIEEAEZBET  ERBET > 68.1%
B8 TERMN31 EASmAERRER -

No. of employees by age group

BERARNEINETAR

21 5

14.89%

Female
33

Male
@ =i

120%™

85.11%

i

The average monthly employee turnover rate for the Year,
which represented a significant decrease as compared with
2020, is summarised as below.

6 employees
28T

4.26%

3 9 emp\oyees

27.66%

18-30
@31-45
@ 46-60

>60

96 employees
JO=AT
68.09%

REENEGAFHRERREHADT -
HoF-TEERER AFENEB TR
FERBETERE -

No. of employees by type of employment
RERERESINETAH

Part-time
@ :n

. FuII time
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VIIl. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND N REHEUESREBENEN®
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)
(1) Human Resource Management (Continued) () AHEREE®E)
Employment Policies (Continued) EEBR (&)
2021 2020
Average Monthly Average Monthly
Employee Employee
Turnover Rate Turnover Rate
(%) (%)
—E-—-F —EETF
BRA¥H BATH
EERKE REMAKE
(%) (%)
Gender 4 5l
Male B 0.89 1.63
Female Z 0.40 2.89
Age group BIF#R
18-30 18-30 4.47 7.01
31-45 31-45 0.93 1.32
46-60 46-60 0.42 2.11
> 60 > 60 0 0
Overall average: By 0.82 1.82
Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced Labour Bt E T Ri#E#H% T
The Group strictly complies with the employment laws and REBBREETEEEMTHAEBRETIR
regulations in each of its operating locations pertaining R4 THRFEGIISEEESK - At -
to child labour and forced labour. As a result, all job FiB e E WERME &0 & AR AEZ
applicants are required to provide personal identification B ANEBHEE TV EESNAMLKE
documents for verification. Prior to confirmation of TrROFEEUBEERBERENAD - &
employment contracts, the Group allows sufficient time BIRDEREREGNE AATEEEH
for employees to read and understand the relevant terms BH °

and conditions, and contracts are to be signed only when
employees fully understand the content.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify FRERN  AEBETVERIFBEBRETR
any complaint or legal violation relating to child labour and S8 1 25 TR s SOBRRA R B R =1 -

forced labour.
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Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND N RIREHSREBNERE

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(1) Human Resource Management (Continued) () AHEREE®E)

Employment Policies (Continued)

Career Development of Employees

The Group adheres to the principle of meritocracy and
regularly provides its employees with promotion opportunities,
which is based on a comprehensive evaluation of both the
employee’s work performance and competence. In addition,
the Group also emphasises on training of potential talent, and
the Group's internal training team is responsible for developing
talent.

The Group is implementing two major training programs:

Cedar program: This program is designed to develop talents
with high potential and establish teams of high performance.
This program offers systematic training courses, and talent is
developed in two aspects (managerial and technological) and
four talent categories (high potential talent, global key talent,
local key talent and technical expert). After accumulation of
three to five years of work experience, trainees will become
the backbone of the Group.

Spring rain program: This program is designed to develop the
internal training team within the Company and to effectively
pass on technology and promote the corporate culture of
the Group. Through systematic training, the Group firstly
trains up a group of influential staff through a 1 to 3 ratio
training sharing model and such staff will then become a high
performance training team after accumulation of three to five
years of experience.

In 2021, the total number of employees at the Qingdao
operation sites covered by this Report who received training
reached 467 with a total of 1,287 training hours.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. « Annual Report 2021

BEBRE)

ETBERRE
REEE/MAARASINERE - THRMHE
BIEMHE - BETINABBLEHTHE
FIRMEE DM EAETHBENTE - R
B ISR EAREBEINAL - TRH
EERTEINABEEREERLS -

AEEFERTMAZIS

RIS RERSEBENAS  BUSE
MEFR o LT 8IS RFCHEIIRE - 15
A EYEE 773 R A R 1 77 1) (B 32 AN 4590
ROBAS (REAS - 2RERAT -
EHERERAT  RWER) c BREE=
ERFNTERRRE  BERALKE
BREBHE -

BAMAE  REBQAFTAEAZIEE
B R EARMAEARNEBRNLEX
b - BBREGIENEI - BEBER-UE
FENNHEL  BEIATIANEINZE
B WRB=Z2RFNER KL=
RE R B o

REZBZ—FEAREIRENETEEE
I B8 TRANREELT -
A1, 287N o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B -HERERERE

VIIl. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND N REHEUESREBENEN®

SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

(1) Human Resource Management (Continued) () AHEREE®E)
Employment Policies (Continued) ERBR(E)
Career Development of Employees (Continued) B TH#ERREE)
The following tables set forth the enhancement in RTRABRAFEERTCZIEEE S
performance achieved by the Group in terms of proportion of Lo B (8 B 19 55 o)l i 315 M 7 T A0 AR SR
employees trained and the average number of training hours EEKRTFABABERA

per employee during the Year as compared with last year:

Monthly Average Proportion of
Trained Employees (%)
BEZEINEENE R THE (%)

2021 2020 Change (%)

=F=—F ZT-THF {L(%)
Gender 4 Bl
Male S 27.61 8.59 221%
Female g 24.68 8.23 200%
Employee Rank EE&5
Senior management EREERRE 26.39 6.06 335%
Middle management RREIRE 21.58 9.27 133%
Junior employee MF/ET 27.52 8.59 220%
Overall average By 27.16 8.53 218%

Monthly Average Training Time of
Each Employee (hour)
BEEENSE A PHEINRH(NE)
2021 2020 Change (%)

SE == E1L(%)
Gender 4 Bl
Male S 0.72 0.28 157%
Female g 0.91 0.29 214%
Employee Rank EE&RA
Senior management BRERE 0.84 0.69 22%
Middle management PAREEE 0.94 0.21 348%
Junior employee MF/ET 0.71 0.42 69%
Overall average By 0.75 0.41 83%
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Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND N BEHEdESEREENENE
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(2) Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) (2) BEXRENZE

In order to continuously mitigate the impact of operations
to occupational health and safety, the Group is not only
committed adhering to the laws, regulations and industry
standards as the baseline, and but also striving to achieve the
safety targets of “Zero Occupational Disease” and “Zero Major
of Casualties”.

All of the Group’s employees at or above managerial level, the
labour union chairperson and OHS employee representatives
are members of the Safety Committee which is responsible for
the relevant occupational health and safety matters within the
Group. The Group adheres to the “Stop Work" policy, which
entitles any employee to stop work any time an employee’s
safety is subject to risk in order to prevent the occurrence of
work-related incidents.

The Group attaches great importance to employees. As an
employer, we are committed to protecting the health and
safety of all employees. We have comprehensive safety policies
and measures to provide protection for employees. The
Group strives to identify various opportunities for prevention
of occupational disease through enhancement of the work
environment. The Group also actively responds to advice given
by employees in relation to occupational health and safety,
recognises and rewards those employees who have contributed
to the continual improvement in those areas. In addition, the
Group also maintains close communication with all employees
and relevant stakeholders on occupational health and safety,
and has established multiple communication channels and
models to ensure the health and safety of all employees.

The Group provides suitable personal protective equipment
(PPE) free of charge to its employees including helmets, safety
goggles, protective masks, safety gloves, safety belts and
purifying respirators. For employees exposed to occupational
disease hazards, including those who work in painting and
shot blasting processes, the Group arranges annual, free-of-
charge physical examinations by qualified medical institutions
to ensure the health of employees. During the Year, the Group
has arranged for a total of 62 employees to undertake physical
examination, from which no case of occupational disease was
diagnosed.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(2) Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) (2 BERENZZ )

(Continued)

In addition, the Group strives to raise the safety awareness
of its employees through promotion on bulletin boards and
posting of safety signs. More importantly, the Group has
also established a safety training and education system and
developed an annual training plan at the beginning of the
Year. Occupational health and safety training courses are
conducted regularly to its employees, and training topics
include general occupational health and safety education,
correct usage of personal protective equipment, and safety
precautions for various hazardous work, such as trainings on
occupational health and safety, safety of dangerous chemicals,
safe use of gas, safety of welding, safety of welding operation,
safety of painting operation, sand blasting operation and
lifting operation, fire safety and safety of operation at heights.
Taking into consideration various health and safety training
programmes, the total number of the Group’s employees
trained in the Year was 631, reaching a total of 1,113 training
hours. Moreover, the Group considers the mental well being of
employees to be valuable assets, and has alleviated employees’
working pressure through arrangement of various activities
such as mental well being courses and group sharing, with a
total of 13 cross-team exchange activities held in the Year.

Some of the subsidiaries within the Group (such as Qingdao
TSC Offshore Equipment Co., Ltd.), have established and
achieved the OHSAS 18001 safety management system. In
accordance with the requirements of the management system
certification, the Group has identified clearly the origins of
dangers in the workplace and conducted risk assessment at
those areas. Relevant companies have evaluated the workplace
on the occupational hazards in plants in October 2020 for
ensuring appropriate controls in all positions with hazards. In
addition, the Group has established a 6S inspection system
for regular check of workplaces and inspection of fire and
electrical equipment, as well as formulation of plans for regular
maintenance of equipment.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group identified neither
any legal violation against the key regulations relating to
occupational health and safety, nor any incident of work-
related fatality or working days lost due to work-related
injury. The Group had no employees involved in work-related
fatalities in the past three years.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(3) Supply Chain Management (3) HEEER

The Group adopts the QHSE criteria for supply management,
through which its suppliers are selected with their performance
of corporate social responsibility as one of the evaluation
criteria. Suppliers are required to sign and comply with
the code of supplier's conduct established by the Group,
which contains clauses relating to environmental protection,
anti-bribery, etc. The Group also actively encourages
communication with the suppliers through multiple channels
(including telephone, e-mail, questionnaire, and training, etc.)
to elaborate the Group's requirements of corporate social
responsibility by promoting the mutual benefits from fulfilment
of the responsibility.

The process of manufacturing equipment for onshore and
offshore drilling rig and wind power installation platform is
extremely complex and tedious, involving the assembly of
fine and complex parts, and the threshold and qualification
requirements for suppliers are very high, which requires
standardized work processes and stable supply chains to
ensure consistency. In order to ensure that the quality of
equipment produced is consistent and maintained at a high
level, we must have effective supply chain management, and
establish a sustainable relationship with suppliers of materials,
electronic parts, equipment, services, etc. Therefore, the
Group strictly follows internal procedures to communicate
with suppliers and ensure that the required goods and
services are purchased in a competitive, fair and transparent
manner. As quality, environmental protection, service and cost
performance are the key indicators for the Group’s assessment
of suppliers, the Group has developed a systematic supplier
management system to manage its supply chain to identify,
analyze, select and manage suppliers based on clear criteria.

Distribution of Suppliers

The Group has qualified supplier quality assurance personnel
(SQA) to evaluate suppliers in various aspects on a regular
basis, and to conduct audits on specified suppliers for
ensuring the compliance of their operations with the Group's
requirements. As of 31 December 2021, there was a total
of 771 qualified suppliers for provision of materials to the
Group, which are mainly based in China, the United States and
Ireland.
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Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Evaluation of Social Responsibility/Environmental
Performance Aspects

Apart from considering the aforesaid scope of evaluation, the
Group gives priority to local suppliers possessing the same
qualities to support the reduction in emission of greenhouse
gases. The proportion of local suppliers currently accounts
for approximately 98% of the total supply base, and overseas
procurement will be made only when suitable local suppliers
are not available. Moreover, some suppliers are subject to the
evaluation of social responsibility/environmental performance
aspects, and approximately 93% of the Group's suppliers have
fulfilled those evaluation requirements in the Year.

Results Supplier Evaluation

During the Year, the Group has engaged 45 new suppliers.
They had passed through the evaluation prior to procurement,
and some of them were additionally required to go through
on-site assessment for ensuring compliance with the
requirements of the Group and its customers. Moreover, each
of the Group's existing suppliers is also subject to annual
evaluation for continued monitoring of their performance.
Those existing suppliers which may have significant impact on
the Group's operations are even subject to on-site assessment.
In 2021, 45 new suppliers and 461 existing suppliers passed
the on-site assessment.

Environmental Sustainability

In response to the environmental risks faced by the country
and the national policies, the Group is committed to being a
responsible enterprise to implement policies for prevention of
environmental pollution, even though the industry in which
the Group operates does not cause significant pollution.

The Group’s environmental protection policy includes the 3R
principle, namely Reduce, Reuse and Recycle, as well as the
effective use of materials and energy.

The Group actively responds to employees’ opinions on
environmental issues, and recognises and rewards those
employees who have made continuous improvement or
contribution to environmental protection, thereby raising
the awareness and sense of responsibility of employees and
stakeholders towards the surrounding environment.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(4) Environmental Sustainability (Continued)
Emission Reduction Policy

Reduction of Exhaust Gas Emissions
Environmentally-friendly materials were used when
the Group renovated its office buildings, and indoor
air quality testing was performed before the use of the
office. Office operation commenced only when the
air quality test results satisfied the specified standards.
Spray-painting and shot-blasting facilities were the
main sources of exhaust gas in the operation process.
To mitigate the pollution from the exhaust gas, spray-
painting and shot-blasting facilities are equipped with
ventilation, dust-removal, poison-removal and filtration
systems. The spray-painting facilities adopt water curtain
+ activated carbon + filter cotton to filter exhaust gas
in three stages, and the shot-blasting facilities adopt
bag dust removal + cyclone dust removal. Exhaust gas is
discharged after meeting the requisite standards. Exhaust
emissions from operation are tested on a regular basis.

Reduction of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions
Meanwhile, the Group recognises that the emission of
GHG is one of the main causes of the current global
warming, and energy consumption is key source of GHG.
In order to slow down the progress of global warming,
the Group has adopted various policies and measures
to control the consumption of energy, thereby reducing
GHG emissions, which includes:

1. Prioritising the use of equipment and products of
low energy consumption and high efficiency;

2. Considering the use of renewable energy, whenever
appropriate;

3. Avoiding unnecessary business trips to reduce
carbon emission generated by transportation;

4. Prioritising the engagement of local suppliers to
reduce energy consumption resulting from the
transportation of cargoes;

5. Promoting the importance of “Reducing Carbon
Emissions” along the supply chain.
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(4) Environmental Sustainability (Continued)
Emission Reduction Policy (Continued)

.

Reduction of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions
(Continued)

Through achievement of the aforesaid measures, the
following table sets out the emission volume from the
main GHG emission sources of the Group’s operating
sites in Qingdao covered by this Report during the Year:
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GHG Emission
Volume
(equivalent of
carbon dioxide

suppliers. The emission factors used are the latest
available factors: the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the People’s Republic of China =
“Baseline Emission Factors of Power Grid in Northern
China Region (ZEdb[R i EHEEFZBERE F)”
(2019) 0.9419 tCOz/MWh.

GHG Emission Sources in tonnes)
Consumption  Consumption BERBHNE
BERENEHR in 2020 in 2021 (H=EHES)
“ECEZF “EC-F In 2020 In 2021
¥E ¥E “ECER “EC-F
Scope 1 &8
Diesel consumption (litres) ! HIEE (DT
Mobile source RER 4,610 5410 12.78 15.00
Fixed source Eiha 17,278 24314 45.21 63.62
Gasoline consumption (litres)’ AR (DF)
Mobile source mER 8,202 19,306 22.21 52.28
Total propane consumption (kg)'  ATEREE(Af)! 3,650 7,286 11.01 21.98
Acetylene consumption (kg)' LRFEE(RT) 1,926 2,895 6.52 9.80
Sub-total 1 N 97.73 162.68
Scope 2 EE2
Power consumption of HERHHER |
manufacturing facilities (KWh)? (FRE)? 2,170,660 1,235,640 1,755.2 1,163.85 Py
Sub-total 2 gt 1,755.2 1,163.85 //,
Total GHG emissions mERBOFNEE 1,852.93 132653
Production volume (tonnes) EEZ () 1,879.3 2,251.70 '
GHG emission intensity BERBHNZE 0.99 0.59
(equivalent of carbon  (equivalent of carbon 4 %
dioxide in tonnes/ dioxide in tonnes/ LN\
tonnes) tonnes) ’ N\
(k¥4 (e =& vﬁ'*
EE/®) EE/®) VA
Scope 1: It represents the gasoline and diesel oil consumed #E EAEHEN R m ML \/f’ '
by motor vehicles, propane, acetylene and EEEBEORRE - 28R & \// :
diesel consumed in production. Conversion is in B o BIARE A B I TR / /' d
accordance with the CO,e emissions factors in HKEX Sesl N - abiR EHE K V/4
Reporting Guidelines. AF - A
Scope 2: It represents the electricity purchased from power HE2: KEENIHEABENE

7 FRRBENEF AZKHA
AR :PEARLMBEAE
REIRIEES - [FERmIGEHE
LY EAF] (2019) 0.9419
tCO,/MWh ©

For the financial year 2021, the Group’s total GHG emissions
decreased by approximately 28% as compared with the financial
year 2020, and the GHG emission intensity decreased by
approximately 40%. For the financial year 2022, the Group's
target is to present a downward trend in GHG emissions.
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(4) Environmental Sustainability (Continued)
Emission Reduction Policy (Continued)

.

V.

Reduction of Wastewater Discharge

The processes and technology adopted in the Group’s
operations do not involve significant water consumption
or discharge of wastewater. Water is reused in the
exhaust gas treatment system in spray-painting process.
Therefore, the Group’s discharge of wastewater mainly
involves daily office operations. In view of this, water
conservation signs are put up in washrooms, pantries,
canteens and dormitories to raise employees’ awareness
of resource conservation for reducing sewage generation.

Reduction of Solid Wastes

The Group has maintained a high degree of management
over reducing leakage of various oil products, thereby
reducing generation of related wastes. Through
lean production, the containers for paints with low
consumption were changed to small containers to
reduce the amount of hazardous wastes such as waste
paint residues and paint containers used. In addition,
the Group also upgraded its processes to reduce the
generation of hazardous wastes, such as the adoption of
centrifugal casting process to fully prevent the release of
asbestos wastes.

The operating sites covered in this Report generated a
total of 110.08 tonnes of non-hazardous waste during
the Year, and the types and distributions of these
wastes are set out in the following table. Currently, the
main identified hazardous wastes included: waste paint
residues, scrap paint containers and waste mineral oils.
The cumulative volume of all such wastes reached 11.44
tonnes. The Group recovers waste paint residues through
the water curtain system, and reduced waste paint
residues by 4.17 tonnes in 2021. The Group also uses
cyclone dust removal and bag dust removal to reduce
exhaust gas and dust particles. The total amount of
waste reduced in 2021 was 6.03 tonnes.
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Emission intensity
per tonne of
production unit

Type of Waste Total volume (tonnes) BHEEENH
BEYEE 2FEHEE () FRZE
In 2020 In 2021 In 2020 In 2021
—EEHF —E-—fF —BECEHF —EB-—fF
Hazardous wastes BEEZEY 7.81 11.44 0.004 0.005
Non-hazardous wastes fEZEREZEY)
Scrap steel EE A1 39.67 67.95 0.021 0.030
Scrap paper cartons  EEAKFR B H 2.76 3.33 0.001 0.001
Scrap wooden
boxes EEARNBEAE 3.56 6.38 0.002 0.003
Domestic wastes A VEBIR 30.54 32.42 0.016 0.014
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(4) Environmental Sustainability (Continued)
Emission Reduction Policy (Continued)

V.

Reduction of Solid Wastes (Continued)

For the financial year 2021, the Group's total waste
emissions and the emission intensity both increased
slightly, mainly due to the increase in the number of
packaging and transportation without human contact
under the epidemic of COVID-19. For the financial
year 2022, the Group will continue to strengthen the
improvement measures and management approaches of
waste emissions, aiming to present a downward trend
from financial year 2021.

Handling of Hazardous Wastes

The Group develops a plan for hazardous waste
management on an annual basis, and sets waste quantity
targets for all relevant departments. Regular assessment
is conducted and appropriate control measures are
implemented for waste reduction where necessary. To
cooperate with relevant management efforts, the Group
arranges for the classification of hazardous wastes, puts
up signs of hazardous wastes in the storage area, and
engages qualified subcontractors for proper handling.

Reuse of Wastes

The Group keeps strengthening quality control to reduce
wastes resulting from non-conforming products, and is
striving to extract steel materials from wastes for “non-
production” usage. Through this approach, a total of
8.2 tonnes of steel materials was reused throughout the
Year. In addition, scrap iron chippings generated during
the processing stage was also reused by the Group for
casting production.

Recycle of Wastes

In order to effectively handle recyclable wastes, the Group
requires employees to classify relevant wastes and affix
them with appropriate labels, which facilitates collection
and periodic delivery to the qualified subcontractors
for recycling and disposal. One of the examples is the
handling of scrap product packaging cartons, in respect
of which the Group follows the abovementioned policy
and engages qualified agencies for collecting and
recycling of such paper wastes. The total amount of such
wastes recycled during the Year was 3.64 tonnes.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)
(4) Environmental Sustainability (Continued) (4) BRENTUHERR@E)
Effective Use of Resources BRERER
The Group consumes resources mainly through material AEEMNEREAZZRAYEEE B
procurement, product manufacturing and office operations, mEERRATEFE HHRK=E " &
and has formulated policies in these 3 aspects for managing B 6] E BB - AAREEIRM B BUE A
the effective use of resources and reducing wastage: ERDRE
Green Procurement Policy: Environmental safety assessments shall be conducted before
procurement of chemicals. Toxic and hazardous products shall be
substituted by products that are non-toxic or of low-toxicity;
FERBBUR - RBLCEnE  BEEETRARZEAMG  UESHESUHER
BRESHEZEM
Green Manufacturing Policy: The manufacturing process mainly involves consumption of energy,

use of raw materials and use of water for exhaust gas treatment. In
view of this, the Group has formulated policies to address issues in
these three aspects:

REEUERK HEBRBFEPRERNER  EMENERRERRENH
K BB EE = AR -

i) Newly purchased equipment shall meet the national energy
consumption level, and purchase of high energy consumption
equipment listed in the national phase-out catalogue is
prohibited.

) HEREHOREBTMEBERMERSR  BIFREBEZEAE
BABH SR FERM -

i)  Technological processes shall be optimised for improving
utilisation of steel and reducing the amount of scrap steel
material, and for the use of materials, the Group shall strive to
recycle scrap product packaging cartons. These policies helps
with reduction in both waste generation and consumption of
paper resources.

i)y BEIERRE ESHEMERE  BRLEZHVOEE &
MEROER L SERNBRRMNAEENERBEERS Ut
BiE— 7 ER D BEREY) - R TR AIEiE RE ER -

iii) In the spray-painting process of the Group’s factories, the
exhaust gas treatment system currently in use is designed to
absorb exhaust gas through water recycling, thereby reducing
the use of fresh water supply. This saved 168 cubic metres of
fresh water throughout the Year.

iy EEEIBNERBET B EEERNEREERS
BEKBERERARURKES B EAREHK - REEHR
545 16832 J7 K AOHT A (K o
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)
(4) Environmental Sustainability (Continued) (4) BRENTHEBRE#E
Effective Use of Resources (Continued) BERERERE)
Green Office Policy: Reduction in use of office resources includes: (i) using double-sided

printing of paper instead of single-sided printing, and prioritising a
paperless office operation and application of electronic filing record,
to minimise the use of papers; (i) using water-saving devices as
much as possible amongst office facilities, such as high efficient
flushing toilets and automatic sensor switch faucets, and reminding
employees to save water in daily operations; (iii) improving interior
design to make full use of natural lighting, such as the use of
transparent tiles, and maximising the use of energy-saving devices
including LED lights, adoption of acoustic automatic control and
solar power supply for public lighting. The current office buildings
adopted LED lights during construction. Solar panels are used for
street lighting in new factories, light and acoustic automatic controls
are used in public area lighting, newly purchased equipment must
meet the national energy consumption level and purchase high
energy consumption equipment in the national phase-out catalog is

prohibited.
SYERYNENUS BAOMRENERED - B5F - (VA REEITDREREEST

. YEEEEERECMIENE  BEEREFFELCE B
MRER  (WHAREBEBRAEKKE - 11 MK ER
E B REMBAI/KEESR  UERAFEETRES THHMANK
(iNAEEART - BEMAAARE - 10 : WABXRS - &
SRAEMALEE - W EALEDE - AHRBIEBE K EDITH -
ARGREMES - B AT ABRITERIRALEDE © E TR
R A ARG ENIR - AR IRAAR A MR E - R
BREFTHEERNERER  ZUREEZEKE BN

FEH o
Major resources consumed by the Group during the Year are RAFE - SEMEENEZZERES W
listed as follows. Electricity remained as the main resource T BHDREEFEANER -
consumed.
Intensity of
Consumption Consumption consumption per
Resources in 2020 in 2021 tonne of production unit
—E-EF —E-—fF SWEEENKY
BiR 2 #E ERARE
In 2020 In 2021
—B-%F —B--F
Municipal Electricity (kWh) T & (FFHE) 2,230,960 1,941,240 1,187.12 862.12
Fresh water (cubic metres) — FTEE{IK (3775 K) 16,990 11,558 9.04 5.13
Package material (tonnes) B #1#% (1HB) 53.79 74.37 0.008 0.033
During the Year, the total consumption of electricity and water RAFEE  AREEENFKREREHLS
of the Group has decreased significantly as compared with RITTFRBTE - TR RE
2020, representing a decrease of 27% and 43%, respectively. 27%MA3% - BEMEEFEARIEER
The consumption of package materials has increased TERASEZEAREHHENEMERR
significantly due to the substantial increase in the number of % o
packaging and transportation without human contact under
the epidemic of COVID-19.
The Group's target for the financial year 2022 is to present a AEF_Z__BFEREESN - KHNE
downward trend in the total consumption of electricity, water BV EREER-_S_—UF2THREB

and package materials as compared to the financial year 2021. o

TR FFH c EEHEREFREENRERERAA
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Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND N RIREHSREBNERE

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(4) Environmental Sustainability (Continued) (4) BRENTUHERR@E)

Minimising of Significant Impacts o Environment and
Natural Resources

Green Operating Processes

In addition to the aforesaid policies and measures for reduction
of emissions and effective use of resources, all products from
the Group have been strictly certified by Classification Societies
for fulfilment of the environmental protection requirements
for offshore products. Moreover, TSC Offshore has established
and obtained the I1ISO14001 Environmental Management
System certification, and has formulated effective procedures
to ensure minimising of environmental risks in its operations.

Environmental Protfection Training fo Employees

To coordinate with the implementation of the environmental
policies and measures, the Group has formulated an
employee training programme for continued enhancement
of their environmental awareness and competence in the
implementation of relevant measures. In the Year, the number
of employees that participated in the environmental protection
trainings and trainings on identification, collection, transfer
and storage of hazardous wastes reached 595 persons with
a total of 689 training hours, which is approximately 20.45%
higher than that achieved in previous year which was 572
training hours, which will reduce environmental risks imposed
by the relevant operations in a more effective way.

Promotion of Environmental Protection along the
Supply Chain

Suppliers are important partners with the Group. The Group
intends to enhance the environmental awareness of its
suppliers by taking advantage of its influence in the supply
chain. Consequently, environmental performance has also
become one of the evaluation criteria during the supplier
selection and approval process, thereby enhancing suppliers’
awareness of environmental protection and reducing carbon
emissions to the environment.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
operating site with any legal violation or complaint relating to
environment.
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VIIl. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND N REHEUESRHEBENEN 2

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(5) Business Ethics (5) BMXER
Product Management EREE
The Group has established and implemented the ISO 9001 EEEINEMISO 00 1EEERER -
Quality Management System, and has formulated appropriate HESREBLHERLEERE - WHES
monitoring procedures to address corresponding potential HEERF: MEEMVABBREER
product quality risks. All products are required to pass Bl - HERE - BEBE  RANEBREBYS
through relevant quality inspection, whereby their design, BREEBENEE REMKMEKR - I
manufacturing process, installation and testing shall all WERBERRET2H - BN MBEEMRY
conform to relevant standards, specifications and technical BB NBBMATNEERRAERLZER
requirements, as well as satisfy relevant design parameters. In o

addition, all products are subject to rigorous certification and
safety verification by Classification Societies.

The product quality assurance process of the Group is AEENEMESWRTEREBALATIOE

controlled through the following four aspects: FEEITE R

1) Inspection of Materials ) #ERBE
All raw materials must undergo incoming inspection i RMEVERKBRE®R - 24 -
based on their drawings, standards, specifications and RE - RINIHBEASETEERR
technical agreements. Only materials which pass the BIRBITAIANE o

inspection are allowed for storage.

Raw materials that are going to be used in products FEABNERORMBEEZLR
requiring classification are subject to certification by MBEHRET - ABEFATAESE
Classification Societies, and are allowed for storage and e

use only after approval.

2)  Manufacturing Process 2) REERE
Verification and testing are conducted during the BITAERENEER  CRRBE
manufacturing process. Semi-finished products can only BEER BT EERAZT—IFF o

proceed to the next stage after they have passed relevant
verification and testing.

Manufacturing of products requiring classification must FEABRERNRERREFTLAM
undergo certification by Classification Societies, and can BAHRE @BBEAFAIRAT I
only proceed to next stage after approval. FF e

3) Inspection of Finished Products 3) HmBE
Finished products are subject to final inspection and e LBV nETTAK iz BT A B FAT
comprehensive FAT testing. HEs o
Products requiring classification must be certified by FEABMNERTLBMN TR
Classification Societies and are only allowed for delivery B WRHERBRSERIAIRE -

after the relevant approval report has been issued.

TR FFH c EEHEREFREENRERERAA
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Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND

D

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(5) Business Ethics (Continued)
Product Management (Continued)

Non-conforming Product Confrol

Whenever non-conformities are identified during the
quality verification process, the non-conforming product
is analysed and processed, and would be taken out of
the manufacturing process.

Apart from monitoring of product quality, the Group
is also concerned about the protection of intellectual
property. The Group has signed confidentiality
agreements with employees which prohibits employees
from disclosing product information to unauthorised
personnel. For electronic information relevant to
customers and self-branded products, such as
specifications and drawings, they are encrypted for
protection from leakage. Where appropriate, the Group
will apply for patents to seek protection from the relevant
authorities. The relevant patents obtained by the Group
in the Year are listed as follows:

Name of product/technology patent
B/ BWER S8

N BREMERERNENR @

(5) BmEBEE®)

EREEE)

4) T EEBES
ERBRARPRETEEE 1T
ARBETOMMER » ZBILTA
BHEMERERIEFEERSE -

RTEZEMASNEGE  ~&H
TRRERBERNEE - REEE
BIRIREHE - FIEBTHIE
BRENALTEBREREE  BEP
K B ZREE an W) AR 15 B Bl 4R H AE BE /Y
ETEE  HEETMBEIENAR
SEE  BREMER  ARBER
HERERFENRE  UTEAR
FEEERBRMBHEELER

Registration authority

M

A new type of moisture separator device
—EEUKSBERE

A type of high-strength pipe connectors for
drilling fluid tubing
—BEHREBASREEER

A type of tooling for quick installation of fasteners
—RREZ KRN TR

A type of modular valve seats cylinder of mud pumps

—RRRREA(CRER

A type of quick-packaged mud screening program
—ERERRRBIRER

A new type of compressing device for screening nets
— BN EERRE

A new type of valve box for mud pumps

— TR AR AR R A

A type of valve plug for high pressure hydraulic
test of valve box

— R EKE A 5 AR

State Intellectual Property Office
HREBHERER

State Intellectual Property Office

BREEVERSD

N

State Intellectual Property Office
BREEMERS

State Intellectual Property Office
BEREEVEER

State Intellectual Property Office
BERESVMEER
State Intellectual Property Office
BERESMEER

State Intellectual Property Office

BHRESHERER
State Intellectual Property Office

BREEMERSD
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VIll. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)
(5) Business Ethics (Continued)

Product Management (Continued)
4)  Non-conforming Product Conftrol (Continued)

Name of product/technology patent
Em/ HirEF A8

B -HERERERE

N BREMERERNENR @

ORE )
EREEE)
4 TABSEHD

Registration authority

S

A new type of valve plug for hydraulic test

— BT BL K ER B PR R

A type of starter for hydraulic oil pump pressure relief

—REBHREEMBEE

A type of shaker allowing transformation between
straight-line mode and elliptical mode

—REERESMBEMRERN 8 a8k EH

Utility model patent “A type of maintenance
mechanism of deep-water separator”

BRI EN —ERKRKE E IR

Utility model patent “A type of carrying mechanism
together with tension compensation device for
utilization”;

ERMEERN —BREEMERERZEEN
ROHERE]

Utility model patent “A type of assembly welding
system for sea water tower”

ERAMLEN —EKERRERR]

Utility model patent “A type of cross-transmission
marine BOP crane to split deceleration power”

ERMAERN—EHEBRRE N RZXNEFEERX
G ¥BOPR ]

Utility model patent “A type of tooling of
crankshaft flip”

ERFEERN —EhmBE TR

State Intellectual Property Office
REZMERS

State Intellectual Property Office
HREBNERER

State Intellectual Property Office

BRESMERR

<

State Intellectual Property Office of PRC

TEEREZSMERR

State Intellectual Property Office of PRC

TEERESHMERR

State Intellectual Property Office of PRC
TEEREZMERR
State Intellectual Property Office of PRC
HERREEMERR
State Intellectual Property Office of PRC

TEEREZHMERR

TR FFH c EEHEREFREENRERERAA
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BiR - HEREREKSE

VIll. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)
(5) Business Ethics (Continued)

Product Management (Continued)
4)  Non-conforming Product Conftrol (Continued)

Name of product/technology patent
Em/ HirEF &8

N BEE4ERERNER@®

(5) AREEH)
EREE ()
Q) TARBEHE

Registration authority

e

Utility model patent “A type of welding tooling for
abrasion resistant plates”

ERMEERN B EREE TR

Utility model patent “A type of slew luffing pedestal
burner boom”

ERMAEN —EEEA R RS

Utility model patent “A type of lifting device for
the pumps of drilling rigs”
ERFUER —BEFRTENREAARKE]

Utility model patent A type of slip structure for
drilling rigs”
BERMLERN—EEI T e RBEE]

Utility model patent “A type of slip structure for
the cantilevers of drilling rigs”

ERHREN-REFFBERBBEE]

State Intellectual Property Office of PRC
TEEREZMERER
State Intellectual Property Office of PRC
TREEREZMEER
State Intellectual Property Office of PRC
PEEREZMERRD
State Intellectual Property Office of PRC
TEEREZMERER
State Intellectual Property Office of PRC

TEERESMERR

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. «+ Annual Report 2021




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(5) Business Ethics (Continued)
Product Management (Continued)

D

Non-conforming Product Control (Continued)
Despite the implementation of robust quality
management, the Group still attaches importance to
customer feedback and has established a comprehensive
complaint handling system. Sales and project
management team will firstly communicate with
customers to identify the details of nonconforming
situation, then the quality management team will
analyse the cause(s) with the relevant departments
propose corrective actions. Eventually the sales and
project management team will reply to customers with
the relevant solution and the implementation thereof.
During the reporting period, the Group did not identify
any legal violation or complaint case relating to product
responsibility. In the same period, no product was
recalled for safety and health reasons. In addition, the
Group was presented with an award from a relevant
institution in the Year for recognition of the Group's
product quality and technological achievements:

Name of Product Award

EmBEEH

B -HERERERE

N BREMERERNENR @

(5) BEER®

EREEE)

4 TAESEHE
BERARENUEED  A%H
BEREF 8 R B E 0
FT - AEHEREEEESAE
HEZVPRN  BRIFEHEA
BEL: AREEEEHNEEHS
PSR EN R A EEE 8
ERBEEEIMEHATERIMT
MARBEEE - REBEHA - K
SEYWERIRTMNERERETHE
B #0501 2R M B E (3R 5B R -
B bl EEMRLTE2HRERIER
MABEN - lhoh - EEAAEE
FESHERERERE  BR
1602 ST R AR 3

Issuing Authority
AR

Certificate of ISO 9001 Quality Management System
ISO9001 52 & & Il 88 R R &

Certification of Intellectual Property Management
System
BEMERERBRARE

Certificate of Quality Management System

Fifr ] 277 K 55
mEETRARERS

Certificate of Environmental Management System
REEBEBRARERE
Certificate of Occupational Health and Safety

Management System
BERRLE2EEERRIZE

China Federation of Logistics Certification Center
3b R AR B A SRR R L

Zhong Gui (Bei Jing) Certification Limited
RIROER)RERRA A

China Quiality Certification Centre
o B o AR RE P D

China Quality Certification Centre
B R R P L

China Quality Certification Centre

B o E R RE R L

TR FFH c EEHEREFREENRERERAA




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BiR - HEREREKSE

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(5) Business Ethics (Continued)
Anti-corruption Measures
Being a responsible enterprise, the Group has always
maintained a “zero tolerance” attitude towards violations of
business ethics such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

The Group strives to provide a business platform with integrity
and has continuously implemented the following measures,
including:

1. Since 2012, the Group formulated the “Code of
Business Conduct” to which all board members,
managers, employees, agents and representatives must
adhere; the Group announced and implemented the
“Employee Handbook"”, which contains the requirement
for prohibition of bribery, and has been signed and
acknowledged by all employees;

2. The Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Supervisory Committee and the Nomination Committee
have been established under the board of directors of the
Group to be responsible for corporate governance;

3. The Group has set up a whistle-blowing hotline and a
whistle-blowing email through which suspected cases
or incidents of business ethics violations can be inquired
about or reported, and corrective measures will be
formulated to address the root cause of the established
cases;

4. Employees are required to disclose conflicts of interest in
their employment contracts, and no relevant reporting
case was received throughout the Year;

5. Open tendering policy has been formulated and
“comparison of quotations amongst at least 3 suppliers”
is required, whereby the supplier with competitive price
will be selected;

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. « Annual Report 2021

RERMERERNER#E

ORE )

Bh B e

AEBES—HBETNHNEE  —BHEH
B BR - AFRARBESERBRER
M1TR - K ERBINEEREIE -

AEERBRNRE-ERZNERTE B
E—EHRITATHEE - B

1. AEEE-T——FREHE(EE
THERD  WERKEBARAFT
EEE BEAB - -BI - REA
REHBETZER  SEEGR
BEE(EIFM) REZIERHEEN

TR WEESE2BEINGBHE

=7
a0

2. ARBETRBTRUEKES
g HHEEY ERZEAR B
£EBRRABAANES |

3. AEECRIUBBARMERE
B ROERKELRERE
REFEENERE - EITHEAK
B WEHERZHARMEH T LE
B RRRRA

4. Eﬁﬁuﬁ¢xialﬁﬁﬂ $1E
W RAFEEIL LG KRN
KRR EZ

5. %J*"F‘aﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘ﬂl RBRAIEL
=R EBUELESNER/RK
HEm



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(5) Business Ethics (Continued)

Anti-corruption Measures (Continued)

6. Since 2013, procurement personnel must comply with
the “Revised Code of Self-Discipline Integrity Conduct for
China (including China MRO) Procurement Personnel”;

7.  The Group appoints an independent auditing agency to
proceed auditing and reporting of listed company on
an annual basis, and the content involving the internal
control system will be disclosed separately. Subsidiaries
will appoint the local auditing agencies to proceed
individual auditing and reporting as well as tax calculation
in accordance with the principles of the operating regions
for enhancement of the Group's internal control; and

8.  The Group provided a training session on anti-corruption
for directors and employees during the Year.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
reported case or legal violation relating to corruption.

Community Contribution and Engagement

As an outstanding corporate citizen in the community, the
Group connects with the community and send best wishes
and support to the disadvantaged and give back to the
community. On the foundation of this social responsibility,
the Group has reached out to the community over the years,
through volunteer service or participation in regional activities,
and communication with local community organisations in
form of meetings and other means to understand their needs
and satisfy regional demands to the best of the Group’s
capabilities.

B -HERERERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RZBARE

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
CMIC Ocean En-Tech Holding Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CMIC Ocean
En-Tech Holding Co., Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 122 to 226, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
B ZBE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

HREETEE®

Valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

M- BERRBREVEENGE

Refer to notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(h), 1(i), 1()(i) and 1(k)(ii).
BRRGEE IR 10R TR 1) ~ 10) 100 R 1K) IE EFHEE °

The Key Audit Matter
HEETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REANENAEEZSEE

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets as at 31 December 2021 were allocated to the
cash-generating units (“CGUs") to which they belong.

mE BERRERENEER_T-_—F+=-A=+—H
WERHER S ICE IR S EE BN -

When it is determined that indicators of impairment of a CGU
exist, management assesses the value in use of the CGU by
preparing a discounted cash flow forecast and that value in use
is compared with the carrying value of the CGU to determine if
any impairment is required.

EETEX BeEAEMNGFERETR  EEEHRENTR
BemiEA - KM hzReELEUNERBE Akl
ZReEABMMNKRABETEHL  AEEREREELEME
Al RE -

Assessing the value in use of a CGU is complex and requires
management to make a number of judgemental assumptions,
particularly relating to the revenue growth rates (which drives
future production levels) and future gross margins.
AEE-ReELEMNEMAEBEREER  BEFTEREEE
LERH WA RE CETE AR EEKFE) RARKRERNE
PR Z B FI BT RER

These estimates are inherently uncertain due to recent oil price
volatility and the uncertain economic outlook.

BRI R ERE R BRI R N AR - ZE MG AE LR
THEE M o

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets included the following:
HAFEDE  BEERBLEVEENGENETEFE
FETHI%E

e  obtaining an understanding of the Group'’s policies and
procedures to identify impairment indicators of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets;

o B BESEEBRIME  BERRMERELEERED
REOVBEKRIRF

e evaluating management’s identification of impairment
indicators, if any, with reference to the internal sources
and external sources of information, and the identification
of CGUs and the allocation of assets to each CGU in the
preparation of its discounted cash flow forecasts;

o ZRAMBRIMNIMEERRTEERELREDTR(WE)
HIFBIA RGRRFTRIF S RIBARHESEEEMAOH
AIRIEEESDEESReEESN

° engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the methodology adopted by management,
and whether this was prepared in a manner consistent
with the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

e ZEABEEZR  UNRBBEMAGEERHRANS
o WAMBEEABRAR S ERRERITEER— B
AR

° assessing and challenging management’s impairment
assessment model. This included evaluating the discounted
cash flow forecasts for each CGU where an indicator of
impairment was identified and comparing the resultant
value in use with the carrying values of the relevant assets
and considering whether impairment or a reversal of past
impairment was required,;

e HMERBEREEENRENERE o SEENERDE
BEDSRNEReELBUNTRBSRIEN - WM
SEREEEEAEEETHRRERB T DT ETRM
BB OBERE

TR FFH c EHEREBFRENRERERAA
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

HBRETEE®

Valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (Continued)

- BERREREFEENEEGE)

Refer to notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(h), 1(i), 1()(i) and 1(k)(ii).

BT E I ERANE10R 11 RMEE1(h) ~ 10) »
The Key Audit Matter
BREEHR

100K 1(k)i)a &

FHBCHE -
How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEHETFNAERZEE

We identified the valuation of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets as a key audit matter because determining
the level of impairment, if any, involves a significant degree of
management judgement in forecasting future cash flows and
estimating the value in use of these assets both of which are
inherently uncertain and may be subject to management bias.
BMEYE  BELKRGBLEBETVEEN RERENFE - A
ABEEREKEMWMAB)SRERBHBEARKRE S RE R
ARERENCEREEEREXRAN  MAaTtmEARE £5
FETHETY  BEEgXINERENREEMBMTE -
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° comparing the most significant inputs used in the
discounted cash flow forecasts, including the revenue
growth rates and future gross margins, with the historical
performance of each CGU and management’s budgets
and forecasts;

o BIRAERBAFZERNBASIE(BERAERER
RREME)RERGELEUNBIREREREEE
MFDAGETTELE

e  evaluating the discount rates used in the cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against other similar companies
in the same industry;

e HRAXHMBAUATE
FREVITIR %

T8 - BT ERSIRBAR

. performing sensitivity analyses of the discount rates,
revenue growth rates, future gross margins and
considering the resulting impact on the impairment
assessment for the year and whether there were any
indicators of management bias; and

o HIWHRE  WARRRRAREMNETETHREDN -
YWERHFARENENFEREEFEERERRD
ERIFR &

o considering the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of impairment testing of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

o REBERTEFEANRTE  ZEREEUBBREAFTEAY
¥ BENERBRETLEENBENHANRE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Loss allowance for trade and lease receivables

BEERHERVFENEREE

HREETEE®

Refer to notes 17, 18 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(j)(ii), 1(k)(i) and 1(n).
BRI A EIREMGE17  18R29X RBIFF10)() + 100 1(n)ay & FHEE

The Key Audit Matter
BRENEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAWET N AEEZEE

The carrying value of the Group’s trade and lease receivables as
at 31 December 2021 totalled US$76.2 million after deduction
of loss allowance of US$62.2 million.

KR EEREe22AEXLE  BEEER-_ZT=-—F+
AT HMESRHERWHRIBREBEA LT 2BESE
I o

The Group's loss allowance is always measured at an amount
equal to the lifetime expected credit loss, which is estimated
by taking into account the historical credit loss experience,
ageing of the receivables and shared credit risk characteristics
based on geographical location or business segment, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecasted economic conditions at the
reporting date. Such assessment involves a significant degree of
judgement.

EEENBERE -ERBEREHRBEEBEN ST
B KERBIEEBELR  BUGRIERER  ER IR
BEXEBOTNRAEZEERARSEMMAE  HREBHAG
AR TE B 2= DA R B AT K TROBI A B AR5 B 5T (4 1T
B o BRHES RERIZE HE -

Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowance for trade and
lease receivables included the following:
BHTHEZREBERRFENBERENESEFEET
H &I

e  obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt collection, and
estimation of the expected credit loss allowance;

o  TEMVHEBGEEES  WERGFRAGEEBHER
B EERERINRE - EMEMAITRR

o obtaining an understanding on the key data and
assumptions of the expected credit loss model adopted
by management, including the basis of the segmentation
of the trade and lease receivables based on shared credit
risk characteristics, the historical default data, and the
assumptions involved in management’s estimated loss
rates;

o BREEERMANEMREEEBBEREEFNEREERRE
# O OEEEEANKACZEERREHEESLEE
JEUCGRIHETT DM AL BAEBOEUREBEMGT
EEEP RARE

TR FFH c EHEREBFRENRERERAA
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Loss allowance for trade and lease receivables (Continued)

ESRHEERKRIFBENBEREE)

HBRETEE®

Refer to notes 17, 18 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1()(ii), 1(k)(i) and 1(n).
BRRGE I BEIMEZMGE7 ~ 18 R29LX RIFFE 1)) ~ 1(k)I) K 1(n)B)EFHBE °

The Key Audit Matter
BREEHR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEHETFNAERZEE

We identified the loss allowance for trade and lease receivables
as a key audit matter because the assessment of loss allowances
is inherently subjective and requires significant management
judgement, which increases the risk of error or potential
management bias.

HRFAEEREEAE FABTBY UEEEREFED
BAHE  AMEMBEEIEEEEEREORR - M
8 5 MRS RYGRIABBEEESNSEREETFIE -

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. *+ Annual Report 2021

assessing the classification of individual balances in the
trade receivables ageing report and lease receivables
ageing report by comparing the details in such reports
with underlying invoices, on a sample basis; and

148 5 REUGRIER I S d R SRR B R E N
TR TR S - M R E RS AER
HEHRNOE R

assessing the reasonableness of management's loss
allowance estimates by examining the information used by
management to form such judgements, including testing
the accuracy of the historical default data and evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and forward-
looking information.
ERABEEERUERE@AENER (BFEARBTE
MBI AR - FMEBEBRXEEIRE AR
RATEMERMEHEE AR KT EREEREEEE
HEEM -

For certain receivables, our procedures also included
evaluating the probability of default by comparing with
available market information.

HETREFEMNS - BANEFTEEERENSET
5B R BT HE B A AT BRI o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessing the net realisable value of inventories

FHEFEEN TR R FE

HREETEE®

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(1).

FRRFE I EIREN 16 R ()0 E 5T
The Key Audit Matter
BRENEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAWET N AEEZEE

The carrying value for inventories as at 31 December 2021 was
US$33.4 million, which represented 14.5% of the Group's total
assets. The inventories held at the year-end covered a wide
range of capital equipment and spare parts and the demand for
these in the future may be adversely affected by many factors
including market demand, competitor activities, pricing and the
introduction of substituting products and technologies.
RZTZ—F+A=+—H8  FENKEEEAR3ISIEEE
7T HER EEEBEEMN145% FABAENTFERE
BRERRBEREN  ARRZERBELBEHOTRATEXE
FHEREZNTHEE  BEMSHER  BREFNEY B
R REMHEBRHEL -

The Group's inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Determination of net realisable value
involves key judgements and estimates made by management,
in particular with regards to the estimation of selling prices and
provisions for slow-moving and obsolete inventories.
EEENFERAAEZEFEPOREE AR - BEEA
SERFESREREEDOBRAE KA - FRIREFH
MREFEEERBEBELMME -

Our audit procedures to assess the net realisable value of
inventories included the following:

B EEENTR#RFENETEFEETIIRE

e assessing whether the inventory provision at the end of
the reporting period was determined on a basis consistent
with the Group’s inventory provisioning policy including
evaluating the accuracy of management’s prior year
estimation;

o FHMERBERRNTERBRORE BESEFTEREG
R -BOHELET (BETHEREBREFENMGAR
BER)

o assessing, on a sample basis, the classification of individual
items in the inventory ageing report by comparing the
details in the inventory ageing report with underlying
documentation, including purchase invoices and goods
receipt notes;

e WEFEEEREBRETENEENDE  FRAEE
BERERBETHFAEHERBX (BERBEELRE
o W) B8

TR FFH c EHEREBFRENRERERAA
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessing the net realisable value of inventories (Continued)

TEFENARRFEGE

HBRETEE®

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(1).

BRI A AT 16 R MG 108 &5 BOE °
The Key Audit Matter
BREEHR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REANENAEEZEE

We identified the assessment of the net realisable value of
inventories as a key audit matter because of the significance
of inventories to the consolidated financial statements and
because of the significant judgements made by management in
assessing net realisable value, which increases the risk of error
or potential management bias.

BB EFERNE2RFENGERTEREREFFE  REAR
GEHGEAVBEREANEZENREEETHIEIFEED
BB R 2GR - WG AR SEE B IR E R A E R o

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. « Annual Report 2021

assessing the appropriateness of the selling prices
estimated by management, on a sample basis, by
comparing the estimated selling prices to the recent
transaction prices and our knowledge of the Group’s
business; and

MBI HEREEMANEBRESRE
BEEE RIS EEITHLEA R R

HABKETE
BEREER R

evaluating the reasonableness of the Group’s inventory
provision balance by comparing, on a sample basis, the
carrying value of inventories with net realisable value.
i EEEFEREERRETSEE  FRAAMEKILR
FEAREE R #IR3E -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

e ER R R E B & U

=
B e

ESRUHEMERAS - R EERENENFR
ANE2EES - EFEREAMBEHRER REMMZ
BN E o

RS BRRNELL NREEMES - &
PITMTHZFEME B RREMT AR EEGER

BARMESEBRENES - RANEETZH
BEMES - EUBEET  TEEMEERST HER
EUBRRXBMERTERPATHENBELFE
BEAREEREUFFEEAHERRANIER

ERBMEATHNINE  IREMBREMEER
EEAERRL  HMFEREZXFE -EES
| BFYLBEHRE -

EENGAMBRBRRAAENSE

ERARAARBEESHMASRAN(EEY R
FEAD REB(ARGIDNREERFEEEMS
BREAUBHRE  YHERBREREPVHREK
MEE T FEARNRFFRERMEBMNERERR
AR AIEHEE -

EREBEAVBERRE EFRAME EXEF
BREMEN  LEERBERN TREEKELLES
MMEE UREAKECERSHER  KIFE
ERAER BESEBRIFLLLE  FHEEME
BREVERTER -

ERZEEWHESTRTER
BEMNEE -

EEENPERE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. *+ Annual Report 2021
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ho Wai Ming.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEREmR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in United States dollars) 82 —F ——F+ - A=+—HIFFE(UETZ5))

2021 2020
—E--F —ETF
(Restated)
(& E5))
(Note 3(a)(i)(1))
(M E3(@)(1)
Note US$'000 US$'000
M5 FER F=r
Revenue WA 2 57,027 65,882
Cost of sales SHE AR (36,363) (54,265)
Gross profit EF 20,664 11,617
Other revenue and net income H s ROFIRA 4 4,723 5,920
Selling and distribution expenses SHE ko R (3,.914) (4,818)
General and administrative expenses —REITHAY (19,775) (21,705)
Other operating expenses Hi g% 5(e) (1,919) (3,767)
Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment £ 5 iE Wz 85 7} FE AR 245
losses) on trade debtors and bills HERKRRENEE
receivables, lease receivables and BEBERE CRERE)
contract assets 5(c) 3,418 (4,272)
Gain on settlement of sale and purchase ~ #&E B &EA #RUzE
contracts 5(d) - 26,332
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HESEARFELHERN
classified as held for sale EmBEEM M 5(f) 11,407 >
Profit from operations SRR 14,604 9,307
Finance costs IR IDN 5(a) (489) (660)
Share of profits less losses of associates DAGHEE N TR R EE 255 18
Share of profit of joint venture DIEEE R TR 1,370 1,216
Profit before taxation BRELAR R 5 15,740 9,881
Income tax (expenses)/credit Frisfi (), #H& 6(a) (6,396) 949
Profit for the year FERBEF 9,344 10,830
Attributable to: D& FH R
Equity shareholders of the Company RNA R RAER R 9,220 10,916
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR R 124 (86)
Profit for the year FREF 9,344 10,830
Earnings per share SREF 9
Basic and diluted EXREE US0.29 cent US0.36 cent
0.29% A1l 0.363 Al

The notes on pages 129 to 226 form part of these financial statements.

N

fazayd
v
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GERaREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in United States dollars) &2 =% =

——F+ A=+ —HILFEUUETES)

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx F=rx
Profit for the year FREF 9,344 10,830
Other comprehensive income for the year: FRHE b2 E U :
Items that will not be reclassified to TEEH I HE B HA
profit or loss:
— Equity investments at fair value through - BRAFEEFAEMEERE(RA
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") FEER AEMEERE]) /I IRE
~ changes in fair value during the year "E -FRARTEEEYGEEE)
(non-recycling) (with nil tax effect) (BB E) 112 (93)
- Share of other comprehensive income of -EiEEEAREMEEmEA
joint venture (with nil tax effect) (BB E) 1,026 (3,003)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to  FER X @EF P EE B 2 HA -
profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on translation of - A BT/ 2 A R Bk A R B R SRR P
financial statements of subsidiaries and EEZEREZB(ERBEE) >
associates (with nil tax effect)* 2,559 2,482
Other comprehensive income for the year &R H fth 2 F W & 3,697 (614)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZ2MHNZEHATE 13,041 10,216
Attributable to: LT &F B
Equity shareholders of the Company RATIRERR 12,850 10,305
Non-controlling interests eI R 191 (89)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZHUIHELEE 13,041 10,216
* Included exchange gain on translation of financial statements of associates of ~ *  BIFHRE LN 7B #REKFTEL 2 B X U 2520,000

$20,000 (2020: $21,000).

The notes on pages 129 to 226 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

At 31 December 2021 (Expressed in United States dollars) R =F = —%F+=H=+—H(XETZ%)

2021 2020
—E-—fF T
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
ihg=s FEx FEx
Non-current assets IRBEE

Property, plant and equipment M - WE KRB 10 24,061 18,971
Investment properties WEYHE 10 1,928 3,260
Intangible assets mEEE 11 195 228
Interest in associates KB E R 2 13 1,165 346
Interest in joint venture REE QR 2R 14 43,123 40,727
Other financial assets EthemEE 15 345 233
Prepayments SEENE 17 261 =
Lease receivables FAEREBGR 18 4,638 6,329
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 25(b) 964 2,540
76,680 72,634

Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 16 33,391 23,008
Trade and other receivables B 5 e I H i E W R IR 17 64,686 57,617
Contract assets BHEE 23(a) - 324
Amount due from a related company JE Uk — I B e A B 5K IE 19 - 101
Lease receivables FHE FERR 18 19,632 25,591
Tax recoverable ALY B 7 IE 25(a) 146 435
Pledged bank deposits and time deposits 2 KRR 1T 17 2 M E BIfF 7K 1,851 4,187
Cash and cash equivalents BehEeEEY 20(a) 33,511 22,424
153,217 133,687
Non-current assets classified as held for sale DA ELE 2 IERBEE 21 - 23,609
153,217 157,296

Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables E 5P R H M ER RIE 22 42,331 57,989
Contract liabilities BRBE 23(b) 15,003 8,667
Lease liabilities HESE 24 18,536 23,390
Tax payable FETBEIE 25(a) 3,289 3,376
79,159 93,422
Net current assets REBEEFE 74,058 63,874
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABER 150,738 136,508

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. *+ Annual Report 2021



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBERR R

At 31 December 2021 (Expressed in United States dollars) R =F = —F+=H=+—H(XETLZ%)

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
ihg=s FEx T T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 24 2,160 1,224
2,160 1,224
NET ASSETS BEEFRE 148,578 135,284
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital N 28(b) 41,418 41,418
Reserves L] 107,291 94,188
Total equity attributable to equity AATRERREGES LR
shareholders of the Company 148,709 135,606
Non-controlling interests RS (131) (322)
TOTAL EQUITY e 148,578 135,284

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March  &EEER T -—F=A-+H A EREET

2022.

Lou Dongyang

% -

Jiang Bing Hua

EXRG BRE
Director Director
EF =

The notes on pages 129 to 226 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERZEEHXR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in United States dollars) 2 = F = —F+=A=+—HIFFEUZETZE5)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FAARERRE
Shares
held for Fair value
share award reserve Non-

Share  Share  Merger Exchange scheme  Capital Revaluation  Reserve (non-  Accumulated controling  Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve reserve - reserve reserve  funds  recycling) losses  Total interests  equity
BERS AVEE
4R P i i

Bx RGER AHER EXBR  ROBE AR BREE Qe GHEE RER A% SERER A8
USF000  US§000  USS000  US§'000  USS000  USS'000  USS000  USS'000  USS000  USS000  USS000  US$00D  US'000
TR e ML Aoy TRmy S TR TRL R AR e AT TR T TR TER

Balance at R-B-%F
1 January 2020 -B-Rz&H 39,191 250,735 2161 (15,537) (2,801) 5482 627 8,908 (8,550) (159,160) 121,056 (642) 120414
Changesinequity for 2020 ~ R=F=%%F
RE%s
Profit for the year EREF = 7 3 2 a - - = = 10916 10916 (86) 10830
Other comprehensive income  E 2 AN = 3 z BEusS = - - = (3,096) e (611) B (614)
Total comprehensive income Eileart ] 3 % - 248 e ~ S > (3,096) 10916 10305 (89 10216
Issue of new shares (note 28(b) ~ Bf7ATR(WEE2800) 2227 3897 8 5 S 5 - = 3 - 61 - 6
Purchase of shares for share HROREHEEE
award scheme (note 27) Bl Ea) 3 ¥ . 5 (1,470 i i i F - (1470 - (1470)
Transferred to reserve funds ERSRENGS 5 3 3 3 = & - 385 - (389) = & =
Acquision of non-controlling KR —EHELE
interests in a subsidiary HHERER = o . 3 > = 3 i A (409)  (409) 409 -
Balance at 31 December 2020 W=Z=%5%
and 1 January 2021 tZAZt-8R
5%
-B-Rz&H M08 254,632 2,161 (13,05) @2m) 5,482 627 9,293 (11,646) (149,038) 135,606 (322) 135,284
Changesinequity for 2021~ R=B=-%
KE2D
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - - - - 9220 9220 124 934
Other comprehensive income £ 2 ENE - - -9 - - - - 1138 - 3630 67 3697
Total comprehensive income 2 ENEAE - - - - - - - 1138 9220 12850 191 13041
Purchase of shares for share HRAREHEEE
award scheme (note 27) Bt (Hizk27) - - - - (147) - - - - - (147) - (147)
Transferred to reserve funds ERSEENGS - - - - - - - 944 - (944) - - -
Shares granted under share RERA£E:E
award scheme (note 27) Rk
(z27) - - - - 787 - - - - (387 400 - 400
Balance at 31 December 201 W=%=-%
tZA=t+-A2
&4 NM8 254,632 2,161 (10,560) (3.631) 5,482 627 10237 (10,508) (141,149) 148,709 (131) 148,578
The notes on pages 129 to 226 form part of these financial statements. F1298F 226 E MMM BN Z T MR A — &
/J_j\ o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in United States dollars) 82 —F - —F+ - A=+—H L FE(LETZ5)

2021 2020
—E-—-F —T-FTF
Note US$°000 Us$'000
B EE FEr SF=SoT
Operating activities REER
Profit before taxation B %1 B 4 ) 15,740 9,881
Adjustments for: BT SEELFE
Depreciation e 5(c) 4,091 4,540
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ B RNRR R RN EE
impairment losses on trade debtors HERKAREHNEE
and bills receivables, leases receivables CREEERE), REEE
and contract assets 5(c) (3,418) 4,272
Impairment losses on property, Y WERFZE
plant and equipment RIEEE 5(c) - 1,723
Share of profits less losses of associates DEHEE R TR R B E (255) (18)
Share of profit of joint venture SMEEE R TR (1,370) (1,216)
Write-down of inventories TFEMUR 5(c) 2,127 2,244
Amortisation of intangible assets B A ES 5(c) 50 102
Finance costs B TS RR AN 5(a) 1,515 1,725
Interest income FLEWA 3(a)&4 (2,850) (2,698)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HEDERFELERN
classified as held for sale BB ERW A 5(f) (11,407) .
Gain on disposal of property, LEWE  BERREZ
plant and equipment Wz 5(c) (559) (192)
Gain on sub-leasing of drilling rigs SEABERENSHE
classified as finance leases EHT Al 3(a) (963) (1,061)
Gain on settlement of sale and purchase  #E B &4 QIS
contracts 5(d) - (26,332)
Government grant — forgiveness of loan BT - ERRER 20(b) - (664)
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) HNEE 518, (Uzs) 1,009 (1,725)
Equity-settled share-based payment DA E B AR RER 2
(NES 5(b) 400 >
Operating profit/(loss) before changes % EE & BB A KCLHER,
in working capital (E518) 4,110 (9,419)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BFEOEM), B (11,968) 5,632
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 FEUR T2 HoAh FE YL SR IR E AN (3,020) (9,466)
Decrease in contract assets EREERD 453 55
Decrease in lease receivables HERBGURL 30,018 10,356
Decrease in amount due from a related JiE W — P B Bt R B RO
company 101 1
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5N RE A E R FIE
other payables Ot A>), /380 (10,578) 14,840
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities AHBEEEMCRD) 6,143 (7,924)
Cash generated from operations REEXERELERS 15,259 4,074
Income tax paid EATATEH (881) (214)
Interest received from sub-leasing of drilling & 78 &RNE & THEHF
rigs classified as finance leases B UE TS 1,097 597
Interest paid for sub-leasing of drilling rigs  Fi B AR EHEN HHEH
classified as finance leases FELAHFE (1,417) (576)
Net cash generated from REXBELRSTHE
operating activities 14,058 3,881
TEC-FFR  c EHEREFERNEERERAA




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in United States dollars) 2 = F = —F+=A=+—HIFFEUZETZE5)

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
Note US$'000 Us$:000
BT FER F=T
Investing activities REEW
Payment for purchase of property, BEWE BEK
plant and equipment BINEN (6,717) (1,173)
Interest received B U F & 1,693 1,596
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank BEEFRITFER R
deposits and time deposits EHFEFRL (5 ) 2,359 (3,097)
Proceeds from disposal of non-current HESERFIELENIERS
assets classified as held for sale BEMFTSRIA 5(f) 32,352 -
Income tax and other related tax paid for ~ HEDEAEEHENIERS
disposal of non-current assets classified AEMBEN SN & EHA
as held for sale rERETIE 5(f)&6(a) (6,887) ¥
Redemption of notes included in trade and 51 A 5 & Ut & E At & U K08
other receivables 2 EEIEE - 6,413
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - HEREE
plant and equipment P53k I8 1,757 7
Capital contribution to joint venture RELERARENRK - (6,000)
Payment for acquisition of an associate I i — B E AR 2R (544) -
Receipt in advance from proposed BREEEDHARFELEN
disposal of non-current assets EmENE ETEMFRIA
classified as held for sale 22 - 5,623
Net cash generated from investing REXRELRSTE
activities 24,013 3,362
Financing activities RE R
Interest paid BEATFILE 20(b) - (171)
Proceeds from new bank loans FESRITER 20(b) - 664
Repayment of bank loans BEERRITER 20(b) - (9,280)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENEERE 2 ERBD 20(b) (27,016) (9,822)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BEHEERE 25 BBD 20(b) (150) (125)
Payment for purchase of shares under RIRRR ) BT BB B A D 2
share award scheme INE:N 27(a) (147) (1,470)
Net cash used in financing activities RMEXKMARSTE (27,313) (20,204)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBESEEYFELEM
cash equivalents (R 4) 10,758 (12,961)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BZRERES
ZEY 22,424 35,021
Effect of foreign exchange EXRBNT
rate changes 329 364
Cash and cash equivalents at R+-A=+—-HZzHER
31 December REZEY 20(a) 33,511 22,424

F1298E226 AWM BN ZFH B KN — A6

2

The notes on pages 129 to 226 form part of these financial statements.

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

C))

(®)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 comprise the Group and the Group's interest
in associates and joint venture.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$"). Subsidiaries of the Company have their functional
currencies other than HK$, mainly Renminbi (“RMB"),
United States dollars and Pound Sterling (“GBP”). In view
of operations of the Group in various foreign countries, the
directors of the Company consider United States dollars,
being an internationally well-recognised currency, can provide
more meaningful information to the Company’s investors and
meet the needs of the Group’s global customers. Therefore,
the directors choose United States dollars as the presentation
currency of the financial statements.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis, except for investments
in equity securities which are stated at their fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out in note 1(f).
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(o)

(®)

18 5 2 B
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BFEAR G R RES D REGIHER
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B V46 & P i% FHE AT T B A 2 (E R & &1 IK
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RIR e

M HRmBERE
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E g
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SN o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

FESHBE#E
(b) BIMRFEHEE )

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

©

(Continued)
Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell (see note 1(x)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group:

o Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16, Interest rate benchmark reform — phase 2

e Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent
concessions (including those beyond 30 June 2021)

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The Group
has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position in accordance with notes 1(o) or 1(p)
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

©

(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or joint venture (see note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).

Associates and joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate and joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). The cost of
the investment includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment, and any direct
investment into the associate or joint venture that forms part
of the Group’s equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment (see note 1(k)(ii)). At each reporting date,
the Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the investees and any impairment loss for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investee’'s other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Associates and joint venture (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group'’s interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with the
Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate or the joint venture
after applying the expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) model to
such other long-term interests where applicable (see note

1()(0)).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(f)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

FESHBE#E
() REBERSHEZEBBEERRE

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1
(f) Investments in debt securities measured at

amortised cost and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt securities
measured at amortised cost and equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are
set out below.

Investments in debt securities measured at amortised cost
and equity securities are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment.
The investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL") for
which transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or loss.
For an explanation of how the Group determines fair value
of financial instruments, see note 15. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:

(i) Investment in debt securities measured at
amortised cost
Investment is measured at amortised cost, if the
investment is held for the collection of contractual cash
flows, which represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is calculated
using the effective interest method (see note 1(u)(iv)).

(i) Equity investment

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made
if the investment meets the definition of equity from the
issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income
remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal,
the amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to retained profits/accumulated
losses. It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends
from an investment in equity securities, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised
in profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(u)(iii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

9

()

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for
a currently undetermined future use and property that is
being constructed or developed for future use as investment
property.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
properties, less their estimate residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over the shorter of the unexpired term of
lease and the estimated useful lives of 20 years. Rental income
from investment properties is accounted for as described in
note 1(u)(ii).

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(k)(ii)):

—  freehold land and buildings;

— interest in leasehold land and building where the Group
is the registered owner of the property interest;

=  right-of-use assets arising from leases over freehold
or leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest; and

- items of plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets, arising from leases of underlying plant and
equipment (see note 1(j)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(w)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

FESHBE#E
(h) W% - BERRE @

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1
(h) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold land is not depreciated.

—  Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 40 years
after the date of completion.

—  Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired term of
lease.

—  The Group’s interests in buildings situated on leasehold
land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no
more than 40 years after the date of completion.

—  Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter
of the unexpired term of lease or 5 years.

—  Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 3-5 years
= Plant and machinery 320 years
=  Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

M

Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on
development activities is capitalised if the product or process
is technically and commercially feasible and the Group
has sufficient resources and the intention to complete the
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable (see note
1(w)). Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
1(k)(ii)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note
1(k)(ii)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are
available for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

= Brand name 20 years
- Computer software 2-10 years
T Cooperation agreement 8 years
—  Customer relationships 10-11 years
= Order backlog 2-6 years
T Patents 5-6 years
= Technical knowledge 5-10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Leased assets
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i) Asalessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-
lease basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see notes 1(h) and 1(k)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Leased assets (Continued)

@

As a lessee (Continued)

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is
accounted for separately from the right-of-use assets
in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to
investments in debt securities carried at amortised cost
(see notes 1(f)(i), 1(k)(i) and 1(u)(iv)). Any difference
between the initial fair value and the nominal value of
the deposits is accounted for as additional lease payments
made and is included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined
as the present value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved) 1 FEEFBER#E
(J) Leased assets (Continued) () HEEE®E)
(i) As alessor (i) EHHBEA

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note 1(u)(ii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-leases
are classified as a finance lease or as an operating lease
with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from
the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease
to which the Group applies the exemption described in
note 1(j)(i), then the Group classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract

assets and lease receivables
The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on the
following items:

—  financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables);

¥ contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (see note 1(m)); and

= lease receivables.

Equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) are
not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

®

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

1 variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

= lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurements of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

= 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

—  Lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease receivables
and contract assets are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

®

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
(i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

= an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

FESHBE#E
(k) EEBEREERE®)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract O]

EMIR  SHEERBEERK

assets and lease receivables (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)
Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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Basis of calculation of interest income FIE WA 2t EERE
Interest income recognised in accordance with note 1(u) R B FE 1 (U)Gv) R A FI B U A T AR
(iv) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of BemEENREAENE  Ee

the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

®

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

= significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

= the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease
receivable or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

FESHBE#E
(k) EEBEREERE®)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (i) EHiEREBEERE
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed MNEREBARE & E NI &N
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications ER NBEEESTRERUTE
that the following assets may be impaired or an EHIRBES R BB R AR EE
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or BRETHFEIEERERD
may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets;

investment properties;
intangible assets; and

investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)
- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), or value in use
(if determinable).

3 Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of
an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(ii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (see notes 1(k)(i) and (ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

O

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such sale
or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Contract assets and contract liabilities

m

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 1(u)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECLs in accordance
with the policy set out in note 1(k)(i) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 1(n)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 1(u)). A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see
note 1(n)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the
effective interest method (see note 1(u)(iv)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 1(m)).

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction
price. Trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. All receivables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less allowance for credit losses (see note 1(k)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

©

P

C))

®

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing
costs (see note 1(w)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at invoice amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy
set out in note 1(k)(i).

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

FESHBE#E
(N EBEEFN@
(i) ABRHBERLFHAR

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1

(r) Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Share-based payments

Share award scheme

The fair value of awarded shares granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in employee share-based compensation
reserve within equity. The fair value of awarded shares
is based on the closing price at the grant date. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the awarded shares,
the total estimated fair value of the awarded shares is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the awarded shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of awarded
shares that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for the
year of the review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the employee share-based compensation
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of awarded shares that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the employee share-based compensation
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares.

No expense is recognised for awarded shares that do
not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vested irrespective
of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

FESHBE#E
(N EEEFN@

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1
(r) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Share-based payments (Continued)
Shares held for share award scheme
Where the shares of the Company are acquired under the
share award scheme, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs, is presented
as “shares held for share award scheme reserve” and
deducted from total equity.

When the awarded shares are transferred to the
awardees upon vesting, the related weighted average
costs of the awarded shares vested are credited to
“shares held for share award scheme reserve” and the
related employment costs of the awarded shares vested
are debited to the employee share-based compensation
reserve. The difference between the related weighted
average cost and the related employment costs of the
awarded shares is transferred to accumulated losses.

Where the shares held for share award scheme are
revoked and the revoked shares are disposed of, the
related gain or loss from disposal of revoked shares is
transferred to accumulated losses and not recognised in
profit or loss.

Where cash or non-cash dividend distribution is declared
in respect of the shares held for share award scheme,
such cash dividend or fair value of the non-cash dividend
is transferred to accumulated losses with no gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss.

(s) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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FESHBE#E
(s) FiiEBi(®)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 1
(s) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Income tax (Continued)

®

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

b different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognised for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount recognised for
the reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the
provision.
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FESHBE#E
(u) WEREBBA

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 1
(u) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to
use the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of capital equipment and packages and
management and engineering services fee
income
- Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer obtains
control over the products which is generally the
point in time when the customer takes possession
of and accepts the products. If the products are
a partial fulfilment of a contract covering other
goods and/or services, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion of the
total transaction price under the contract, allocated
between all the goods and services promised under
the contract on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EERFBE#E

(u) BEEREMBA @)
() BEEARERBOUREERT

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)
(i) Sale of capital equipment and packages and

management and engineering services fee ERBERA(E)
income (Continued)
- Made-to-order construction contracts TEHIBEEH

Revenue arising from made-to-order construction
contracts are recognised progressively over time,
with a corresponding contract asset (see note
1(m)), if the Group's performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has the right to be paid for work done
to date in case of customer cancellation before the
order was fully completed. Progress is measured
using the cost-to-cost method, i.e. based on the
proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to
the estimated total costs. The contract asset (either
partially or in full) is reclassified to receivables when
the entitlement to payment for that amount has
become unconditional (see note 1(n)).

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customers obtains control over the
products, which generally is when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the products.

Management and engineering service fee
income

Management and engineering service fee income is
recognised when the related services are rendered.

(i) Rental income from leases

Operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)
(i) Rental income from leases (Continued)
- Finance leases
At the commencement of the lease term, the Group
recognises the minimum lease payments receivable
as a finance lease receivable. The difference
between (a) the aggregate of the minimum lease
payments and the unguaranteed residual value
and (b) their present value (presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as
lease receivables) is recognised as unearned finance
income. Minimum lease payments are the payments
over the lease term that the lessee is or can be
required to make plus any residual value guaranteed
to the lessor by the lessee, or a party unrelated to
the lessor.

Unearned finance income is allocated to each
period during the lease term using the effective
interest method that allocates each rental between
finance income and repayment of capital in each
accounting period in such a way that finance
income is recognised as a constant periodic rate of
return (implicit effective interest rate) on the lessor’s
net investment in the lease.

(ii) Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised

when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note 1(k)(i)).

(v) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred.

(v) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Group
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

FESHBE#E
(V) IBRE )

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 1
(v) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of the foreign operations are translated into
United States dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into United
States dollars at the closing exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(x) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale and
until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain assets
as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far as
the financial statements of the Group and the Company are
concerned are deferred tax assets and financial assets (other
than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures).
These assets, even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in
note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuved) 1 FERFBE#E

(y) Related parties (y) BEAL
(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is () ETHERT  —BALHZEBA
related to the Group if that person: TR EEAEEAHE

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; () HAEE B )R ek L E 2

%

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (iy HAEBEERZEN : =X

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of (iy ZBALTBRIEESAEELT
the Group or the Group’s parent. RNAIZEEZBEEEKE o

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following ) BEUATEMBERERAT - B8
conditions applies: REEEREE

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same () EREOAAEBAR—S£B 2K
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary BBAIBERQR - HBARKRR
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others). RWB AR EEE@E) -

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —BRAS—EBEBRZHEANA
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a FEENR(EHE—ERBMBES
member of a group of which the other entity is a B ERAIZHERAINEE
member). NSI)IE

(iiiy Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) WERHAR—F=ZH2z648
party. NCIIG

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy, " EBRE=-FEREZEER
other entity is an associate of the third entity. Bl ME—ERARZFE=TE

BZEENT -

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) ZEBEARAASENIHEAL
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an EEHECERBZEENZEM
entity related to the Group. J 2 BEB B FIETE] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Related parties (Continued)

@

(2) (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

(vii) A person identified in (1)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of the key

management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Judgements and estimates are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Note 29 contains information about the assumptions and their risk
factors relating to fair value of financial instruments. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment losses on trade debtors and bills

receivables and lease receivables

Loss allowances for trade debtors and bills receivables and
lease receivables are always measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which are estimated in accordance with the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date. The estimation of ECLs requires the use of
judgement and estimates, where the expectation is different
from the original estimates, such difference will impact
carrying value of trade debtors and bills receivables and lease
receivables and impairment losses in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

(b) Other impairment losses

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of property,
plant and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets
and interest in joint venture may not be recoverable, these
assets may be considered impaired, and an impairment loss
may be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment
of assets. The carrying amounts of these assets are reviewed
periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable
amounts have declined below the carrying amounts. These
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying amount
may not be recoverable. When such a decline has occurred,
the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs of
disposal and the value in use. It is difficult to estimate precisely
fair value less costs of disposal because quoted market prices
for the Group's assets (except for investment properties) are
not readily available. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the assets are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement relating
to revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group uses all
readily available information in determining an amount that is
a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of revenue and amount of operating costs.

The recoverable amount of investment properties are assessed

with reference to the fair value less cost of disposals, in which
the fair value was estimated as disclosed in note 10(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

©

@

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group recognises write-down on inventories based on an
assessment of the net realisable value of the inventories. Write-
down is applied to the inventories where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is less
than cost. The determination of net realisable value requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimates, such difference will
impact carrying value of the inventories and write-down on
inventories charged to profit or loss in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

Made-to-order construction contracts

As explained in the accounting policy note 1(u)(i), revenue in
respect of made-to-order construction contracts is recognised
over time or at a point in time depending on a number of
considerations including whether the Group’s performance
creates an asset with an alternative use to the Group and
whether the Group has a right to payment for performance
completed to date in case of customer cancellation. Making
such determination involves judgement about the nature of
the assets created, enforceability of contract terms, and level
of margin that is regarded as sufficiently reasonable given the
circumstances of a particular contract.

In addition, revenue and profit recognition is dependent on
estimating the total outcome of the contract, as well as the
work done to date. Based on the Group's recent experience
and the nature of the activity undertaken by the Group, the
Group makes estimates of the point at which it considers the
work is sufficiently advanced such that the costs to complete
and revenue can be reliably estimated. Based on the latest
information available in respect of the market environment,
the Group prepares budgets for contracts individually and the
budget, which is used in the Group’s financial reporting, is
reviewed regularly. Onerous contracts are provided for when
identified. Material adjustments to the budgeted costs may
occur in future if there is a significant change in the market
environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 KEkIBHRE
(a) Revenue (a) Wz
The principal activities of the Group are the design, REBFEEBRRT  BiE  ©ERH
manufacturing, installation and commissioning of capital HAEARHK ﬁﬁ”jﬁ*f@&ﬁﬂ?ﬁ%#$“&
equipment and packages on land and offshore rigs; sales SHEMBEREMARMEARIBEHER - T

of oilfield expendables and supplies and the provision of AR - BHTFAERERRZEHE -

management, engineering services, leasing of drilling rigs and
capital equipment.

(i) Disaggregation of revenue 0]
Except for gain on sub-leasing of drilling rigs classified as
finance leases of $963,000 (2020: $1,061,000), interest
income from sub-leasing of drilling rigs classified as
finance leases of $646,000 (2020: $1,102,000), sales of
capital equipment of $Nil (2020: $1,181,000) through
finance lease as a manufacturer lessor and rental income
of $3,351,000 (2020: $738,000) arising from leases of
capital equipment classified as operating leases, all of the
remaining revenue of $52,067,000 (2020: $61,800,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is recognised in
accordance with HKFRS 15.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by major products or service lines is as follows:

WD R

B%"*Eﬁ%mﬂéfﬂ E’Jﬁg#”‘*%
AU 5963, ooom_ =T F
1,061,0007C) * D AMEREN
ff%#””*?ﬁﬂ g A 646,0007T
(ZZE-F% :1,102,000T) 1A
%LﬁﬁﬁALﬂﬂéﬂ ST
BABEHETT(ZE_ZF
1,181,0007%)&%@%%@7%%% e
HYE AR B E A HTE £ A 3,351,0007T
(ZE=F4:738000T) 450 - BE-Z
= = B=t T HIEFE 20T
AFeaU 552,067,000 (ZBE-F
F : 61,800,00070) IR B E B 53R
Dﬁg/ﬁlj ’ISFJJ:EEWL °)

BEPANWERTIEEMIRBR
ZOPWT

2021 2020
—EZ-F e S
(Restated)
(wE51)
(Note (1))
(B EEQ1)
USs$'000 US$'000
FEr TET
Sales of capital equipment and packages & ARENERHE 24,271 41,092
Sales of oilfield expendables and supplies i FIFEMS B 4%} & 21,034 17,413
Management and engineering service ERRTIRBRHEERA
fee income 6,762 4,476
Rental income arising from leases of HENBEAKEHENER
capital equipment classified as BBEENHESUA PIFE))
operating leases (note (1)) 3,351 738
Gain on sub-leasing of drilling rigs %fﬁ%@ﬁfﬁ%ﬂ’\]ﬁ%#?é
classified as finance leases oW 963 1,061
Interest income from sub-leasing of %) % ARMEHENEHTA
drilling rigs classified as finance DHEFEHA
leases 646 1,102
57,027 65,882

Note (1):  For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
has recorded as “Revenue” instead of “Other
Revenue” for rental income arising from leases of
capital equipment classified as operating leases
as it is regarded as a principal activity due to its
increasing importance to the Group. Accordingly,
the comparative information of the rental income
and related costs are restated to conform with the
current year's presentation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(a) Revenue (Continued)

@

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by geographic markets is disclosed in note 3(b)(iii).

The Group’s customer base includes one customer
(2020: four) with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group’s revenue. In 2021, revenue from this
customer, amounted to approximately $9,557,000 (2020:
$30,477,000). Details of concentration of credit risks
arising from customers are set out in note 29(a).

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregated amount
of the transaction price related to the remaining
performance obligations under the Group's existing
contracts is $17,937,000 (2020: $10,472,000). This
amount represents revenue expected to be recognised in
the future from pre-completion sales contracts entered
into by the customers with the Group. The Group will
recognise the expected revenue in future when or as the
work is completed, which is expected to occur within the
next 12 to 24 months.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121(a) of HKFRS 15 to its contracts for sales
of capital equipment and expendables and supplies, such
that the above information does not include information
about revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it
satisfies the remaining performance obligations under the
contracts for sales of capital equipment and expendables
and supplies that had an original expected duration of
one year or less.

The Group has also applied the practical expedient
in paragraph 121(b) of HKFRS 15 to its provision of
management and engineering services as the Group
recognises revenue when the services are provided
that correspond directly with the value of performance
completed. Hence the above information does not
include the contracts related to provision of management
and engineering services.

3 WaEkoHEE@E
(a) k=)

®

0)

- EER

Wi (&)
BERPANKRSZRWETSE ZHFR
B 5 3(b)(ii) I BB -

REEMBEPHEFPE—H(ZEZE
F:NREBFRSGSHERBAEER
W#=M10% - EZE=—%F - KB
ZEFEMRE#H A9,557,0007T (=
T T4 :30,477,0007C) - BF
EENEERBEPFBERHNME
29(a) °

AR AARINREBEARZ
EFE AW

ReB s e Hi=y s H s
SEREANETHHBRBELNREN
XS BIL4AREA17,937,0007L (= F
—ZT4H :10,472,0007T) c ZEHE
EERERBEAERNEER P&
AEBIUHNEESHKE - A5F
EiR AR IRS TRERBHK
= (AT BN ARI2E24E A N E#
) o

REEERKEBMERELERFE1S
%ﬁkk121(a)ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ—HﬂéﬂZaﬂ‘
FARERZEREM KA HEE
# At J:Lﬁﬂ?@%$%l
EROTEBRRETHR A —FR
FRZ2EAZEREMEDEHEE
AR TFRRBOES G EER
U ER o

AEETEREHREE R TRRS
EREBMBRELEAFISHS
121(0)EFRITTEEE  TIRR
EATRHEIREEE X TENEE
BEERARE  ARERERKE - &
tREHAETBEABERE
ERTRRBENEL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WKk 7 IHRE =

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services) and geography. In a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following three reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

—  Capital equipment and  the design, manufacturing,
packages: installation and
commissioning of capital
equipment and packages on
land and offshore rigs, and
leasing of capital equipment
manufactured by the Group

= Qilfield expendables the manufacturing and
and supplies: trading of oilfield expendables
and supplies
- Management and the provision of management,
engineering services: engineering services and

leasing of drilling rigs

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of interest
in associates and joint venture, other financial assets,
cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits and
time deposits, tax balances and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
trade and other payables, lease liabilities and provisions
attributable to the activities of the individual segment,
with the exception of tax balances and other unallocated
head office and corporate liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

@

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit/loss
is “segment results” i.e. “adjusted earnings before
finance costs and taxes” of individual segment. To arrive
at segment results, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for finance costs and items not specifically
attributed to individual segment, such as share of results
of associates and joint venture and other head office or
corporate income and expenses.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment results, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
revenue), depreciation and amortisation, impairment
losses and additions to property, plant and equipment
used by the segments in their operations. Inter-segment
revenue is priced with reference to prices charged to
external parties for similar orders.

3 WaEkoHEE@E

(b) HBH/E ()

®

DEWEE BERAERE)

WaERXHDESEZENBESE
s kX HRZED BRIEHE
ENFESRBEMEENTHAR
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E2HOHE °

AR ERESBEFN/BENS
ERIDEEE] - BIER D BNk
A RTABRIREFHBAF ] -
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RE MR RMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (cContinued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 is set out below.

Capital equipment

3 WERIHHRE =
(b) 2 BRE @)

®

Oilfield expendables

PHEE - BEREE®HE)
REE—T-_—FR_ZTFTF+
At BLEEMNERIEK
FEoMRAMAEEZSRITR
EEABREBHEAEBZRS S
HERENTE -

Management and engineering

and packages and supplies services Total
ErRkRAR HEETRAH EBRIERE @it
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Z2o-f| CECTE| ZBC-F| CRCRF| CBI-F| CROEF| CBI-f| CECRE
(Restated) (Restated)
(f=51) e
(Note 3(ali)1)) (Note 3(ali)1))
(H3E3(@)0) (M)
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$000 US§'000 Us$'000 US§'000 Us$'000 US§'000
Tin TEn Tin T Tin R Tin TEn
Revenue from external ~ RESIEF
customers Wi 21,622 41,830 21,034 17413 8371 6,639 57,027 65,882
Inter-segment revenue GE L 1430 260 274 295 494 599 2,198 1,154
Reportable segment 2RI PUE
revenue 29,052 42,090 21,308 17,708 8,865 7238 59,225 67,036
Reportable segment 2RIHER
results 1231 14172 11,691 (5,083) 1,516 3124 20,438 12,213
Depreciation and ERAER
amortisation for the year 4 2,762 2436 552 1,288 48 183 318 3907
Impairment losses on ER T
property, plant and FEnE
equipment B - 1,276 - 447 - = - 1,723
Reportable segment 2RANEE
assets 79,281 72,130 44,044 57,064 22,928 28,336 146,253 158,030
Additions to property, plant ~ FRIFENE -
and equipment during BRE R
the year 1,305 1,040 226 78 691 857 8,222 1,975
Reportable segment EE VR
liabilities (33,588) (32,663) (20,888) (28,558) (20,188) (27.191) (74,664) (83.412)
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mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 - LUAZETLZT)

3 WaEkoHEE@E

(b) 2 ;MEE ()
(i) 2H/HBKE - 24 EERAK

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

results, assets and liabilities ZHER
2021 2020
—E-—-F —TETF
(Restated)
=gy
(Note 3(a)(i)(1))
(B EE3(@)1)(1))
US$'000 US$'000
FEx e
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment revenue Wy = 59,225 67,036
Elimination of inter-segment revenue ¥ $5 % 2B ULES (2,198) (1,154)
Consolidated revenue (note 3(a)) fRE WS (FEE3(@) 57,027 65,882
Results E
Segment results DELFEE 20,438 12,213
Finance costs TSR A (489) (660)
Share of profits less losses of associates 7315 Bt 4% /X &% F e E5 12 255 18
Share of profit of joint venture DiEEE R TR 1,370 1,216
Unallocated head office and corporate % B 42%% 5 5z & 22 AJULA K
income and expenses s (5,834) (2,906)
Consolidated profit before taxation BR T A AR & i A 15,740 9,881
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets ERDEEE 146,253 158,030
Interest in associates REEE N R Z RS 1,165 346
Interest in joint venture REERRIZHER 43,123 40,727
Other financial assets HEMemEE 345 233
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESSED 33,511 22,424
Pledged bank deposits and BMBBITERREHFR
time deposits 1,851 4,187
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEE E 964 2,540
Tax recoverable EIqEE b 146 435
Unallocated head office and corporate AR DE 42 ER KA R EE
assets 2,539 1,008
Consolidated total assets AEEERE 229,897 229,930
Liabilities =V
Reportable segment liabilities ERDEHERE (74,664) (88,412)
Tax payable FERBIIR (3,289) (3,376)
Unallocated head office and corporate RO EAPERE M AT EE
liabilities (3,366) (2,858)
Consolidated total liabilities FeaBas (81,319) (94,646)
T FFH c EREBRESFERNEERERAF




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(iii) Geographic information

3 WakoBEEE

(b) P BHE (%)
Giii) HEER

The following table sets out information about the
geographical locations of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets,
interest in associates, interest in joint venture, other
financial asset and non-current portion of prepayments
("specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location of the
customers. The geographical location of the specified
non-current assets is based on the physical location of the
asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties, the location of the operation to
which they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets,
and the location of operations, in the case of interest in
associates and joint venture, other financial assets and
non-current portion of prepayments.

TRIHEROAEERBINEEP
Wat o ROINAEENYE - BE K
wie REWE BRVEE 1B
BRAINAZERANER  Htvd
BB EMIFRIMES 2 BN (EE
FRBEEDHMIBUERNER - &
FrBEUENEPAELERE
o EBEFNBEENMIEMLE N
BENENMUERERGIYME K
ERRERREMEME) - LA
e EnRRERGLEVEEM
FIRNEB B RER(BERBER
AkGERARNES HMSRE
ERENRZIFNPHEIME)

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REIMBEF W= EBEFRBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E-— —EEF | ZB=— —E-TF
(Restated)
(B=75)
(Note 3(a)(i)(1))
(BREE3@)()(1))
US$°000 US$'000 US$°000 Us$'000
FER FEx FER FET
Hong Kong Special BEBERERITHE
Administrative Region 26 21 902 756
Mainland China B A s 31,049 34,334 25,783 20,106
North America b= 3,422 5,240 497 1,316
South America EZES 18,287 19,036 163 24
Europe BN 178 842 102 144
Singapore ¥ N 736 2,609 503 692
Indonesia ENfZ e e 47 629 - .
Middle East G 1,469 1,206 43,125 40,727
Others EH A, 1,813 1,965 3 %
57,027 65,882 71,078 63,765
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mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

4 OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME 4 HiRZRFWA

2021 2020
—B=-—-F —EEF
(Restated)
(B E5)
(Note 3(a)(i)(1))
(B EE3(@)(0)(1))
US$'000 Us$'000
FER s
Interest income F B WA 851 1,034
Finance income from lease receivables THE FE R B A 1,353 562
Rental income HEWA 595 891
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain bE X (&5 18) W 558 (1,109) 1,632
Government grant (note) RS #68 Bh (Bt 3E) 1,118 1,604

Reversal of accruals in connection with ROBEBEEEEAN R

settlement of sale and purchase contracts R IE (f45E5(d))
(note 5(d)) 996 .
Others H A, 919 197
4,723 5,920
Note:  Government grant for the year ended 31 December 2021 mainly i : #E-Z=—F+=-A=+—HBLFENK

includes subsidy income received from the municipal and provincial
governments in the Mainland China to incentivise the enterprises to
improve their technology and create more value to the industry in
which the Group operates.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group successfully
applied for funding support from the Employment Support Scheme
under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the HKSAR Government.
The purpose of the funding was to provide financial support to
enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise be made
redundant. Under the terms of the grant, the Group was required
not to make redundancies during the subsidy period and to spend
all the funding on paying wages to the employees. In addition, a
subsidiary based in United States of America also successfully applied
for a loan forgiveness from the Paycheck Protection Plan, set up by
the U.S. Government, of which not less than 75% of the principal
amount was utilised for staff costs.

JR#H BY = BB YE B h B At i & B 4R
ERRE A - DSBS BUE AT A A
BREMAENTTXAIEEZ(EE

BE—Z_ZF+-_A=+—-HIEEE &
S EERINEE B R BI7T R BUT R B
RESETHRMEABDRFEY - ZE&
EMENDRLERRMBE T REA
BEWHBMEBT - RIEFHHMIERK - A%E
WMERAEFBHRNSETEE - YEME
BeRARXMNEITIE - ptoh - —KEBEM
BARITRY B XBE B RN HERE
EHFEESRARR ERTPRTIS%ZEEHE
RERERA -

TR FFH c EHEREBFRENRERERAA

171




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

5 BRBLADREF
BRBLATE R, GEA) THIS R :

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FTF
US$°000 US$'000
FEx =y
(a) Finance costs (a) B R AR
Interest on bank loans IRITERFE - 171
Interest on lease liabilities HESEFE 1,515 1,554
1,515 14725
Less: Interest on lease liabilities relating B FTAHE KA E SR
to sub-leasing of drilling rigs EBFFEEENEE
included in costs of sales BERE (1,026) (1,065)
489 660
2021 2020
—E-—F —TETF
US$'000 Us$'000
FER FET
(b) Staff costs (b) EERA
Contributions to defined contribution M EBHFRKREEEL A
retirement plans 3R 1,708 1,420
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHEMER 15,609 14,780
Equity-settled share-based payment AR S E RN R A 2
(note 27) R (PR EE27) 400 -
17,717 16,200
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in United States dollars unless

mEMBRRME

otherwise indicated) (frFES G + X ZETLZEKT)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

5 BRFANER @

2021 2020
—B=-—-F —EEF
UsS$'000 Us$'000
FErR F=T
(c) Other items (o) Hiig g
Depreciation charge (note 10) EER 10
- owned property, plant and -BEYE  BER
equipment B 1,934 1,723
~ right-of-use assets -EREEE 2,157 2,817
4,091 4,540
Cost of inventories FEKA
- Carrying amount of inventories sold -EEFEMNKRAE 32,626 50,468
- Write-down of inventories - FEMR 2,127 2,244
34,753 5012
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH
(note 11) (BFFEE1) 50 102
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ B 5 RWARA S B EE
impairment losses on trade debtors HERKARENEE
and bills receivables, lease CR{ERBER), RE
receivables and contract assets &8 (M15E29(a))
(note 29(a)) (3,418) 4,272
Impairment losses on property, plant ME - WE RFERE
and equipment (note 10) BB FEE10) - 1,723
Research and development costs MELHEEHA 3,831 4,692
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BERF
plant and equipment 2z (559) (192)
Auditors’ remuneration ZERT &
- audit services - ZE R 460 460
— other services - H b AR 7 - 81
(d) Gain on settlement of sale and purchase (d) H#EEESQNH NS
contracts
Pursuant to the deed of settlement dated 31 August 2020 RIBAE B —FINEE =5 Pra] 2 B HA
entered into by the Group and an external third party, both RIZBZZEFENA=Z+T—HENEERE
parties agreed to rescind certain sale and purchase contracts, EHRERRETEREGY  HPAEHE
in which the Group was required to pay cash settlement of AR A7 B 137 46,226,0007T + 7 3
$6,226,000 by monthly instalments and issue 174,394,797 17174,394,797 % AR R F XD » AN A F]
new shares of the Company. The shares of the Company were BROER=ZZ=FEFHLA-+ZHHET-
issued on 22 September 2020.
TEC-FFR  c EHEREFERNEERERAA 173




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)
(d) Gain on settlement of sale and purchase

e

®

contracts (Continued)

Upon the settlement of such contracts, the Group wrote-
off or made provisions on all assets and liabilities relating
to these sale and purchase contracts including a drilling rig
under construction with carrying amount of $120,000,000
and contract liabilities of $12,830,000. In addition, the Group
also made accruals of $2,261,000 in respect of obligations
specified in the deed of settlement. As a result, a gain of
$26,332,000, which represented the net of (i) reversal of net
liabilities; (ii) recognition of accruals for obligations arising
from the deed of settlement; and (iii) aggregate settlement
consideration of $12,349,000, was recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a reversal of
accruals of $996,000 in connection with the above settlement
was credited to profit or loss as the Group no longer has the
obligations to fulfill its certain responsibilities as stated in the
deed of settlement.

Other operating expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2020, other operating
expenses include impairment losses of $1,723,000 in respect
of property, plant and equipment as disclosed in note 10(a).

Gain on disposal of non-current assets
classified as held for sale

Pursuant to the land disposal agreements entered by the
Group with external third parties on 29 October 2020, the
Group agreed to dispose of certain land and buildings,
situated in Qingdao, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and related plant and machinery and office equipment,
furniture and fixtures, at an aggregate consideration of
RMB245,000,000 (equivalent to $37,975,000). The aggregate
carrying amount of all disposed land and buildings and related
plant and machinery and office equipment, furniture and
fixtures was $23,397,000. The disposal transactions were
completed in February 2021. As a result, a gain on disposal of
non-current assets classified as held for sale of $11,407,000,
after the recognition of related tax expenses (excluding land
appreciation tax) of $3,171,000, was credited to profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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(d) BEEEALHKE @
REHEFANHE  ARBMBRLTR
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®
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45 1E12,830,000T) A EBEERE
EETIREE o 1IN AEBBREERZEMR
AR B AL FERT 7018 2,261,0007T ©
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mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

6

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 HGZEBETIRAWHEH

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (0) REBBERAMWBIEE .

or loss represents:

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEFF
UsS$'000 Us$'000
FErx F=r
Current tax BIHAB 1R
Provision for the year FREE
— The PRC enterprise income tax - B EFREH 864 136
— The PRC Land Appreciation Tax - R I AR 3,716 >
— Overseas corporation income tax - BIMEEFRIEH 326 525
4,906 661
Over-provision in respect of prior years B FEBERE (77) (993)
4,829 (332)
Deferred tax BEEHE
Origination of temporary differences EETREZEEE(H5E25(0))
(note 25(b)) 1,567 (617)
6,396 (949)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in
the consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the
current and prior years.

No provision for the United States corporate income tax has
been made as the Group sustained losses for taxation purpose
for the current and prior years.

Taxation for subsidiaries in other jurisdictions is charged at
the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in relevant
jurisdictions. During the year, the statutory tax rate in the PRC
is 25% (2020:25%) and certain PRC subsidiaries are subject to
tax at a reduced rate of 15% (2020: 15%) under the relevant
PRC tax rules and regulations.

HRAFE OB EFEAREE L MR
BT ENEVNERTOEH - BRa i
BHEANRARB @B L NGB
fha

HRAFEEBEFEASERNGE M
MEREEBR  BAREF REBIEED
KIS -

REMAEERAONBARMNBIELRE
BalEERMORITHEERXRTE - RF
AW REAEREAR25% (T T F
25%)  METHEKNBARREGREST
BB IS 1) RS R IE B TR R 15% (=
T D 15%)HF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expenses/(credit)

6 HMEBIRANMEHR @

(b) BiERX (ER)EZBEBAREFH

and accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

MEHEFEERIEOT

2021 2020
—B=-—-fF —EEF
UsS$'000 Us$'000
FErx F=rx
Profit before taxation i 258 Al g A 15,740 9,881
Notional tax on profit before R TR R A B 2 &
taxation, calculated at the rates T mEEEEEER
applicable to profits/losses in the wH EREANRETE
jurisdictions concerned 4,374 599
Tax effect of Land Appreciation Tax HENEARELENIEREE
arising from disposal of non-current EESN T IS EH T
assets classified as held for sale wa 3,716 =
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR 2 E’ﬁ)‘ﬁ%%% 1,229 2,221
Tax effect of non-taxable income FHEERMIMANT B & (2,887) (5,375)
Tax effect of profits/losses entitled P B B R B R A 1, B 1B A
to lower tax rate in the PRC W e (638) (215)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERAEATIBEHEN
recognised METE 2,139 2,886
Tax effect of other temporary differences  R#ER, & IEFERE 0 BB 14 2=
not recognised/derecognised BB E (130) 609
Tax effect of recognition/utilisation of TR, B ST AT ARTER G R it
previously unrecognised temporary ERNTHEE
differences (19) (444)
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax FERBTFERER E’Jﬂiﬁﬁﬁ
losses not recognised in prior years HIEEEN BB 2 (1,311) (237)
Over-provision in prior years BT FEBERE (77) (993)
Actual tax expenses/(credit) ERHIBERASL(ER) 6,396 (949)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 - LUAZETLZT)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation
are as follows:

7 EEM=

RBEEBRTEGIEIIMNERRATI(REES
MEERDROIF2HRENESHET ¢

Salaries, allowances and Equity-settled Retirement scheme
Directors' fees benefits in kind share-based payment contributions Total
NEREEURRA
Ezne iie BRRENNE BHZHR RIRHEER @it
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEo-F | CECEF | CEo-F | B | CBo-E | B | DB | CBCTF | CE--E | R
US§'000 | US§'000 | US$'000 | US$'000 | USS'000 | US$'000 | USS'000 | US$'000 | USS'000 | US$000
Tin | TEn | TER | FER | FER | FER | FER | FER | FER | TER
Executive directors: UhEs:
Mr. Jiang Bing Hua BRERE - v 310 310 34 5 3 3 347 313
Mr. Zhang Menggui FERRE - = 310 310 34 3 3 3 347 313
Mr. Cong Yongjian FKREEMZE5F
(appointed on ZAthBEZIR
19 February 2020 and RZF-—ELATNA
resigned on 19 July 2021)  EH) - = - % - 7 - 3 - 3
Mr. Wang Hongyuan PREEEMZFCER
(resigned on “RthBED)
19 February 2020) - S - & - - - = - =
Independent non- BUkyTES:
executive directors:
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, RREE
Kenny 15 15 - g - = - I 15 15
Mr. Zou Zhendong PRREE 15 15 - : - > - - 15 15
Mr. Chen Weidong ReRks 15 15 - - - = - - 15 15
Mr. Sun Dongchang FRERE 15 15 - : - 3 - S 15 15
Non-executive directors: ~ F2{7E% :
Mr. Wang Jianzhong Tphis 15 15 - 3 - 2 - 5 15 15
Mr. Lou Dongyang 2Rk - 3 - 3 - 3 - 7 - 3
Ms. FuRu Bt - 3 - = - 3 - 3 - =
M. Liu Jiancheng £l = e S
(appointed on NAZT=REZH)
23 September 2021) - 7 - = - = - ¥ - 9
Mr. Huang Jin (appointed ~ EBRE(M-F=-%
on23 September 2021)  NWAZT=REZ() - 3 - = - z - T - N
Mr. Qian Zewei (resignedon - 5 BELAR-F-—&
15 April 2021) mA+RAR) - 7 - g - 3 - 3 - .
Mr. Ren Zhigiang (appointed  (EEAE(R-F——F
on 15 April 2021 and FATRRERERR
resignedon 19 uly2021)  —E=—ELAHAR
BHE) - 3 - E - 5 - ' - c
75 75 620 620 68 7 6 6 769 701

TR FFH c EHEREBFRENRERERAA

177
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RE MR RMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2020:
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2020:

three) individuals are as follows:

REHAL

2

HX =)

FALTH  MEI(ZZT_ZF
M) BEE  HBMERHE7HE - THHE
F:=f)EeFATNHESE

2021 2020
—E-—-F —TTF
US$'000 Us$:000
FEx FEx
Salaries and other emoluments e REMAMS 722 499
Equity-settled share-based payment LATE 22 45 B AR () R ERE 2 3R 76 =
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET SRR 3 8
801 507
The emoluments of the three (2020: three) individuals with the ZoM (T D) &R ATHHE
highest emoluments are within the following bands: NFATEE :
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEFF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T £ 1,500,000/% 7T - 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001,% 7T 2 2,000,000/ 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T %2 2,500,000/ 7T 2 A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 - LUAZETLZT)

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE 9 BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (o) BREAER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on TR E AR MR AR B R ER
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of REME%F19,220,000 (T & :
the Company of $9,220,000 (2020: $10,916,000) and 10,916,0007T) & F W B 217 & @A &9 0
the weighted average number of 3,171,607,000 (2020: HEFH23,171,607,00008 (=T T4 ¢
3,056,855,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year 3,056,855,0000) 515 - IBEHEWT -

calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares HERNIMEFITE
2021 2020
—E-—F T T
‘000 ‘000
TR T
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—BREETEER 3,243,434 3,069,039
Effect of shares held for share award HERD RE T SR D 2
scheme (including the effect of shares (BIERE R 2B 8P
granted under share award scheme) fRiD S E) (71,827) (60,309)
Effect of issue of new shares BrE R 2 - 48,125
Weighted average number of ordinary RTtZA=Z+—HAMNEER
shares at 31 December INiEFEE 3,171,607 3,056,855
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EREBEER
Diluted earnings per share equals to basic earnings per share AR EBITHEIINBEEE S L AR - W
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 because HE-ZT- FR-Z-_TFF+-_A=+
there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding. —AIEFENEREEBIEFRERE
AREF o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

10 % BERREUARREWE

(o) FREEZH K

Land and
buildings 0Office
held for Other  equipment,
own use properties fumiture
and leasehold |eased for and  Plantand Motor Investment
improvements own use fixtures  machinery vehicles  Sub-total  properties Total
KtERZ BOERE
THREFR HfbER  GRREE
HENELE NERE EE  HERES hE N RENE &3t
US§000 US$000 US§000 US$000 Us§'000 Us§'000 US§000 Us§'000
SE Tin Tin T4 e e T4 Tin
Cost: BA:
At1 January 2020 R=2-F£-A-H 42,089 4,608 8817 22,160 2,049 19723 414 84,437
Exchange adjustments ERAe 1,624 70 m 873 60 3400 3N 3712
Additions HE = 857 5% 549 69 2,030 g 2,030
Transferred to non-current assefs EREAEARIELE,
dassfied as held forsale note 21) ~~ FFRGAE(WEE21) (20,355) 3 Be) 509 - 6219 - (629
Disposals ik 3 2,155 (146) (550) (225 (3,076) Y (3,076)
At 31 December 2020 and i 3
1 January 2021 tZA=1t-Ak
Z5-£-A-A 13358 3380 9,638 17529 1,953 55,858 5,026 60,884
Bichange adjustments EjAg 579 5 80 o 3 114 17 1,268
Additions hE - 2675 133 6,228 95 9,131 - 9,131
Disposals ik (1.897) (1,780) (1,667) (693) (349) (6,386) - (6,386)
Transfer gk 553 - - - - 553 (553) -
At 31 December 2021 RZE--f
tZA=t-H 0,593 4300 8,184 3,485 1,735 60,207 4,600 64,897
Accumulated depreciationand ~ EsTEREERE
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2020 RZEZ%5-A-A 14,109 1,041 8 444 11,337 1803 36,734 1449 38183
Bichange adjustments EiAR 891 U 566 635 53 2,169 107 2276
Charge for the year Ehxi 1671 998 40 1,07 154 4330 20 4540
Trnsferred to non-current assets —— EREAFABELEL
assiied as held forsele rote 1)~ SERETEE(Hzk21) (6,254) 2 (103) 1) e (6,784 - (6,784)
Wiitten back on disposals 1 ERRE 3 18) an) (369) ) (1,285) 3 (1,285
Impairment losses REEE 35 3 318 1,035 3% 1733 - 1723
At 31 December 2020 and i3
1 January 2021 tZA=T-Ak
Z5_-§-R-A 10,752 1,645 9358 13,308 1824 36,887 1,766 38653
Bichange adjustments EjAR 210 5 7 255 30 605 5 664
Charge for the year Emzi 9%8 1,002 ] 1,663 53 3,867 pl} 4,091
Witten back on disposals HEREMD (609) (1,109) (1,656) (187) (339) (4,500) - (4,500)
Trangfer L (623) - - - - (623) 623 -
At 31 December 2021 RZB--E
+-A=1+-H 10,708 1,543 1978 14,439 1,568 36,236 2,672 38,908
Net book value; RERE:
At 31 December 2021 WEC-&
tZA=1+-H 11,885 2,151 206 9,046 167 24,061 1,928 25,989
At31 December 2020 2
+-A=1-H 12,606 1,735 20 4221 129 18971 3,260 231
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 10 ¥1% - BERREBEUARRENE )

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued)

(o) EEEEZHEE)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
assessed that the carrying amounts of certain idle machinery
and a motor vehicle, under the operating segment of capital
equipment and packages and oilfield expendables and supplies
may not be recoverable. As a result, impairment losses of
$1,723,000 were recognised to reduce the carrying amount
of these machinery and motor vehicle to their recoverable
amount of $Nil, as they were considered as no real commercial
value to the Group.

The above impairment losses were recognised in “other
operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Fair value measurement of investment
properties

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties (recognised at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses) disclosed at the end of
the reporting period, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

= Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

= Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are

REBEE-ZFT-_ZEF+_A=+—HLHF
B AEBFEEARERABIREE
FEMROEEESHETE THERRER
YAE 2 IREE A AL A IRE - At - RE
E5181,723,000 T2 FER » AR Z S
BRABEZREABZEAKESEST
E Az EHes B ER A A S B E
B EEE -

A ERE RS E R
¥ JE TR -

REMF N VEEE

D EERE
TRENAEENRHERRREZRED
KERANRE R AT E R ERERER) 2
RIFEE PBRR=RAIXVEEERCE
EABRABYBREEUNF13RAFEE
) - RV EEFESRKRTF2RFMHEK
MAERNBANTEREREZMETE
mT

- BEME  BERE R AG
EBZRAFEE AEANEBHER
WEEHRBNERMSHREH

BRE

- FB_RFHE ERFE_RBAGE
ZRFEE  NEEEIE D
ABEHA  RAEABEETAE
RBA - TABEBARTHHE

not available AR & A
—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant - FoAFE FREETTERH
unobservable inputs AFTEZRFEE
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment

properties (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value of the Group's investment properties (recognised
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses)
which are located in Mainland China is $5,266,000 (2020:
$5,574,000). The fair value is determined by an independent
valuer which has staff who hold recognised and relevant
professional qualification and have experience in the location
and category of the investment properties being valued,
using market approach by reference to the transaction price
per square metre of comparable properties. The fair value
measurement of these investment properties is categorised

10 % BERREUARRENR#

(b) REWE> AT EENE)

DR EERB(E
REB AR B AR E W E R A
BRFTE MR ERRER) N AFEE

/5,266,000t (Z T —F 4 : 5,574,000
JL) c AFEBEHBYGEMELEA
EMENBEAARRZERE - FEAMS
JREETE o sxfHERTM E T B R RE
BREEER  WAEBEMHEREMEN
ERBERAEER ZEREVENATF
BEAEDRE=ZM -

into level 3.
(c) Right-of-use assets (c) ERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by RAAEERRNERELEENKREFE
class of underlying asset is as follows: AT
2021 2020
—B-—-F —T_TF
Note US$'000 Us$'000
P 5 FER FE=r
Ownership interests in leasehold land A5 {EE B E L RIEF
and buildings held for own use with  Z FiA#EHEZS - FleaTHHA
remaining lease term of 10-50 years ~ &10Z50%F (i) 10,577 11,107
Other properties leased for own use ~ FEFIEE A ZHMME (i) 2,757 1,735
13,334 12,842
Ownership interests in leasehold REEREMEZ
investment properties, with Fra##Ez - FIHBHA
remaining lease term of 10-50 years 102504 1,928 3,260
15,262 16,102
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised

10 % BERREUARRENER#

(c) EREEE®)
RESERNHERBHERE 2T

in profit or loss is as follows: N
2021 2020
—E-—F TR TE
UsS$'000 Us$'000
FErx F=x
Depreciation/amortisation charge of ZIRAEERRE D e RE
right-of-use assets by class of EEMNE MIEER -
underlying asset:
Ownership interests in leasehold land and ~ RAAE T RIEF 2 B #
buildings s 931 1,609
Ownership interests in leasehold investment RS EWE 2 T A EER
properties 224 210
Other properties leased for own use HERRBE A HMYE 1,002 998
2,157 24 814
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) HEBER S (FFFES@E) 1,515 1,554

®

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings
held for own use

The Group holds several industrial buildings where its
manufacturing facilities are primarily located. The Group
is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the whole or part of undivided share in the
underlying land. Lump sum payments were made upfront
to acquire these property interests from their previous
registered owners, and there are no ongoing payments
to be made under the terms of the land lease, other than
payments based on rateable values set by the relevant
government authorities. These payments vary from time
to time and are payable to the relevant government
authorities.

®

REEBREELIHREFZFRE
REfE

AEBBERETIERTF  HElg
REEBURZEFTIRET - KE
BAazEFEEZ(BHEER LI
2REMAORDBNBNELHE
AN-REERHERARGZENE
B Z A EE —RIENK - AR
R I AR B BT #1485 HY JE AR E A
HEETONRI  LERELH
HEGREEETHONRK - ZEN
AAEARAR - WS T1ERE
BTt o
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 10 1% - BERSBEURREWE @
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(c) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (c) EAEEE®E)
Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity MERSRHABENFERHEAENH
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 20(c) and 24, PR D47 9 BIE R BT 52 20(c)FA24 ©
respectively.
(i) Other properties leased for own use (i) HEARBANEMYE
The Group has obtained the right to use other properties AEEDRBEEREESTHRAE
as its office premises and warehouses through tenancy M EERBN RS REE/E
agreements. The leases typically run for an initial period o HERTER2E106 - $HEM
of 2 to 10 years, none of the leases include variable lease EREAEHENR -
payments.
(d) Assets leased out under operating leases (d) EgHEEETHECEE
The Group leases out investment properties and plant and AEEBRBEEHEHBREMERRE
machinery under operating leases. The leases typically run for Rz - ZEHE—RYVPRBH3FEE10
an initial period of 3 to 10 years, with an option to renew the F - REZBENREZENR - MERAA K
lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. FEREFGE o HEHEESTEHEE
None of the leases includes variable lease payments. NE
Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable operating WA AT RGEC L E 2 R RA SR
leases are receivable as follows: U
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ET_EF
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FE=rx
Within 1 year 15 A 1,113 720
After 1 year but within 2 years 1824 519 374
After 2 years but within 3 years 2E3F 268 261
After 3 years but within 4 years 3FE4AF 268 261
After 4 years but within 5 years 4Z 55 268 261
After 5 years S5ELAE 535 738
2,971 2,615
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11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 11 BEEE
Technical ~ Customer Order Computer Brand Cooperation
knowledge relationships backlog Patents  software name agreement Total
EMRI

MR EFBE ARHAE BR BEEf  RREE AfER fast
US§'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$000
TXT TXT TER TXT TXT TXT TXT TXT

Cost; %
At 1 January 2020 RZBZZF
—r=H 6,965 9,103 4,686 2,465 1,168 660 365 25,412
Exchange adjustments A% 125 2 6 120 154 % T 426
Write-off i (7,090) (9,124) (4,692) (2,585) g (660) (365) (24,516)
At31December2020and ~ RZZ=Z%
1 January 2021 = H
k=T —%
SHEH c = = i 1,322 = v 1,322
Exchange adjustments XA - - - - 77 - - 77
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ—F
¢ A =sr—H - - - - 1,399 - - 1,399
Accumulated amortisation Rt KR {EE
and impairment losses: B
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-%%
A=A 6,965 9,103 4,686 2,465 861 660 365 25,105
Exchange adjustments B 125 2 6 120 131 T = 403
Charge for the year FERZ = 7 = = 102 = 5 102
Write-off iz (7,090) (9,124) (4,692) (2,585) = (660) (365) (24,516)
At31December2020and ~ W-Z=Z%
1 January 2021 R = ]
R-ZF--%
—HA=4 = = 7 3 1,094 3 7 1,094
Exchange adjustments EHAE - - - - 60 - - 60
Charge for the year ERZH - - - - 50 - - 50
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-%
+-A=1-H - - - - 1,204 - - 1,204
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ—F
+=A=+-A - - - - 195 - - 195
At 31 December 2020 RZBZZE
+=A=+-8 > 1 - > 28 - - 28
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “other operating REEMNBETHETAGA BRI HA LS
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. IR -
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12 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

12 REE D E 2 s
TREFHHARENEE
FENHBARARN - BAAFIPEN -
FHANRAERA LB -

CEBERABERE
il

Proportion of
ownership interest

FrE R L
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of  Group's
establishment issued and effective Held by a
Name of company and operation paid-up capital  interest subsidiary Principal activity
AR EB HEMAL, B K BERITR rEE -HNE IEXH
S it 2 BERENFE BERER OLRES
Emer International Limited Hong Kong 2,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding, trading of
shares rig equipment and provision
of rig turnkey solutions
REERARAA B 2,000,0000% % 7 100% 100% REER BEEEERER
RUEERBEAATR
TSC QOil and Gas Services PRC RMB120,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and trading of
Group Holdings Ltd oilfield expendables and
("TSC (Qingdao)")** supplies
EERRhREBEREEERD PH AR 100% 100% SEREEHBENROK
ARRA(TSCER) ) 120,000,0007T
TSC-HHCT (Xian) Control PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and trading of
Technologies Limited rig electrical control system
("TSC-HHCT")#*
EREH (AR EHRMER f AR#50,000,0007T 100% 100% HEREEEREERSR
NE([TSC-HHCT])#*
TSC Manufacturing and Supply, USA $28,529,900 100% 100%  Trading of rig equipment and
LLC ("TSC M&S™) oilfield expendables and
supplies and provision of rig
turnkey solutions
TSC Manufacturing and Supply, = 28,529,9007T 100% 100% EFE#ZEOMBEEM &
LLC ([TSC M&S)) MR R RER AR R
Qingdao TSC Offshore Equipment ~ PRC $42,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and trading of
Co., Ltd. ("TSCOE")* rig equipment and provision
of rig turnkey solutions
BERNEEOMEBERAR  F 42,500,0007T 100% 100% BUEREBEEHKRERIEH

([TSCOE))*

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

12 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

12 RIMtB AR 2R @)

Proportion of
ownership interest

FrE R
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of  Group's
establishment issued and effective Held by a
Name of company and operation paid-up capital  interest subsidiary Principal activity
NEIEE MR LR BRTR FEE -ENE TEXB
REHE BEREANFE BERER LREF
Zhengzhou TSC Offshore PRC RMB32,400,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and trading of
Equipment Co., Ltd. (“ZZOE") rig equipment
MRS EMEHEERAR B AR#32,400,0007T 100% 100% HEREEEHRE
(Tzzoe))*
TSC Offshore China Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of rig equipment and
("TSC China")** oilfield expendables
LRTSCEFAMRBERAR & AR10,000,0007T 100% 100% EEE#REKHAEM
(TTSC Chinal)#*
NN Petroleum Engineering (HK) Hong Kong 16,450,000 shares 79% 100%  Trading of oilfield expendables
Co., Limited (“NN Petroleum”) and supplies and provision of
engineering services
HEAmIREE)ARAF s 16,450,0000% & {5 79% 100% BEMBEM R KRR
(TFamAaH]) TR
TSC Offshore (UK) Limited United Kingdom 73,074,952 100% 100% Investment holding
("TSCUK") shares of
0.025 GBP each
TSC Offshore (UK) Limited HE 73,074,952f% 100% 100% #®REER
(ITSCUK ) BAREE0.025
REMRK
TSC Engineering Limited United Kingdom GBP1 100% 100%  Design and manufacturing of
mechanical handling
equipment, trading of oilfield
expendables and supplies and
provision of engineering services
TSC Engineering Limited HE 1388 100% 100%  RAT REVEMMRIZRE

TR FFH c EHEREBFRENRERERAA

BEm AR RO R
M TR
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12 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12 RfB AR 2= (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest

FrE R
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of  Group's
establishment issued and effective Held by a
Name of company and operation paid-up capital  interest subsidiary Principal activity
NEIEE MR IR BETR r5E -—-HHE IEXEH
REHE BERENFE BERER LR
TSC Offshore Pte. Limited Singapore 10,000 shares of 100% 100%  Trading of rig equipment and
1 Singapore Dollar oilfield expendables and
(SG$) each supplies and provision of
management and engineering
services
TSC Offshore Pte. Limited I 10,000% & B H & 100% 100% B EEHERE Nom AN R
TR T MR R R ERE K
(Eiip:&) TR
Co)iany
TSC Offshore Corporation USA $6,100 100% 100%  Design, manufacturing and
trading of rig equipment and
sub-leasing of drilling rigs
TSC Offshore Corporation ZHE 6,1007C 100% 100% &Rt BERESERRE
UWKkoB#EHTE
TSC Offshore Limiteda Brazil Brazil Real 100% 100%  Trading of oilfield expendables
1,800,000 and supplies and provision of
engineering services
TSC Offshore Limiteda i) 1,800,000 28 /i 100% 100% EBEHBEEN RIH A KRRR
TRRR%
China Merchants TSC Offshore PRC RMB200,000,000 100% 100%  Research and development and
Tech Ltd.* sale of offshore wind power
related equipment; research
and development and sale of
offshore engineering
equipment
ERREBFRRBERAR R AR 100% 100% B rEERERAEMER
200,000,0007T HE T IIREERR
RIHE
# Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment enterprises " BIFPBERA MR ERE RS
* Unofficial English translation % FEE TR R EE

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. *+ Annual Report 2021
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13 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

13 REE QT 2R

2021 2020

—EB-—F —TFTF

Us$'000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Share of net assets s & E 1,165 346
Amount due from an associate (included in B —EBtE A E B GAE S

trade and other receivables) (note 17) FE U K E b FE U 2R IE) (B EE17) 5 55
Amount due to an associate (included in A —EEBEARFIBEGAES

trade and other payables) (note 22) e R E AR 3RI8) (F95E22) (573) (130)

TRINEBERFNFERE  RERFELTLE
B WECDHTISER

The following list contains the particulars of the associates, which
are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market prices are not
available:

Proportion of
ownership interest

AR
Place of Particulars of ~ Group’s
Form of business establishment issued and  effective Held by a
Name of associate structure and business  paid-up capital  interest subsidiary  Principal activity
BRIRARE AKE -HBWE
BENRAR EBEBREE  RUREXLH RANFE BERER QRBF ITER
Guangzhou Interstellar Offshore Establishment PRC RMB5,000,000 25% 25%  Provision of professional
Engineering Co., Ltd i H AR 25% 25% technical services
EMEREF TR ERAT 5,000,0007T TR BRI RS
HREKEDRRAERDA Establishment ~ PRC RMB2,000,000 30% 30%  Manufacturing and trading of
machinery parts
K HE AR 30% 30% REREEHRWEBL
2,000,0007C
Jiangsu Modern Shipbuilding Establishment PRC RMB12,000,000 25% 25%  Provision of professional
Technology Co., Ltd (Note) technical services on
shipbuilding solutions
IHARERBMERAR (M) #iE H N REBHERBATRNEE
12,000,0007C Bffn R
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group acquired 25% iz REBE_ZT=Z—F+-A=+—HLFE -

AEEE SR EARE3,500,0007T(HHE
544,0007T) Y T &R IR AE M BT A R
AR (DIERIBRIEM ) B25%BE o &
SEEREHZEKNERNEES(ETEHR
RIEMBEM Z A HBIEEFEZ ZENRE
381,0007T ° IER IR EM M AMM R
RIS BB RiEMAR AT RNERER - HA®
REENMEREE 2ERBHOED -

equity interest in Jiangsu Modern Shipbuilding Technology Co., Ltd
("JSMST") at cash consideration of RMB3,500,000 (equivalent to
$544,000). The Group recognised a gain of $381,000 in respect of the
difference between the investment cost and the Group’s share of net
identifiable assets of JSMST. JSMST is a provider of ship design services
and contemporary shipbuilding solutions, which enables the Group to
strengthen its capabilities to provide more comprehensive services.
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13 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 13 REEERNR 2R 2

The above associates are accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements and do not have a significant
impact on the Group’s results and financial position. The share
of profits less losses from their continuing operations and total
comprehensive income (including the gain of $381,000 in respect
of the difference between the investment cost and the Group’s
share of net identifiable assets of JSMST) during the year ended
31 December 2021 are $255,000 (2020: $18,000) and $255,000
(2020: $18,000), respectively.

The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, interest-free

LA EE N AR R AN R A M REVIR -
WREAEENEERT B RAEXNEKNF
2 NEBE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE
o RERERBECEEB ZRFRBEREE
W BB (RIEEERERNEAERS (T
HEAEMBMZ#HAEEFAEZZENIKR
#381,00070) % A1) £255,000 0 (= =Z4F :
18,0007T) & 255,00070(=ZF =Z 4 : 18,000
JT) °

U B & R RIRIEREER - 28 RER

and recoverable/repayable on demand. Skl EE o

14 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE 14 REERTF 2R

2021 2020

—E-—-F T F

US$'000 Us$:000

FEx FE=1

Share of net assets TG FEE 43,123 40,727

Amount due from joint venture (included in ~ FEWRAZ A RZIBGIAE SR &

trade and other receivables) (note 17) H A pEd s (B 5E17)) 148 195

(a) Details of the Group's interest in the joint venture, which is (a) &mHER

Em EN R A SRRV 2 AR E R
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated BENRNERFBEOT

financial statements, are as follows:

Proportion of
ownership interest

gL ¥ $:3eal]
Place of Particulars of  Group’s
incorporation issued and paid-  effective Held by a
Form of business and business up capital  interest subsidiary
Name of joint venture structure MR ERTRBZ AKE -—MEHE Principal activity
RENAER EBERES REXHH RaFE EBERER 2FIKF IEXH
Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Incorporated The British Virgin $100,000,000 50% 50% Leasing and trading of
Limited Islands jack-up drilling rigs
Wealthy Marvel Enterprises ik EEBRLHES 100,000,0007T 50% 50% MEEANEHTE
Limited

Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Limited &7~
EREEBRBRRNEEAR BERAEH
H—2ENESEQA c ER—FRIELTA
AEE  UWEDBTISER -

Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Limited is a joint venture of the
Group with its controlling shareholder, and the only joint
venture in which the Group participates. It is an unlisted
corporate entity whose quoted market price is not available.
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14 REE QTR 2EH#)
(b) Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Limited 2 B4 7
EHBE(ERSTRENEMZEEED
RB)MEGEMBHRRTOEREE Y

14 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

(b) Summarised financial information of Wealthy Marvel
Enterprises Limited, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in the

consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below: BREBENT
2021 2020
—EB-—-F CEROTE
US$'000 Us$'000
FER F=T
Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Limited Wealthy Marvel Enterprises
Limited
Current assets MENVEE 37,883 25,662
Non-current assets EMEEE 152,056 157,309
Current liabilities ENEE (3.693) (1,517)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (100,000) (100,000)
Equity M 86,246 81,454
Included in the above assets and liabilities: it &E M EBEEE :
Cash and cash equivalents HekBReEED 30,679 20,274
2021 2020
—E-—F TR -TE
US$'000 Us$'000
FERT F=x
Revenue & 14,600 14,639
Profit from continuing operations and profit 348 4% & % 74 F) K 4F R34 7
for the year 2,739 2,432
Other comprehensive income H iy 2wk 2,053 (6,006)
Total comprehensive income 2HE R ARRE 4,792 (3,574)
Included in the above profit: s B EE
Depreciation and amortisation e R (5,253) (5,253)
Interest income FLEWA - 186
Interest expense FEFX (5,500) (5,515)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in 75 ££ @ FA Wealthy Marvel
Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Limited Enterprises Limited 2 f
AR
Gross amounts of Wealthy Marvel Wealthy Marvel Enterprises
Enterprises Limited’s net assets LimitedZ B E FELEE 86,246 81,454
Group's effective interest REE 2 ERER 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest AEEiEm 2 REE 43,123 40,727

() RZBE-_—FRZIZ-_ZF+_A=+—
HEERAERAFIEREER 28K
fEiRE kg mE o

(c) The amount due from joint venture as at 31 December 2021
and 2020 was unsecured, interest-free and recoverable on
demand.
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15 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

15 HttEREE

2021 2020

—EB-—F ZTCTF

Us$'000 Us$'000

FEx F=T
Equity securities designated at FVOCI EERBEAFEEF AR
(non-recycling) fo 2 U R R IR AN 5

(GE&IE)
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE TR IR E 5 345 233

The listed equity securities are shares in Persta Resources Inc., a
company incorporated in Canada and engaged in petroleum and
natural gas production. The Group designated this investment as
financial asset at FVOCI (non-recycling), as the investment is held for
strategic purposes. No dividends were received on this investment
during the year (2020: $Nil).

Fair value measurement of equity securities
Fair value hierarchy

TR AR FE AR Persta Resources Inc. By %
3 > Persta Resources Inc./A— BRI A1

DAVAEI/NI I

MEOMRRAREERE - A

REZEEREBRKEDN  AEEBRINEET
BEATEEF AR 2EARENSBEECGE
gEE) o F - MERZZERREMBRE (=
TFF T e

BRAFS 2 A FEETE
DR EERE

Fair value measurements as at

31 December 2021 categorised into

R=—B=—F+=A=+—8

AFEEFESEE
Fair value at
31 December
2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-TBZ—F
+=A
=+—H
AFEE E—#& gt} E=R
UsS$'000 US$°000 US$'000 US$°000
FER FERT FER FERT
Recurring fair value KEEQATERES
measurement
Equity securities designated B BIEAFEE
at FVOCI (non-recycling): AE M2 E R E
HI IR AN 35 75
(GE21E) -
— Listed in Hong Kong -REELT 345 345 - -
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15 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Fair value measurement of equity securities
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

15 HihEmEE 2
BRAEBSZAFEETFE®E)
AL EERAE)
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2020 categorised into
R =F SR HE v
AFEEHEHAE
Fair value at
31 December
2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZZTZFF
Sy
=T H
NYEE F— F_H FH

Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000

FTET FT=r TET TET

Recurring fair value KEEQATEBRNS
measurement
Equity securities designated B REATEB
at FVOCI (non-recycling): AE M2 E RS
HIAR 7N 78 5
(GEBIET) -
— Listed in Hong Kong -REELT

233 233 : 1 -

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers out of Level
3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.

—r- a5y - gransteRnxzraRan JPEK

REE-_T - —FR-_ZT-_TF+-_A=+—
AIEFER E—REFE KoM EEE .
FEHE=R - NEBZBRDIRBEHRD
FEERR 2 B A3 A R RERR -
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16 INVENTORIES 16 F&
Inventories in the consolidated statement of REMBRRERFNEEESE
financial position comprise:

2021 2020

—g=-%| c—z=TH

Us$'000 Us$'000

FEx FE=rx

Raw materials [RAF 5,768 4,803
Work in progress EEM 12,843 13,528
Finished goods EERK & 14,780 4,677
33,391 23,008

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 ESEWRHAEKRTRIE

2021 2020

—E-—F —TZTF

US$'000 Us$'000

FEx ST

Trade debtors and bills receivables (note) Z 5 YRR R B EE () 113,878 112,521
Less: loss allowance W R (61,990) (65,317)
51,888 47,204

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HAbEWFTE « BAZ RIS

(note) (PR &) 12,906 10,163
Amount due from joint venture (note 14) eIk & & DR FIE(MIE14) 148 195
Amount due from an associate (note 13) JE Uk — R N R R IE (T FE13) 5 55
64,947 57,6,157!

Less: Non-current portion of prepayments R TR Z SERNEREL 5 (261) =
64,686 571617

Note: As at 31 December 2021, trade debtors and bills receivables and BfIaE -

deposits included $1,055,000 (2020: $Nil) and $34,000 (2020: $Nil)
due from/paid to subsidiaries of the Group's ultimate holding company,
in connection with the sales of products to and the lease arrangements
with these related parties.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. « Annual Report 2021
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

All of the trade debtors and bills receivables from contracts with
customers are within the scope of HKFRS 15.

Except for prepayments and deposits of $6,410,000 (2020:
$3,048,000) as at 31 December 2021, all of the trade and other
receivables are classified as financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors and bills
receivables (net of loss allowance) with the following ageing analysis
as of the end of the reporting period:

17 EZEWK H M EWFIE

P A B 5 RUR R R R 5B 0 &8 B 15
HFEAF1SREEANNEKE S A LFA

BR—_ZE-—F+_A=+—HZ2ENZE
46,410,000 (ZFE -4 : 3,048,0007T)
Sh - BB SRR EMERREE S B AE
B AT ENSREE -

RiR 7 AT

RBER - BRER SRR (R KRR
N E 5 YR R R BN R & (iR EREE)
ZERER DT

2021 2020
—E-—F —TFTF
US$°000 US$'000
FEx L TP,
Current BN EH 35,739 15,379
Less than 1 month past due AR —ER 2,492 2,863
More than 1 month but within 3 months BEBZR—EARLR=@A
past due 1,214 3,627
More than 3 months but within 12 months  #EHIZ R ={E A ELR+ A
past due 2,432 13,073
More than 12 months but within 24 months B EI %+ — & A8 DR
past due —+rHEA 1,003 2,707
More than 24 months past due BAERZ N — 1 H1E A 9,008 9,555
Amounts past due BESE 16,149 31,825
51,888 47,204

The credit terms offered by the Group to its customers differ with
each product/service. The credit terms offered to customers of
oilfield expendables and supplies and management and engineering
services are normally 30 to 90 days. The credit terms offered to
customers of capital equipment and packages are negotiated on
a case-by-case basis. Deposits ranging from 0% to 30% of the
contract sum are usually required. The balance of 60% to 90%
would be payable in 1 to 2 months after delivery and acceptance of
products. The remaining 5% to 10% of the contract sum represents
the retention money and is generally payable within up to 18
months after delivery of the products or 1 year after completion of
the onsite testing, whichever is earlier.

AEEREZFEENEEHRESR,RET
BmMARTRE - mEAENEDEHARERRT
BRENEFEREMNEEH R A30E90
X MEAZRBEREBOHNELERENEED
A ERIBERER  —RERXNTEOEHE
0%ZE30%ME]& « BENEBZERR - %5
F60%E0% BN —EMEBEAAZN « &4
SHEBTH%E10%ARES - —RAE
EmEH18E A mmE il H % —F (AR
BEERBE)NLN -

TR FFH c EHEREBFRENRERERAA
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18 LEASE RECEIVABLES 18 HEEKK
The Group leases out certain equipment under finance leases AEBENANFHMEMESENEE THRME - U1t
expiring within 6 years. In addition, at the end of the lease term S RIS HAA R - AR H S EE T AR
the underlying equipment will be transferred to the lessee. None of A ZEHERTBENEMEENK -

these leases includes variable lease payments.

In addition, the Group also sub-leases two drilling rigs under finance PEoh - AREBETA12Z18E AR ERE D
leases expiring within 12-18 months. None of these leases includes HRAEHTE ZEHEHTESTEEE
variable lease payments. (NE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of TRIRAEERERERNREARNAT
the Group's lease receivables at the end of the reporting period: EHEARR
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FE=rx
Within 1 year 1% R 20,967 27,467
After 1 year but within 2 years 1224 3,050 2,791
After 2 years but within 3 years 2E3F 2,560 2,694
After 3 years but within 4 years 3E4F 102 2,494
After 4 years but within 5 years 4E55F - 100
26,679 35,546
Less: total future interest income W ARIRABFEMA (2,243) (3,418)
24,436 32,128
Less: loss allowance on lease receivables B TE MG E IR R (166) (208)
24,270 31,920
Less: non-current portion of lease receivables 5 : 1 & BRI IERENZBH (4,638) (6,329)
19,632 25,591
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19 AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY 19 FEW— MR X AMIE
2021 2020
—g=-g| c®=-=®H
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx F=T
Katy International Inc.: Katy International Inc. :
Balance at 1 January R—R—B#&# 101 101
Balance at 31 December R+=—A=+—B#&%# - 101
Maximum balance outstanding during FAZKRAREREH
the year 101 101
The amount due from Katy International Inc., which is classified JEYiKaty International Inc.5R8 (5 38 A& 1% # £
as financial assets measured at amortised cost, is unsecured, non- A ENEREE) REER  REREEE
interest-bearing and without pre-determined repayment terms. BHH  REELEARBRELERANAE
Mr. Zhang Menggui and Mr. Jiang Bing Hua are directors of the = - D B#AKaty International Inc.F)50% &z
Company and each of them has a 50% beneficial interest in Katy s o
International Inc..
20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 RERBRESEEY
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (o) RERRESESEYERE
2021 2020
—E-—-F —TTF
US$'000 Us$'000
FER FE=rx
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFRERES 33,511 22,424
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows
from financing activities.

20 BERBEE£ZEEY )
(b) MEXBES>EEYHE

TRHALAEEREXBELZABE
B BRREMFREED -  MEXEKE
EraERAEREBIRKRSTEHR
AEEGERERERTOBERRER
ZRERAE -

Bank loans Lease liabilities Total
RITER HeEas &5t
(Note 24)
(FF5E24)
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
FET FET F=T
At 1 January 2020 R=-B=-ZEF—-HF—H 9,184 3,938 13,122
Changes from financing RenMEZ2H
cash flows
Proceed from new bank loans FESRTENARE
IR 664 ~ 664
Repayment of bank loans EEIRITER (9,280) o (9,280)
Capital element of lease rentals EfHAEHEE
paid BEREBH = (9,822) (9,822)
Interest element of lease rentals S fRIHER S~
paid MEBD W (125) (125)
Interest paid ERFLE (171) = (171)
(8,787) (9,947) (18,734)
Other changes Hith & 5
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) F 2B = (HFE5@) 171 1,554 1,725
Increase in lease liabilities from IV FHEELZ
entering into new leases HEEEEM = 31,143 31,143
Decrease in lease liabilities from 4R IFAEFHEEEZ
termination of existing leases HEHERD ~ (1,546) (1,546)
Forgiveness of loan under HEREBHET 2
Paycheck Protection Program ERER(M5T4)
(see note 4) (664) -~ (664)
Interest element of lease rentals BB ARMEHERN
paid for sub-leasing of drilling DEBHF A
rigs classified as finance leases HERS ZFEHD
(included in operating activities)  (FF AAE & 275) — (576) (576)
(493) 30,575 30,082
Exchange adjustments BN AR 96 48 144
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZE-ZF
= =Tk > 24,614 24,614
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 20 RERREZEEY @)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b)) REXBELZEBEHEKRE)
financing activities (Continued)

Lease liabilities

HEAE
(Note 24)
(Mt5E24)
Us$'000
F=rx
At 1 January 2021 R=—Z2=—-F—HF—H 24,614
Changes from financing cash flows ERMEZEE
Capital element of lease rentals paid Eﬁﬁ EHE 2 EARHLD (27,016)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENEERS 2T BHBY (150)
(27,166)
Other changes Hith 5
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) F2 5 2 (Fi5E5(a)) 1,515
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into new leases R FHEEEZHEA EEN 28,155
Decrease in lease liabilities arising from termination of KIERBHEEACHERE
existing leases B (688)
Decrease in lease liabilities arising from reassessment of EIE—IBIRAHENEE
lease term of an existing lease EEMHEEaERD (4,338)
Interest element of lease rentals paid for sub-leasing of HOERMEREN SN
drilling rigs classified as finance leases (included in BHTFEXNNEEREZ
operating activities) MEEBH GT AL EER) (1,417)
23,227
Exchange adjustments BN AR 21
At 31 December 2021 R-B--—F+=A=+—H 20,696

T4 - EEERSIERNEERERAT R
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 20 BEeRBEEEY @)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERESRHAE
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement for FEHERERERTEENEEEEN
leases comprise the following: T3
2021 2020
—E-—-F —TTF
US$'000 Us$'000
FER F=T
Within operating cash flows KERERE 1,417 576
Within financing cash flows BMERSRE 27,166 9,947
28,583 10,523
These amounts relate to the following: ZESHENTZIBERA -
2021 2020
—E-—F T T
US$’000 Us$'000
FERT F=x
Lease rentals paid EfHEERE 28,583 10,523
(d) Major non-cash transactions d) FEFRERS
() In September 2020, the Company allotted and issued ) RZZZZEFHA ARFAR—F
174,394,797 shares to an external third party for the INEREE = T Bl B 2 B597174,394,797
partial settlement of $6,226,000 in respect of certain RER% 1D » ABE D A EE T MR T
incomplete sale and purchase contracts (see notes 5(d) M B &EA#%6,226,0007T (B 5E5(d)
and 28(b)(i)). K 28(b)i)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

21 NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered
into land disposal agreements with a third party. Pursuant to the
agreements, the Group would dispose of certain land and buildings
situated in Qingdao, the PRC, and related plant and machinery
and office equipment, furniture and fixtures, at an aggregate
consideration of RMB245,000,000 (equivalent to $37,975,000).
As a result, the above assets with aggregate carrying amount of
$23,609,000 was non-current assets classified as held for sale as at
31 December 2020.

21 ZERBFHEZHRBEE

HE-_Z-_ZF+_A=+—HALEE K&
EE—FFE=FHI L HERHE - RIFEZH
HAEEBHENRTREEENE T LR
BFURGABE KRR AERME - &R
MEEFERE - BRERBARE245,000,0007T
(FA& M 37,975,0007T) - At - —TE=_FF+
—A=+—H®KM®EA23,609,000702 £
BEANDERFBELE ZIERIDEE -

The disposal transactions were completed in February 2021 (see HEXSGEER =T —F-ATK(RWE

note 5(f)). 5(f)) °

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 BESRNRHEMEBMARIA

2021 2020

—E-—F T T4

US$'000 Us$'000

FEx FED

Trade creditors and bills payables B S ENRRRENRE 28,248 32,712
Other payables and accrued charges H A JE AT RUE R R R 2 13,510 19,524
Receipts in advance TR - 5,623
Amount due to an associate (note 13) FEA —RE A QAR RIAE (M FE13) 573 130
42,331 57,989

Except for receipts in advance of $5,623,000 as at 31 December
2020 in respect of the proposed disposal transactions as stated in
note 21, all of the trade and other payables are classified as financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost.

S-S SEARSYEANEERARAT

B F2ImERN —E—EF+-_A=+—8H
Ry Bt B R 5 W EL A FE R 3R5,623,000T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR RMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
creditors and bills payables (which are included in trade and other

22 ESENREMENSRIEE

RIBERR  BEZRNERIRENREG AR
SN RN FOR) IR E R B B RE DT

payables), based on invoice date, is as follows: N
2021 2020
—E-—-F —TFTF
UsS$'000 Us$'000
FERT FET
Within 1 month —(EAR 16,177 14,363
More than 1 month but within 3 months BB—EAER=EARAN 2,346 2,684
More than 3 months but within 12 months @ =AEBER+-_@EAR 2,909 6,806
More than 12 months but within 24 months @8+ (A B = +EEA A 1,757 2,528
More than 24 months izz e UK (P! 5,059 6,331
28,248 324712
23 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 23 EHEEREGHERE
LIABILITIES
(a) Contract assets (o) EHEE
2021 2020
—EB-—F ZTCTF
US$'000 Us$'000
FERT F=x
Contract assets EHEE
Made-to-order construction contracts TEHIEEAD
— Arising from performance under made- — JB175E #IELE L HEFT
to-order manufacturing arrangements EE - 324
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of HERNEHNEESEAXEN —RER

contract assets recognised are disclosed in note 17. As at
31 December 2020, all contract assets were expected to be
recovered within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 - LUAZETLZT)

23 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Contract liabilities

(b) BHEE

2021 2020
—EB-—F ZTCTF
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Contract liabilities aHaE
Billings in advance of performance BITEBNIRAEAE 15,003 8,667

HREANBNABESRATEN—RERK
R 1 74 B -

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are disclosed in note 17.

The amount of revenue recognised for the year ended 31 AR *$ A—B&HBEH
December 2021 that was included in the contract liability ﬁﬁﬂﬁ(‘%ﬁ sty aie= A == H
balance at 1 January 2021 was $711,000 (2020: $3,165,000). IEFERER H’Méz %557,%711 ooom

During the year ended 31 December 2020, contract liabilities T -FF :3,165,0007T) c REBE-ZT—

of $12,830,000 was derecognised upon the settlement of TFE+-_A=Z+—HLEFE  AHERE

certain sale and purchase contracts (see note 5(d)). 12,830,000 THEAEETEEAHN (RN
FE5(d) 1R 4% LR o

The amount of billings in advance of performance expected TEERE R IR — F AR R BRANETT
to be recognised as income after more than one year is EBMIRAEE £ A7,724,000L (=%
$7,724,000 (2020: $8,080,000). — =4 1 8,080,0007T) °

24 LEASE LIABILITIES 24 FHESE
At 31 December 2021, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows: RZBE-Z—F+=-A=+—10 HEAEE
LU
2021 2020
—EB-—F —T-FTF
UsS$'000 Us$'000
FEx F=T
Within 1 year 1R 18,536 23,390
After 1 year but within 2 years 12824 1,217 470
After 2 years but within 5 years 2E5F 918 754
Over 5 years = 25 >
2,160 1,224
20,696 24,614

TR -FFR

 FEERSERANEERERA R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR RMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents:

25 GEMBRRRAMNFAER

(o) REMBMR R T HENHHIEE

2021 2020
—E-—F ZECITF
UsS$'000 Us$'000
FErx F=rx
Provision for the year FREE 1,190 661
Provisional income tax paid BT EEMER (899) (144)
291 514/
Balance of income tax provision relating to B E3:@EFE TS
prior years BEEH 2,852 2,424
3,143 2,941
2021 2020
—EB-—F —T-FTF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx F=r
Reconciliation to the consolidated FEVMBEMRREROEER
statement of financial position:
Tax recoverable AT [ 7 18 (146) (435)
Tax payable FER IR 3,289 3,376
3,143 2,941
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 - LUAZETLZT)

25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

25 FEMBRRRABFEB =

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

(b) EERWELHEEERSMH :

RiRE M BRREZAERNELEHE(E
&)/ BEERAERRFREEHNT

Impairment
losses
on trade
debtors  Write-down Unrealised
and bills of profits on Lease
receivables  inventories  inventories  receivables Others Total
ESER
RRRER
SERE FEAER
5E FEHA wH AEEUR Hth st
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET TET TET TET TETL TET
Deferred tax arising REUTEEMEL
from: BE:
At 1 January 2020 RZF-T5-A-H (1,010) (783) (246) 264 = (1,775)
Exchange adjustments EHRE (73) (87) 13 (1) i (148)
(Credited)/charged to GEA)/MB B (3
profit or loss (note 6(a)) 6(a)) (48) (558) 326 (337) H (617)
At 31 December 2020 RIZZEET_A=
and 1 January 2021 +—ARk-E-—F
=HE (1,131) (1,428) 93 (74) 5 (2,540)
Exchange adjustments ERHE (9) 26 M (1) - 9
Charged/(credited) to RIESIR/ GHA)
profit or loss (note 6(a)) (Fit3E6(a) 747 738 34 75 @7 1,567
At 31 December 2021 RIZ--%12A
= (393) (664) 120 - (27) (964)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR EmR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 FBEMBRRARANVFFEH @

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(Continued)

At 31 December 2021, the Group had temporary
differences arising from undistributed profits of subsidiaries
of $39,087,000 (2020: $43,418,000). No provision for
deferred tax liabilities have been made as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses and other temporary differences of
$170,390,000 (2020: $171,540,000) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the tax losses and
temporary differences can be utilised/reversed will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction. Except for tax loss of the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC and Mexico of $53,243,000
(2020: $55,090,000) which will expire within five to ten years,
the tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

26 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

As stipulated by the labour regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement plans
organised by the municipal and provincial governments for its
employees in the Mainland China. The Group is required to make
contributions to the retirement plans at rates ranging from 20% to
25% of the eligible employees’ salaries.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group’s contributions under the above-mentioned defined
contribution retirement plan are expensed as incurred and no
contributions have been forfeited as all contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.
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(b) CEAWELEBREERERE | (&

RZBZ—F+A=+—8  ~&EHi
BRAZADKEMEEZ ERHEEZRS
39,087,0007c(=ZF == 4 : 43,418,000
7T) e AR AREEHZEWNE R F 2R
BBERABREERERL KRN ED
Mg A - B LR IE R IR B E R
e

BMARTEARE 2B %R EERT KA &
ERKERREZFAKSEATHBAH,
BROHEBE THEEZE - WA
SETEFRFANEEEREMER
MZ%8170,390,000 (=T T4 :
171,540,00070) BEREEFR B E E - 1RIF
RITHIBRN - BAEBEUAFEREA
SR B R R AT H5 &5 1853,243,0007T
—Z-F4F : 55,090,00000) R EE T
FEREmMIN - RIBEEI EAR -

26 BERKEF

BREFENS T AR  ASELEZERE™
B A E A E B AN T BEERIR R
g o REBEREGEREETSM20%E25%
ML FRIRATBIEL R

AREETREFBREIEDE S EED SR
BEEAERGIEANEERTAFSEATES
AEI((RESEE) - BESFE/HBEIUE
AAEENTERHUFENRGE - EREDF
BT REREEEHEREEABEA
B5%mZT B - LR REAFBKRAN
30,0008 7T ° [Maxat E1EH M HKBAN R SR E R

FARA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

26 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

27

The Group also operates defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes for all qualifying employees in jurisdictions other than the
Mainland China and Hong Kong with contributions to the schemes
at 3% — 10% of the gross salaries.

The Group has no other obligation for the payment of the
employees’ retirement and other post-retirement benefits other
than the contributions described above.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

(a) Share Award Plan
Pursuant to the resolutions passed by the shareholders on 16
January 2015 and 31 October 2019 (“Adoption Date of Share
Award Scheme”), the Company has adopted a share award
scheme (“Share Award Plan”).

The purpose of the Share Award Plan is to recognise and
reward the contribution of the Eligible Persons (as defined
below) to the growth and development of the Group through
an award of the Group’s shares. The Share Award Plan
shall be subject to the administration of the administrative
committee in accordance with the rules of the Share Award
Plan (“Administrative Committee”). A trustee (“the Trustee”)
is appointed by the board of directors (“the Board”) to
independently manage the Share Award Plan and declared in
the trust deed entered into between the Company and the
Trustee.

The Administrative Committee may, in its absolute discretion,
make an award to an employee (whether full time or part
time) of the Group (the “Eligible Person”), including directors,
senior management and any other connected persons of the
Company and any consultant of the Group. The eligibility of
any of the Eligible Persons to an award shall be determined by
the Administrative Committee from time to time on the basis
of its opinion as to the Eligible Persons’ contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

The Administration Committee shall, subject to and in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Award Plan, be
entitled (but shall not be bound) to, at any time during the
continuation of the Share Award Plan, make an award to any
of the Eligible Persons of such number of issued shares, fully
paid or credited as fully paid, as the Administration Committee
shall determine pursuant to the Share Award Plan. Vesting of
an award to any Eligible Persons shall be subject to the consent
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

26 EEEKBRN =
AEE TN AR S E R RES LI RAER
MEEA AEERREEREHRMRER
B mEABEROERSBAT S REN3%

£210% °

B Lt AEEYEEMEEXNES
BIRREMBRRERF -

27 RADEBETE
(a) R EmE
BERER-F—AF— A+ BR-F
—NE+ A=+ B (RS =R SRS
BEBBRRER - AR AR —ER
9 $2 T B (A1) 22t 1)) -

Bein BB S BB B AR E 2 iR ) 88
B REREREERAL(ERRL TX)
RAKEREERBERMELZERM - R
R BB ET B R E T BB AR TTIE
Be(TRZEgNERE -BF2((E=F
ENEGHREA(ZFEADATABLE
B BN ET & B R A R ERFEA Z BET
TEFRROEZAAT AN -

TRZEEANRBERER TARENIE
MES(ERTEBESRE) (AERA
T YBEARRANES  SREEA
BMEMEMBAEANLRAKEEME
B o Ef]E ERALT RS ARIGEE -
HRITBRZE e THREENAREE
BAKEHRENEROERMETE

8T RERT B EMATEE S » TR
ZERARBETEHAR)EEBNTRND
RE)FTEVHIRE MAEBALERTER -
BITHZ B RERD ZEIEECH
RRARIIBHBROEETRNEUE - @
EREERALR TREKROAAZESAK
RAFMEEGNRE -
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27 SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)
(a) Share Award Plan (Continued)

In the event that a selected person or his/her associate is a
member of the Board and/or the Administration Committee,
such person will abstain from voting on any approval by the
Board and/or Administration Committee of an award of shares
to such selected person. The directors may by resolutions
appoint any one or more senior management of the Company
as authorised representative(s) to give instructions or notices to
the trustee on all matters in connection with the Share Award
Plan and other matters in the routine administration of the
trust.

Upon the receipt of an award notice, the trustee shall set
aside the awarded shares provisionally awarded to an Eligible
Person (the “Selected Person”) to whom such award notice
relates pending the transfer and vesting of the awarded shares
to which such award notice relates. The trustee shall hold the
awarded shares so set aside during the vesting period on the
terms of the trust deed. The trustee may, at any time during
the continuation of the Share Award Plan and the trust deed,
purchase awarded shares from the stock market and/or set
aside the appropriate number of shares out of a pool of issued
shares held by the trustee pursuant to the trust Deed.

No award shall be made or vested by the Administrative
Committee and no instructions to acquire shares shall be made
after a price sensitive event has occurred or a price sensitive
matter has been the subject of a decision until such price
sensitive information has been made available to the public
domain in accordance with the requirements under the Listing
Rules.

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of the
Share Award Plan, the Share Award Plan will remain in force
for a period commencing on the Adoption Date and ending on
30 October 2029.

In the event that any selected person ceases to be an Eligible
Person by reason of his death, resignation or summary
dismissal for misconduct, committing of a criminal offence or
other breach of his term of employment, an award made to
such Selected Person shall forthwith lapse and be cancelled.
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27 SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

C))

(b)

Share Award Plan (Continued)

The board of directors may by resolution at any time terminate
the operation of the Share Award Plan and in such event no
further awards shall be made provided that such termination
shall not affect any subsisting rights of any Selected Person in
respect of any award made to him prior to such termination.
Any surplus shares held by the Trustee will be sold on
the market with the proceeds (after making appropriate
deductions in respect of stamp duty and other costs, liabilities
and expenses in accordance with the trust deed) together with
such unutilised funds returned to the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 15,301,000
shares were granted to certain directors and management,
accordingly equity-settled share-based payment of $400,000
was charged to profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the total
consideration paid for the purchases of 3,040,000 shares
(2020: 45,760,000 shares) was $147,000 (2020: $1,470,000).
As at 31 December 2021, the total consideration paid for the
70,499,000 shares (2020: 82,760,000 shares) held for share
award scheme was $3,631,000 (2020: $4,271,000).

Share Award Incentive Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions passed by the shareholders on
27 May 2016 (“Adoption Date of Share Award Incentive
Scheme™), the Company has adopted a share award incentive
scheme (“Share Award Incentive Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Award Incentive Scheme is to align
the interests of the Eligible Persons of Share Award Incentive
Scheme, which is defined as any individual, being an employee,
officer, consultant or advisor of any member of the Group or
any affiliate who is not a connected person of the Company
and who the board of directors considers, in its sole discretion,
to have contributed or will contribute to the Group, with those
of the Group through ownership of shares, dividends and
other distributions paid on shares and/or the increase in value
of the shares and to encourage and retain Eligible Persons to
make contributions to the long-term growth and profits of the
Group.

27 R EBEEE (2
(a) RHEBE B2

B UBBRFERBER L LR 2R
FHEIENE - MAELER TR TBELER
B MERIETEEEMETEA LR
EREEHAEMEZRZANFEER -
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RHE  (REBERRBHNIEFHMEAM
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27 SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)
(b) Share Award Incentive Scheme (Continued)

27 R EBEEE (2
(b) R EB B8 (&)

The Share Award Incentive Scheme is a separate scheme from
the Share Award Plan adopted by the Company on 16 January
2015, which is specifically for granting share awards sourced
from existing shares purchased from the stock market. The
Share Award Incentive Scheme will give the Company flexibility
in granting Awards of new Shares. The Share Award Incentive
Scheme will be effective for a period until 26 May 2026 (“the
Award Period”) unless terminated at the discretion of the
Board at an earlier date.

On the assumption that all the awards granted under the
Share Award Incentive Scheme shall be satisfied by the
allotment and issue of new shares by the Company, an
ordinary resolution has been proposed at the annual general
meeting for the Share Award Incentive Scheme to be adopted
by the Company in accordance with the scheme rules and to
grant a mandate to the directors to allot and issue up to not
more than 3% of the total number of issued shares as at the
date of passing such resolution, in connection with the Share
Award Incentive Scheme (subject to adjustment in the event of
sub-division or consolidation of Shares in accordance with the
rules of the Share Award Incentive Scheme).

During the Award Period, the Board may, from time to time,
at their absolute discretion, select any Eligible Person of
Share Award Incentive Scheme (“the Selected Participant”)
and grant an Award to such Selected Participant by way of
issuing an award letter. The award letter will specify the grant
date, the number of award shares underlying the award, the
vesting criteria and conditions, the vesting date and such
other details as the board of directors may consider necessary.
Announcements on the allotment and issue of new shares
under the Share Award Incentive Scheme will be made in
accordance with the applicable requirements of the Listing
Rules when the grants are made.

In the event that any Selected Participant ceases to be an
Eligible Person of Share Award Incentive Scheme by reason
of his death, resignation, summary dismissal for misconduct,
committing of a criminal offence or other breach of his term
of employment or becoming a director or a connected person
of the Company, the directors may at their absolute discretion
determine either that any outstanding award shares and
related income not yet vested shall vest in such manner as it
thinks fit or that they shall be forfeited.
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27 SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued) 27 BB E e
(b) Share Award Incentive Scheme (Continued) (b) R ERHBE(E)
The directors may by resolution at any time terminate the BB RRERERZ RO ZENRE
operation of the Share Award Incentive Scheme and in such AFEIREE - AELBRAT - TREEERD
event no further awards shall be made provided that such E8EE) - HBBRIETSEHEMEES
termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of any EBLETEAR IE B PTER T M SR E M 17 B HE T
Selected Participant in respect of any award granted to him ERRE -

prior to such termination.

No issues, purchases or grants of shares under Share Award RAFERBEFE  BERERG ZE
Incentive Scheme were made during the current and prior BENET 81317 - BE IR AMRD o
years.
28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28 EXKf#E
(a) Movements in components of equity (o) BEHDZ22F
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances REBGEERZ T D 2 B0 R AIRAERR
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set ZHEHNGEERE TR - XATFY
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details REKRZENEZRE S E e EHT W0
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of f [
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
Company LN
Share Share Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
T R EE Bt 2iER a3t
US§'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
T TEL TEL TET TEL
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-ZB-EF-B-Az&H 39,191 250,735 151 (161,974) 128,103
Changes in equity for 2020 REB-BEZEHEE
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2ANGEE 3 ¢ 4 (585) (585)
Issue of new shares ARG 2207 3897 G 5 6,124
Balance at 31 December 2020 and R-Z-EF+ZA=1+-AK
1 January 2021 ZB--F-B-RAziR an.418 254,632 151 (162,559) 133,642
Changes in equity for 2021; R-B--F2R5E2 .
Total comprehensive income for the year EREANGEE - - - (5,354) (5,354)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R=ZBZ-F+ZA=t+-A2
33 41,418 254,632 151 (167,913) 128,288
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28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 28 BEXRf#E @

(b) Share capital (b) IR
2021 2020
—E--F —TZTF
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
RAEE g B8 E T
‘000 US$'000 ‘000 US$'000
T FEx Fh% FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary share of FREE0. 1R
HK$0.1 each LiEi 10,000,000 128,730 10,000,000 128,730
Ordinary shares, issued ERTRBEMN
and fully paid: TER :
At 1 January w—A—H 3,243,434 41,418 3,069,039 39,191
Issue of new shares (note (i)) BATEN R 1 (PR3EG)) - - 174,395 2227
At 31 December w+=-A=+—H 3,243,434 41,418 3,243,434 41,418

(i

(ii)

Pursuant to a deed of settlement dated 31 August 2020,
the Company allotted and issued 174,394,797 shares
as part of settlement consideration in respect of certain
incomplete sale and purchase contracts (see note 5(d)).

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(ii)

BEAHA-ZS-_ZENA=1+—
BO&EERE  ARBIRENET
174,394,797/ /%10 » tEAE T H &
EREEANNS D EERE(RK
FE5(d)) e

BRBE A A A BRI AT E IR
MBS YEERAARNAE L
RERENKR—F - AL ERH
ARRRBEEME FARFM

fir o

(c) RENMERE®W

(i) Share premium (i KBREE
Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman REFASBESAFDEEER) A2
Islands, the fund in the share premium account of the AR EERANESAIHIET
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the ARFRIRR - EZHEEZKE A H
Company provided that immediately following the date & ARBEANDBENNBERS
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the BIRTEERBET -
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(i) Merger reserve (i) EptEEE

The merger reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired as a result of the restructuring exercise in 2004
and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange thereof.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. « Annual Report 2021
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28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

@iv)

)

(vi)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 1(v).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the excess of capital
contribution over the nominal value of the registered
capital of TSC (Qingdao).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, TSC (Qingdao)
was transformed into a company limited by shares. As a
result, its net assets value in excess of share capital was
transferred to capital reserve as a capital contribution.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents the fair value
adjustment to the interest previously held by the Group
as an associate upon the acquisition of TSCUK.

Reserve funds

The Articles of Association of certain PRC subsidiaries
require the appropriation of 10% of their profit after
tax each year, based on their statutory audited financial
statements, to the reserve funds until the balance reaches
50% of the registered capital of the respective PRC
subsidiaries. The reserve funds may be capitalised as the
paid-in capital of these subsidiaries.

(vii) Shares held for share award scheme reserve

The shares held for share award scheme reserve
represents purchase costs of shares held for share award
scheme as disclosed in note 27.

(viii) Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net charge in the fair value of equity
investments designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that are
held at the end of the reporting period (see note 1(f)).

28 EXRf#E
(c) REHHERE K

(iii)

@iv)

™

(vi)

BE 5 5

N FERREBINERRH
BHRRGEENABINEEZRE - #
BREMZIVAENSHEER
-

ERfRE
BEAFBBRERIEBLETCES)
MEMERNEENER -

REBEEZZE—X"F+=A=+—8
IEFEEFR  TSC(ES) R H BBRHD
ERAR - Bt - EBEHBRAZE
ERESNIIER T EEREE B AR
f& o

B fE

Bk R BIERIRTSCUKE A £ B (e
FOTH 52 A <t 56 BT AT A 25 F I ) 2
FREDE -

RERES

ETHEMNBEARNEZEEZMA
REARBHEEELERYBHHRER
175 B 5 B A5 1208 ) #9 10 % B E 48
REd  BEERHBREHRESTHE
MEBAREMEARS0%RIE - FHE
kA RN (A= NG
BHEAR -

(vii) FER1D R B BIH R 0 7 8

HIER D BB G FEEERE
ERR D BT 8 MR D A BE B X
AN o A EE27FR BN EE -

(viii) A FEE R (G 218)

TR -FFR

AHEERFECEEE) BRRRESR
R ARBEBRBVBREERAF
HEER/BAFEEFARLGLER
W AR EN R FEERF
(R °

 FEERSERANEERERA R
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28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Distributability of reserves

e

®

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company as at 31 December 2021, as
computed in accordance with the Companies Law (Revised)
of the Cayman Islands amounted to $86,719,000 (2020:
$92,073,000).

Dividend
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: $Nil).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
The Group reviews the capital structure on a regular basis and
considers the cost of capital and the associated risks. Based
on recommendations of the board of directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through adjusting the
amount of dividends payable to shareholders, new shares
issues or new debt financing. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt position.
The Group's strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio, being
the Group's total liabilities to total assets, under 100%. The
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2021 was 35% (2020: 41%).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. *+ Annual Report 2021
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e

®

RZB-—%+ZA=+—R0  REH
SHERARDEEEDFE - ARFH
$ R A 2 A B A R AE 0 R B R 1 2
86,719,0007C(ZFT =Z 4 : 92,073,000
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TH-HEFENRE(CEFF: T
JT) °

EXREHE
AEREAEENEZARNBITRETN
EEFREBRNEA LR  UXHEE
BERMERREERKL -

NEEE IR BB ARG I A EAE AR R 8
BILHERNEBIEL AR - XEBTEHE
RHEREEWEREAKARIEERE -
BEZEEEMHEBRER  A5EBEBHA
BREMKREMRESE - FITHRIGETT
FEBRMETEERBERNER -REEZ
T —FRZZFZTF+RA=+—HL
FEF  AEBERAEEMBEZ KK
BFgmEs o

AEBELSEHBEBMRNELER - A5EE
MR DEREEABLEAIAEER
BABHRUBEE)ER100% - AEBR
B+ -_A=t+—H0EEARGL
KRAEIEU%(ZBZTF  41%) ©

AR R RE AN E A BB R AERSMED
BARRERS o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group's business. The Group’s exposure to
these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, lease receivables and contract assets.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk on cash at bank, pledged bank deposits and
time deposits is limited as the counterparties are banks with
sound credit standing.

Trade debtors and bills receivables, lease receivables
and contract assets

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 7% (2020:
7%) and 25% (2020: 27 %) of the total trade debtors and bills
receivables, lease receivables and contract assets was due from
the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Credit terms
offered by the Group to its customers are set out in note 17.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade debtors and bills
receivables, lease receivables and contract assets at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix or based on the probability of default with reference to
available market information, taking into account any credit
enhancement. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
indicates different loss patterns for different customer
geographical segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

29 SREREEREMIAZAVE
(=
AEBEREBBRIELEE  ABHES
FEREHER - AEBEH L SERRAE
EiER 2 S RERERBERERRIMT -

(o) EERE
AEENEERREIERBESREKRE
o EURIE - HERKRARGHEE -
EREEHEIEERER  HEEEZEER
-

MREFHRTHEE RIFEEFA - BHR
TR  DEMROTERRERERZE
ERBREAR -

ESRUREREREZR HEERKIRR
EHEE
AEENEERREEZEFHERIER
FE MIEFFPKEEMBETENKER -
HEERBRNEZET AL EZEAEE
HERFEFAESARBRESEL - RRE
R AEBRAMAARFLNE FHER
HENEWREE  HERKANMAEOEE
BREHSRMEAEEE S ERRERER
ZE - HERRZRRANEELTENT%
(ZEZFF 1 7%) M25%(ZE=FF :
27%) °

AEBYHMAERBBE TEREENT
FPETEMNEEE - ZEFEHHER
B RO B H S FRAC 8 K 3R B RO 15 3R e
YEREFPHHEER AREEPEE
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rEBEE HRRERRERERE  HER
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 cREKREEREMIAZAFE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE@
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (o) EERKE#E)
Trade debtors and bills receivables, lease receivables BEZEVURERERERE HERKIRKR
and contract assets (Continued) EREEHE
The following table provides information about the Group’s TR AN EEFE 5 FEWRIE REKE
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade debtors and bills B HEEURRENEENEERR KR
receivables, lease receivables and contract assets: FEHEEBECER
2021
—E-ZF
Expected loss  Gross carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
EHEER IRE#E EiERE
% USs$'000 US$'000
% FEx FER
Trade debtors and bills B ZEN A R
receivables: JEW R -
Current (not past due) BVER (k%60 E) 0%-30% 38,398 (2,659)
Less than 1 month past due #ED R —1{E A 6.85%-22.76% 2,707 (215)
More than 1 month but within ~ #EHIZ A —1E A
3 months past due BLR=MEA 6.85%-22.76% 1,320 (106)
More than 3 months but within ~ #HIZ 7 =1{& A
12 months past due BLR+=@A 6.85%~54.56% 3,175 (743)
More than 12 months but within  BHZ R+ — & A
24 months past due BAR—+m{EA 6.85%-100% 1,598 (595)
More than 24 months past due  #HIZ 7 =+ 0@ A 16.20%-100% 66,680 (57.672)
113,878 (61,990)
Lease receivables: THE WL -
Current (not past due) BVER (%60 BA) 0%-2.69% 22,678 (166)
Less than 1 month past due #EL R —1{E A - 1,758 -
24,436 (166)
138,314 (62,156)
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade debtors and bills receivables, lease receivables

29 SRABEEREMIAZATE
=XC)

(o) EERKRE
5 MR E0E R BN - R R

and contract assets (Continued) EREEHE
2020
—EFF
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
T8 AR 18 = BREEE B
% Us$'000 US$'000
% FET F=7T
Trade debtors and bills B ZRENWFIAR
receivables: JEWZETE -
Current (not past due) BUER (R 8 ER) 0%~11.02% 16,169 (790)
Less than 1 month past due BEL R —1{E A 4.05%42.56% 3,382 (519)
More than 1 month but within ~ #Hi% % —1{# A
3 months past due BLR=A 4.05%-42.56% 4,394 (767)
More than 3 months but within ~ #1Hi% % =1{# A
12 months past due BLR+—@A 4.05%-42.56% 16,166 (3,093)
More than 12 months but within  #HIZ K+ — @ A
24 months past due BALR-+MEA 4.48%-100% 5,613 (2,906)
More than 24 months past due  #HIZ N — +PO1{E A 14.12%~100% 66,797 (57,242)
2594 (65,317)
Lease receivables: THE KL -
Current (not past due) BUVER (A8 ER) 0%-2.41% 20,532 (208)
Less than 1 month past due BELR—EAR = 1,957 =4
More than 1 month but within ~ #HZ R —EAE LR
3 months past due =@A > 3,843 =
More than 3 months but within ~ BEIZ R =@ A B R
12 months past due +=1&A T 5,796 1
32,128 (208)
Contract assets BHEE 28.48% 453 (129)
145,102 (65,654)

Expected loss rates for certain trade debtors and bills
receivables, contract assets and lease receivables are based
on actual loss experience over the past 4 years. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historical data has
been collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

ETESRKREREBERE GHEE
MEERWFNERBEBEEDENBEN
FHNERBBRERFE - ZFLXCIER
B A 2 BR s SR 48 1 21 O HA ] A9 48 IR
S BATROR AR B R R TR A
BHNEERANBER 2 EZR -
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Expected credit losses for certain receivables are determined
with reference to the probability of default from available

market information.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
debtors and bills receivables, lease receivables and contract

29 SRABEEREMIAZATE

=XC))

(o) EERRE)
ET RS OESCEERN2EZTET
BERh R NIRRT -

RAFE  FHREHERFARERE
B HERKFUARAGHEENERRMA

assets during the year is as follows: R T ¢
2021 2020
“EC-F ZECRf
Trade Trade
debtors debtors
and bills Llease  Contract and bills Lease Contract
receivables  receivables assets Total | receivables  receivables assets Total
) BHMEY
FER e FER il
EWRE EhE  AHEE 8 | EUEE BhE  AWEE @5t
Us$'000 USs'000 Us$'000 USS'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Txn xR Txn Txn Txn TEL Txn TET
Balance at 1 January R-A—-B2&sH 65317 208 129 65,654 61,032 62 7 61,101
Exchange adjustments ] 1,292 4 - 1,29 275 6 3 281
(Reversal of impairment losses)  FRRER 2 (REEE
impairment losses recognised &) /RIEE
during the year (3,243) (46) (129) (3.418) 4,010 140 122 4,272
Write-off during the year ERiE (1,376) - - (1,376) & P o -
Balance at 31 December Rt-A=t-Bz
53 61,990 166 - 62,156 65,317 208 129 65,654

There were no significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade debtors and bills receivables, lease
receivables and contract assets, accordingly, the loss allowance
did not change significantly during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

29 SRIABEEREMIAZATE
=XC)
RBESERE

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and/or adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay:

(b)

AEEANERNEECRARTRARREE
2 BREREBR/EENHRERERE
FAENBERZREFRKOIEEEREB
ETHEEREKFAARSARRESRS
BE) ARBZHRAEMERER

BEeRERETEERN  NEREER
RARGHEBER HKAETEUBEEL
EFHRETRHE  NWENEREBHZRBE

TRINTAEERRERRERGKA D
AHRFITESRBEREBEEORUET
ReRnE(BRREEONXR(NEER)
RBIREHRE B ORI EFEROR B
) URAKERAEEFAFREANRZT
B

2021 2020
“EC-F Z3C%%
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BITNERERNEER BiTHERBRNR SR
Within - More than ~ More than Carrying Within -~ More than ~ More than Carrying
Tyear 1yearbut  2years amount Tyear 1 year but 2 years amount
oron within ~ but within Over at31 or on within - but within at3t
demand  2years  Syears Syears  Total December | demand  2years  Syears Total  December
-EhE AL BEAL Rt=B | —#ha 0L RENL R+=A
RER B B It-B | REX )Y 1S =+-A
BY  mEM  BEA EENLE &% WEREE B WER  DFR it HERE
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  USS'000  US$'000  US$'000 | US$'000  US$'000 - US$'000  US$'000  US§'000
Tin  TEn TEn fEn fEr AR | TR TR TR A TER
Tadeandother  EHERRER
payables ER5E 0,331 - - -3 331 | 52366 S - 52366 52366
Lease liabilities ek 19,065 1,290 954 26 21335 206% | 23589 521 804 U914 24614
61,396 1,290 954 26 63,666 63,027 75955 521 804 77,280 76,980
TECFFR - EHEBRBERRNREREBRAT
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 sREAKREEREBMIAZATE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B@
(c) Interest rate risk (c) R=mE

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from the Group's
cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits and time
deposits and lease liabilities. Borrowings/deposits issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group does not use financial derivatives to hedge against
the interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as

AEENFERBRFEREEAEERER
ReLEY  DEMROTERREREFR
REERE - T X RIREE M KRG
BHEE/EFROBEREEBRELR
ENERREAFEENXRAR - AEE
W IR & BT E T B AR R KRR o
TXOEINEREEE THAEENKFH

monitored by management is set out in (i) below. 15 °
(i) Interest rate profile i) F=EFBE
The following table details the interest rate profile of TR AEERNREHRNE
the Group’s net borrowings/(deposits) (being interest- B/ (Fx)Fm At eema Em
bearing financial liabilities less cash and cash equivalents, RekBFeFEY DEBRRTRE
pledged bank deposits and time deposits) at the end of I E B RO B R R EFE o
the reporting period.
2021 2020
—E--f =T T
Effective Effective
interest rate Us$'000 interest rate Us$'000
BRAE TER BB E TEr
Fixed rate borrowings/ ERMEE/ (7N
(deposits):
Lease liabilities HEaR 3.0%-5.9% 20,696 | 3.0%-5.9% 24,614
Less: Pledged bank deposits W BIEARITER| 0.35%1.3% (1,078) [0.45%—0.70% (2,277)
and time deposits NEHER
19,618 22,337
Variable rate deposits: BEEN:
Pledged bank deposits and BHEPRTER 0.23%-0.89% (773)| 0.7%-1.5% (1,910)
time deposits REHES
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 0.01%-1.5% (33,511) | 0.01%-1.5% (22,424)
(34,284) (24,334)
Total net deposits FEREE (14,666) (1,997)
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a general
increase of one percentage point in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have increased the
Group's profit before taxation by approximately $343,000
(2020: $243,000). A general decrease of one percentage
point in interest rates would have an opposite effect less
than the increase as certain variable rate balances are
subject to effective interest rates less than 1%, on the
basis that all other variables remain constant.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit before taxation that would
arise assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period. In respect
of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the impact
on the Group's profit before taxation is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income of such
a change interest rates. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2020.

(d) Currency risk

®

Forecast transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. Most
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC carried out
production locally with RMB as functional currency while
over 50% of the Group'’s revenue was denominated in
United States dollars. At 31 December 2021 and 2020,
no related hedges were made by the Group.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
All foreign exchange transactions involving RMB take
place through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign currencies.
The exchange rate adopted for the foreign exchange
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the
People’s Bank of China that are determined largely by
supply and demand.

29 SRIABEEREMIAZATE

=XC)

(c) RIEEB @)

(ii

BRBEDN
R-TE=—F+-A=+—H ' &
FTEEMESHERTENBRT
HEME-—REN—EESE - &
3 B3 h0 7S & B A9 BR B AT & B 49
343,000c(ZE =F 4 : 243,000
T0) o BRER T A H A B g I T
ME—EI>—EEE  BEL
TREMzRMFE - BRreTZF
BHEHHEBEBRMEREN1% ©

VA 8RR R 3 47 B8 7R 7N 55 [ PR B A
5ﬁT’1ﬂEfj*“ﬁc'JTmﬁJﬁ’\#ﬁiﬁﬁifEE
BEMIBER T FTE 4 8 BN I &
?ﬁﬁ%ll%ﬁ/%uiEMEIﬂH‘

HRAZ IR A EE R
'£$%@fﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁiﬁiﬂ ?ﬁ%ﬂ

*'JT“@BT*‘JQHAZSEE’J%‘E
T’Hﬁ”r SN _TE_TF
ﬁﬂﬁ’]g/& HET o

E
VA 7%
/

(d) E¥EkE

®

AR Z
REBEHE 2 B R
BEWGRIE - BN E

BREBERBEE
KA RR 2

ZEE ZEEENEE E?FEF%Z
jJ““’IE S AINEREE - AEE

Ao EKERREE T
WAEEBRSHIAARB AEEE
B MAKBERBIE50% 2 Wk 5 A
EnTAE R-BE-_—FR_T—
TE+-_A=+—8 AEETE
YERAERE Y o

ARB T BB LBEKINEG - FTE
BRARBOINER 5 RBIBEF
BARBITREMEREEEIE
HIIBETT - IMNER 5 E XK A F
B ARRITAT A E T - %
FEXFRIZEKRETE -

“EC A4S - EEEARSTRANERERERAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(ii)y Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts
of the exposure are shown in United States dollars,
translated using the spot rate at the year end date.
Differences resulting from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency are excluded.

(ii

AH R E ¥ EER

29 SRIEMEEREMITAZATE
=Xy
(d) EHER

TEREINARERBERRZUNE
BEMNEEEUIINZERTED
HREEXABEAY cEHRER
REFNBNME - BRARBREEMN
ELAHE - AR F & B ABHE X
i o TEERBINEEVBHRRK
BERAREZIEE 2 EZR -

Exposure to United States dollars

(expressed in United States dollars)

ErnRk

(AETL5)
2021 2020
—EB-—F —T-FTF
UsS$'000 USs$'000
FErx FE=r
Trade and other receivables B 5 FEWR I Hh FE UL FR IR 7,462 8,305
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEEY 2,017 6,878
Trade and other payables B Z IR R E M pE T FRIE 3) (1)

Net exposure arising from recognised DHREERBEEL Y

assets and liabilities [R\ B SRR 9,476 15,162

(ii) Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group's profit before taxation that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed

(i) BBEDH
THRHAAMAEENREHRRE Y
BERERZIINEERNZBESAL
R FTE B R AR TR
NEEE 2 BB AR A AT gE E A 2 B

at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained REE) o
constant.
2021 2020
—B--F —ECRE
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit in foreign in profit
exchange rates before taxation | exchange rates before taxation
SMEEE BRBADRFI HINEE i B 354 A 2 A
#m/(RL) R | SR R
US$'000 Us$'000
TEn T
United States dollars T 5% 474 5% 758
(5)% (474) (5)% (758)
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(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit before taxation
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into United States dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2020.

(e) Estimation of fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at amortised cost were not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
related party transactions.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 7 and all of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

29 SRIABEEREMIAZATE
=XC)

(d) E¥ R 2
(i) HBED I (E)
FREFZONMEREAEERSE
BIRBARFNSEEZIEER
ATERAZIBHMIZRERARZ
EERHMAETERCRLEE
%o

BRESMBREIEEXZEH DR
REEHHEASERTAE LRI
B MZzEZemIACREERT
SHREHINERRR - AT B
BHEBIXBMBEBREEAREZ
SIEMEBAIREHIRZZR - D))
BT _TFARNEEELET -

(e) 2T EEME
REENBHEKRATENSHTAZRER
BHEENR - —FRZZTTF+=
A=Z+—AZAFEEITESEAEZSR -

30 EXFEALRS
BREVBHRREME D MRENR S MK
Gh » REBIRFI A THEEALRS -

(o) TEEEASHS
TRHEIAEBETZEEAEYWSE © BIE
ST E7ET R A A R E S LTS
FRBNF A RS FEENSE

2021 2020

—E-—-F —TFTF

US$’000 Us$'000

FEx e

Salaries and other emoluments R Eme 1,726 1,311
Equity-settled share-based payment LAt s 45 B LARR 0 /B B 2 T 3K 154 -
Retirement scheme contributions RORETEI IR 17 i/
1,897 1,328

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).
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(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 55485 » A £ & T)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 EXRBAEALRF @)

(Continued)

(b) Transactions with related companies
The Group entered into the following related party transactions
with fellow subsidiaries:

(b) EFEBLARNZRS

REERRMIB ARG ZATEEALR
5

2021 2020

B T T

US$'000 Us$'000

FER FEx

Sales of capital equipment and packages A AREREBHE 1,157 563
Service expenses AR 7 5 S 31 -
Lease rentals paid 2NHEE 335 7

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the above
transactions were carried out on normal commercial terms and
in the ordinary course of business.

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to

connected transactions

All of the transactions disclosed in note 30(b) constitute
connected transactions/continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Among these,
services expenses of $31,000 are exempted from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they are
below the de minimis threshold under Rule 14.76(1).

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. « Annual Report 2021
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(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + AT & R)

31 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 31 AR EMRRE
POSITION
2021 2020
—E-—fF —TFF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
BisE FEx =T
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BER&E 34 145
Intangible assets mLEE 195 228
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZRE 5,486 5,486
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW B A RIFRIE 124,673 126,490
130,388 132,349
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, prepayments and E M EWGRIE ~ TR R
deposits & 101 106
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEY 520 5,401
621 5,507
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued charges — E b 78 K B+ FI 2 1,261 1,326
Amounts due to subsidiaries e B A RIFRIE 1,460 2,888
2,721 4,214
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(EE) EEFE (2,100) 1,293
NET ASSETS EEFRE 128,288 133,642
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E 28(a)
Share capital %N 41,418 41,418
Reserves (G 86,870 92,224
TOTAL EQUITY R 128,288 133,642
32 COMMITMENTS 32 EE

33

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered into
an agreement with a third party to establish an associate in the
Mainland China with a purpose to develop products in relation to
hydrogen energy. As at 31 December 2021, the Group committed
to contribute cash of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
$4,713,000) to this new associate as capital.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2021, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Prime Force
Investment Corporation and China Merchants Group Limited,
which are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the PRC,
respectively. None of them produce financial statements available
for public use.

33
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 4 BE-FT-_—F+=-A=+—HL

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, and a new standard, HKFRS
17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

FECRMERERNEBET - HE
ARBENTRESE

BEEZSUBRREHAY  TESHMAE
B TREE—FT-—F+_A=1t—HL*F
B RERNZBER] Rk — B EN BT BRI
BEEAUFITRRREA > MAKELRNZ
FPBHERANRM - ZFER] R ER B
THEAKEHEBE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT5 BB z%

R ETHEENR

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BN BRELEIRAOEIT R - HE2MELLEM —T-_—_%—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use 1 January 2022
BERGHEAF16RNEET R - WF - BE KRR - (EREFSHZ igsilE T === A=H

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

1 January 2022

BB EREITRNERIAR - BESLK — BT8R —E=—%A—-H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
EEVBRELEN _Z-N\FE_Z_TFAHZFESCE S H —H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2023
BB EUNFEIRNERTR - BESBEABREXIETE —E-=%—8—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of accounting policies 1 January 2023
BREEENF IR RBEBUBREERE 2RISR A - B HERRE —E-=—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates 1 January 2023
BEGHEUESRNIERI RN - 55 0EE —E-=f—HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from 1 January 2023
a single transaction
BB G EAF125RHERT A - RGELNEER B EEBOEERE =F—=F—H—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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